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Registered Office
Clarendon House

2 Church Street

Hamilton HM 11

Bermuda

Head Office and Principal Place of Business
28th Floor, Emperor Group Centre

288 Hennessy Road

Wanchai, Hong Kong

Registrar (in Bermuda)

Conyers Corporate Services (Bermuda) Limited
Clarendon House

2 Church Street

Hamilton HM 11

Bermuda

Registrar (in Hong Kong)
Tricor Secretaries Limited
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Hong Kong

Principal Bankers

Bank of China Limited, Macau Branch

Bank of Communications Co., Ltd. Hong Kong Branch
Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Macau) Limited
Luso International Banking Limited

OCBC Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

Key Dates
Annual Results Announcement 24 June 2024
Final Dividend HKS$0.015 per share

- Latest Time to Lodge Transfers 26 August 2024
(before 4:30 p.m.)
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(both days inclusive)

- Book Close Dates

- Record Date 28 August 2024
- Payment Date 19 September 2024
Annual General Meeting 20 August 2024
- Latest Time to Lodge Transfers 14 August 2024
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RESULTS HIGHLIGHTS

The board of directors (“Board” or “Directors”) of Emperor HERHEBFEEFRLAT(HEATNES
Entertainment Hotel Limited (“Company”) presents the audited S(ER® HEF)RELAL2TRHE
consolidated results of the Company and its subsidiaries [t B 2 (4 2 & B)) & E2024F
(collectively referred to as “Group”) for the year ended 31 March 3B31B L EE(FEE )2 KBEZXEE
2024 (“Year”). ¥l

Total revenue

LA 789,262 291,119 +171.1%
Gross profit (loss) 307,849 (115,689) Turnaround
EF(H8) EEAR
Underlying profit (loss)* 85,096 (177,779) Turnaround
Ty ias F (85 18)1 EEAR
Net profit (loss) 62,831 (127,997) Turnaround
A (E518) HEAR
Basic earnings (loss) per share HKS$0.05:% 5T HKS(0.08) 7% 7T N/A
EREART (B8) ~EA
1 Represents net profit (loss) before fair value changes, impairment losses ! HREXAABEES - Bz AEGERER
reversed and their relevant deferred taxes RIEEMIBRT 2 % & 7 (B518)
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RESULTS

Benefiting from the revival in visitor arrivals and a recovery in
hospitality and entertainment demand, the Group’s total revenue
grew significantly during the Year by 171.1% to HK$789.3 million
(2023: HKS291.1 million), with the revenue from hotels and
serviced apartments increasing by 62.3% to HKS$330.1 million
(2023: HKS$203.4 million) and gaming revenue surging by 423.6%
to HKS$459.2 million (2023: HKS87.7 million). Due to a significant
increase in total revenue, the Group achieved a turnaround
during the Year; hence a net profit of HK$62.8 million (2023: net
loss of HK$128.0 million) was recorded. Basic earnings per share
was HKS$0.05 (2023: basic loss of HKS0.08 per share).

MARKET REVIEW

During the Year, the industry revival in the post-pandemic era
had a positive influence on the Group, with business and leisure
travellers resuming international travel and driving up demand
for hospitality services. The Hong Kong government has made
tremendous efforts to attract tourists, and has launched a series
of effective campaigns and measures including “Hello Hong
Kong”, “Happy Hong Kong” and “Night Vibes Hong Kong” as well
as many mega events. The Hong Kong Tourism Board indicated
that over 40.8 million tourists visited Hong Kong during the Year,
which gradually recovered to pre-pandemic levels. The Mainland
Chinese tourism has recovered rapidly, partly through the advent
of additional cross-boundary infrastructure such as the
high-speed rail and the Hong Kong-Zhuhai-Macau Bridge.

Following the revival of tourism and entertainment demand, and
increased visitor arrivals to Macau, growth in gross gaming
revenue in Macau continued regaining momentum. During the
Year, visitor arrivals to Macau surged by 266.4% to 32.1 million,
and Macau gross gaming revenue surged to HK$206.4 billion, up
by 245.6% compared to the previous period.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

£
SERREAREAREE RIS EER

EE XERRAFEEZHIKRAKIEIE
£171.1%%E789,300,000% 7t (20234 :
291,100,000#& 7T) » EHRBEHE RRHER
NEZUW A IMN62.3%%E330,100,000#
7t (20234 : 203,400,000 7T) > ¥ UK
A B8 F423.6%ZF459,200,0003# 55 (2023
£ 187,700,000 7T) o H F* 48 UK A K 1 18
m cZEBRESEEEFEAR; ALLEE
73 #)62,800,0007 75 (2023%F : FE 18
128,000,000 7T) - ERE AR F)A0.05%8
76 (2023%F : SRR E A E5180.088 7T) ©

h 35 [O] B8

REAFE BRERANTEEEREYAX
EEELTEXE BBERABREHR
EERKRDE FEHBHERBERLHA -
EBBRARIIKEFHTERE
HHT —RIAREOES MG - SR
o EBBITHOEBIMIEEREN
URHFZREES FERERBEERBIE
i 78 £ 2 5 78 ik & 8 840,800,000 A R >
B8 E R B AT K o 5B A i i
FAREE BoRARSHR AR
ABENHNBREERMEIR -

BERERBREBEREERGBKRE
ABEM BMBEARAERERS
SR MAFE  iBRIREHIE2664%E
32,100,000 A3k > R FIB R AW ABIE =
206,400,000,0007% 7T > & L & HA fE & &
245.6% °

Emperor Entertainment Hotel Limited 2821244 HEHRAE]

Annual Report 2023/2024 &3 5



—

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B E SRR

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group currently engages in the provision of hospitality and
entertainment services, which covers a total of six hotels and
serviced apartments in Hong Kong and Macau, as follows:

e The Emperor Hotel and three blocks of The Unit Serviced
Apartments in Hong Kong - namely The Unit Morrison Hill,
The Unit Happy Valley and The Unit Davis; and

e Grand Emperor Hotel (with gaming facilities) and Inn Hotel in
Macau.

About The Emperor Hotel

The Emperor Hotel, a 29-storey hotel in Wan Chai, is the Group’s
signature project in Hong Kong. It offers 299 guest rooms
together with leisure, dining and parking facilities, with a gross
floor area of approximately 115,700 square feet. The Emperor
Hotel creates a comfortable experience, catering to the lifestyles
of both leisure and business travellers. Golden Valley, a
Cantonese & Sichuan cuisine within the hotel, had been rated as
a Michelin 1-star restaurant.

r
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About The Unit Morrison Hill

Situated at the vibrant junction of Wan Chai and Causeway Bay,
The Unit Morrison Hill provides 18 stylish serviced apartments for
expats, MICE visitors, business travellers and overseas
professionals, on short-and long-term leases. With state-of-the-art
facilities and professional customer services, The Unit Morrison
Hill redefines the contemporary way of life.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FA 52 The Unit Morrison Hill

The Unit Morrison Hill 2 3& 7% i (¥ % $f $8
EBOEUMENRIARE BIEALT T
BRE BERERENEEANTIRM
18ENEHERBEANFERERXAE
BELENSKHEREEXEEZFEIRY > The
Unit Morrison HIlEfh E&ZRAKEE A
Et o

About The Unit Happy Valley

The Unit Happy Valley, a 21-storey, 68-unit block located in Happy
Valley, is a highly sought-after residence given its ease of access
to the central business district. The area is vibrant, conveniently
located near Hong Kong’s commercial districts, and affords easy
access to the shopping districts in Causeway Bay, Hong Kong
Jockey Club and Hong Kong Stadium for international sports
events, and Hong Kong Sanatorium & Hospital for medical
check-ups, helping to ensure solid short-term leasing demand.

B8 5% The Unit Happy Valley

i 1 B8 5§ # B9 The Unit Happy Valley & 18
=218« R BBEBEMNKIE BA5E
ARPOBEEMESRD BBEHMUR
DEME > BMEERMER  RBEF
AARIEENBEEBYE SEEES
REBAKGHEBERERBEES UK
RESEBENEBRETESRBRE B
RSN HHBEERERK -
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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About The Unit Davis

The Unit Davis is a 22-storey serviced apartments building on
Davis Street, within the Kennedy Town and Mount Davis area of
Hong Kong lIsland, with a total of 57 units. Spurred by the
opening of Kennedy Town station — which provides a convenient
link to Hong Kong’s central business district as well as dining and
entertainment areas such as Sai Ying Pun, Lan Kwai Fong and
Soho, the area has become a vibrant neighbourhood with new
residential and commercial offerings.

About Grand Emperor Hotel

Located on the Macau Peninsula, Grand Emperor Hotel is a
26-storey hotel with a gross floor area of approximately 655,000
square feet and 311 guest rooms. It offers a wide range of
amenities including fitness centre, sauna and spa facilities, as
well as 5 restaurants and bars boasting fine cuisines from all
around the world. In addition, it offers gaming tables in the mass
market hall and slot machines. With strong commitment to
providing guests with unparalleled hospitality experience, the
Group delivers consistently top-quality services that translate
into high levels of customer satisfaction and loyalty.

B 2 The Unit Davis
EEREAEREMEAREESEMERN
Z X HBThe Unit Davis » B S22/
MIRFA AT £LRASTEENMN - T E
REBEEMIBIEMWER GREMEETSE
BHALOHEE UKRAZR -BEEYL R
HEEEENRIRSE  ZHERA
THRREIHNFEEREEE

PR S EMRGEHIE

RERHEBFEEENBEMFEE B —F
18 =268 BB [ > 4818 [ @ 78 49655,000
FHR RAIAEE - HigH R ER
LR BERIPO S RERKER
M UKRSERMHRAZMEENBER
BBt EFRABREBEER
AFH AEEBANEETERELR

bo0E S R AR REY
B ATHENEKTNERBEER
B o
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About Inn Hotel

Located at the heart of Macau’s Taipa Island, Inn Hotel is a
17-storey hotel with a gross floor area of approximately 209,000
square feet and 285 guest rooms. Through extending business
coverage from the Macau Peninsula to Taipa, it enables the Group
to fully capture the potential of Macau’s hospitality market.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FA ¢ B 1t i I

BHHEEENRPKFERD » B —E
BB1T/E A - 4812 @ @ 78 £9209,000
FTHR> RBEWBEEE BERBEFHE
ERENCRMFEBRBRERF  BFE
EENEEBRRAPIEENISZHNES -

Hotels and Serviced Apartments Revenue

With the revival of hospitality demand and the Group’s expanded
portfolio of serviced apartments, revenue from hotels and
serviced apartments increased by 62.3% to HK$330.1 million
(2023: HKS$203.4 million) during the Year, accounting for 41.8%
(2023: 69.9%) of the Group’s total revenue. This revenue
comprised room revenue of HK$166.2 million (2023: HKS85.2
million), food and beverage revenue of HK$114.5 million (2023:
HKS$74.0 million), and rental income and other revenue of
HKS49.4 million (2023: HKS44.2 million).

Gaming Revenue

Due to the rebound in consumption sentiment and entertainment
demand during the Year, the Group’s gaming revenue surged over
423.6% to HKS$459.2 million (2023: HKS87.7 million), accounting
for 58.2% (2023: 30.1%) of the Group’s total revenue.

BEREHER
BEEEIEREE
RAEHEGER BERBREXAETIK
A R 7 4 E 1 1062.3% £330,100,0003%

7t (20234 : 203,400,000 7T) > 14 z!: £E
488 A H941.8% (2023£E 69.9%) o Z UK A
1% % B W A 166,200,000 7T (20234 :
85,200,000 7T) -~ & 8t Ug A 114,500,000
# 75 (20234 : 74,000,0003% 7T) > WU K
£ I A K& H th Ug A49,400,0003% 7T (2023
£F 1 44,200,000 7T) ©

BEEA
EEH?HSEFE}QE—LR&&%%EEZ‘?&
38 > 7S £ B 18 R IR A B 7+ 8 iB423.6% &

/WA
R B F+ R 7 % B R %

459,200,0005%7‘1:(202355|E 87,700,0007% 7T)
ek 7 2 [ 48 U A #958.2% (20234 1 30.1%) ©

>
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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OUTLOOK

Supported by the Hong Kong government’s initiatives and
promotional efforts, various international activities and mega
events will be rolled out to enhance Hong Kong’s offerings and
attractiveness, solidifying Hong Kong’s position as an
international tourist destination. There is now comprehensive
infrastructure that enables more convenient and efficient
transportation options for Mainland Chinese tourists, making it
easier for them to visit Hong Kong and experience its unique
culture and hot spots. Particularly in light of the expanding
middle class, the Group believes that outbound tourism from
Mainland China will continue growing.

Macau is the world’s largest gaming market and a leading leisure
and entertainment hub in Asia. It is not just popular with
Mainland Chinese tourists, but also tourists from Hong Kong and
Taiwan, as well as other countries in Asia. With the enhanced
transportation infrastructure connecting to nearby cities and
Macau’s diversified leisure offerings and distinctive attractions,
the Group is optimistic about the sustainable long-term growth
of the Macau market.

The Group will continue strengthening its market presence by
enhancing the guest experience, implementing better customer
segmentation and capitalising on its brand reputation, which is
spearheaded by its experienced management team with a
proven track record in hospitality services.

Emperor Entertainment Hotel Limited 22 24R44EEBRAT]
Annual Report 2023/20244E4R
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FINANCIAL AND OTHER INFORMATION
Capital Structure, Liquidity and Financial

Resources

The Group continued to maintain a strong financial position with
aggregate of bank balances and cash, short-term bank deposits
and pledged bank deposits of HK$645.8 million (2023: HK$503.3
million) as at 31 March 2024, which were mainly denominated in
Hong Kong dollar. The Group funded its operations and capital
expenditure by cash generated from its operations and deposits
reserved at the banks. During the Year, the Group was not
exposed to significant foreign exchange rates as most of the
Group’s assets, liabilities and transactions were transacted at
and denominated in the functional currency of its foreign
operations.

The Group’s current assets and current liabilities as at 31 March
2024 were HKS705.4 million (2023: HKS$566.8 million) and
HKS$200.8 million (2023: HKS$253.2 million), respectively. As at 31
March 2024, the advances from non-controlling interests of
subsidiaries of the Company totalled HKS$39.5 million (2023:
HKS$39.5 million), which were denominated in Hong Kong dollar,
unsecured and interest-free, among which HK$39.0 million was
repayable at the discretion of non-controlling interests and
availability of surplus fund of a subsidiary, and the remaining
HKS0.5 million was repayable by another subsidiary after
payment of all operating expenses and payables including but
not limited to bank loans and third party loans which are due for
repayment together with the accrued interest. The Group was in
a net cash position as at 31 March 2024 and hence its gearing
ratio (calculated as net debt divided by total equity) was zero
(2023: zero).

Pledge of Assets

As at 31 March 2024, assets with carrying values of approximately
HKS$600.1 million (2023: HKS613.2 million) were pledged to a
bank as security for a banking facility of HK$419.7 million (2023:
HKS$408.7 million). The facility remained undrawn and available
as at 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023. In addition, the Group
has a bank deposit of HK$30.8 million (2023: HKS$65.9 million)
pledged as security deposit for obtaining a bank guarantee in the
amount of approximately Macau Patacas (“MOP”) 30.9 million
(equivalent to HKS$30.0 million) (2023: MOP64.5 million
(equivalent to HKS62.6 million)) in favour of SJM Resorts, S.A.
(“SIM”) for the Group’s fulfilment of all its obligations, as
stipulated under the service agreement and the addendum
between the Group and SJM. As at 31 March 2024, another bank
deposit of HKS0.3 million (2023: HKS$0.3 million) was pledged as
security deposit for the use of ferry ticket equipment provided by
a third party.

Emperor Entertainment Hotel Limited 2821244 HEHRAE]
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Proposed Acquisition of Property Interests

On 24 May 2024, an indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company entered into a sale and purchase agreement with a
direct wholly-owned subsidiary of Emperor International
Holdings Limited (‘Emperor International”) (“Vendor”) to
acquire the entire issued share capital of Star Omen Limited
(“Star Omen”) and its loan due to the Vendor (“Transaction”).
Star Omen and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as “Star
Omen Group”) mainly own a property situated at Nos. 20-26 Old
Bailey Street & No. 11 Chancery Lane, Central, Hong Kong, and
through the acquisition of Star Omen Group, the Group would
acquire the property, which is at an agreed value of HK$700.0
million by both parties. Subject to fulfillment of conditions
precedent, Star Omen Group will become indirect non-wholly
owned subsidiaries of the Company upon completion of the
acquisition. Details of the Transaction were set out in the joint
announcement of the Company and Emperor International dated
24 May 2024. As at the date of this report, the Transaction has
not yet been completed and is subject to the approval of the
Company’s independent shareholders at a special general
meeting tentatively to be held in July 2024.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION
POLICY

The Group’s number of employees as at 31 March 2024 was 630
(2023: 517). Total staff costs including Directors’ remuneration
and the other staff costs (which included severance payments)
for the Year were HK$296.2 million (2023: HKS$257.4 million). Each
employee’s remuneration was determined in accordance with
individual’s responsibilities, competence and skills, experience
and performance, as well as market pay levels. Staff benefits
include medical and life insurance, retirement benefits and other
competitive fringe benefits.

To provide incentive or reward to the staff, the Company has
adopted a share option scheme, particulars of which is set out in
the section headed “Share Options Scheme” from pages 136 to
138 of this annual report.

Emperor Entertainment Hotel Limited & 21244 EEBRAF)
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ESREREEBABZEE

Non-executive Director and Chairperson
LUK SIU MAN, SEMON, aged 68, a Non-executive Director of
the Company and the Chairperson of the Board. She joined the
Company in March 2000 and provides leadership for the Board.
Ms. Luk is also a non-executive director and the chairperson of
Emperor International (Stock Code: 163), which is an indirect
holding company of the Company. She worked in the banking
industry for almost 10 years. Ms. Luk graduated from The
University of Toronto with a Bachelor’s Degree in Commerce.

Executive Directors

WONG CHI FAI, aged 68, the Executive Director of the Company.
He joined the Company in 1991 and has been responsible for the
Group’s strategic planning, business growth and development
and overseeing the financial management of the Group. Mr. Wong
is the Chairman of the Executive Committee and a member of the
Remuneration Committee of the Company. He has over 30 years
of finance and management experience in different businesses
ranging from hotel and hospitality, property investment and
development, retailing of watch and jewellery, financial and
securities services, wholesaling and retailing of furniture, cinema
development and operation to entertainment production
and investment, artiste management as well as media and
publication. Mr. Wong is currently a director of Emperor
International, Emperor Watch & Jewellery Limited (Stock Code:
887) (“Emperor W&J”), Emperor Capital Group Limited (Stock
Code: 717) (“Emperor Capital”), Emperor Culture Group Limited
(Stock Code: 491) (“Emperor Culture”), Ulferts International
Limited (Stock Code: 1711) (“Ulferts”) and New Media Lab
Limited (Stock Code: 1284) (“New Media Lab”), all being listed
members of Emperor Group. He is a Certified Public Accountant
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a
fellow of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants.
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EFRSREBARZERE

FAN MAN SEUNG, VANESSA, aged 61, the Executive Director
of the Company. She joined the Company in 1991 and has been
responsible for the Group’s strategic planning, business growth
and development as well as overseeing different functions within
the Group. Ms. Fan is also the Chairperson of the Corporate
Governance Committee, a member of the Executive Committee
and the Nomination Committee of the Company as well as a
director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. She has over
35 years of corporate management experience in diversified
businesses ranging from hotel and hospitality, property
investment and development, retailing of watch and jewellery,
financial and securities services, wholesaling and retailing of
furniture, cinema development and operation to entertainment
production and investment, artiste management as well as
media and publication. Ms. Fan is currently a director of Emperor
International, Emperor W&J, Emperor Capital, Emperor Culture,
Ulferts and New Media Lab, all being listed members of Emperor
Group. She is a lawyer by profession in Hong Kong and a
qualified accountant, and holds a Master’s Degree in Business
Administration.

Independent Non-executive Directors
KWAN SHIN LUEN, SUSANNA, aged 57, was appointed as
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company in August
2015. She is the Chairperson of the Nomination Committee as
well as a member of the Audit Committee and the Corporate
Governance Committee of the Company. Ms. Kwan is also the
independent non-executive director of Hypebeast Limited, the
shares of which were listed on GEM of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”) previously (Stock Code:
8359) and the listing was transferred to the Main Board in March
2019 (Stock Code: 150). Ms. Kwan has a legal practice focusing
on corporate/commercial and corporate finance matters in Hong
Kong for more than 20 years, including mergers & acquisitions,
regulatory compliance, public offerings, private placement of
securities and open offers, joint ventures and securities related
compliance. She practices and specializes as a corporate finance
and legal and compliance lawyer. Ms. Kwan graduated from the
London School of Economics (London).
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LAl KA FUNG, MAY, aged 58, was appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company in August 2016. She is
the Chairperson of the Remuneration Committee as well as a
member of the Audit Committee and the Nomination Committee
of the Company. Ms. Lai is a Certified Public Accountant and
has been engaged in the audit field for more than 20 years. She
is a Principal Partner of May K.F. Lai & Co. and a Partner of H.H.
Liu & Co., Certified Public Accountants and S & S Professional
Group Limited. Ms. Lai is also an independent non-executive
director of Chinlink International Holdings Limited (Stock Code:
997). Ms. Lai is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and obtained a Master’s Degree of Arts in
International Accounting from City University of Hong Kong.

YEUNG MAN SUN (Former name: Yeung Hiu Chong and Yeung
Yiu Chong), aged 44, was appointed as an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company in August 2022. He is the
Chairman of the Audit Committee as well as a member of
the Remuneration Committee and the Corporate Governance
Committee of the Company. He is currently a senior management
of a Hong Kong listed company and runs his own certified
public accountants firm. He is also an independent non-
executive director of Sino Splendid Holdings Limited (Stock
Code: 8006). He was previously an independent non-executive
director of Simplicity Holding Limited (Stock Code: 8367)
from August 2021 to October 2023. All are listed companies
in Hong Kong. He has 20 years of experience in auditing,
taxation, financial management and advisory services field
for an international accounting firm, several corporations and
other listed companies. Mr. Yeung holds a Bachelor’s Degree of
Business Administration (Honours) in Accountancy from City
University of Hong Kong and a Master’s Degree in Corporate
Governance from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University. He is an
associate member of The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, The Chartered Governance Institute and The Hong
Kong Chartered Governance Institute as well as a member of the
Society of Registered Financial Planners.
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The Directors present their report and the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the Year.

Principal Activities

The Company is an investment holding company. The activities
of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 38 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Results and Dividends

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income on page 65 of this annual report.

The Directors recommended the payment of a final dividend
of HKS0.015 (2023: Nil) per share for the Year, amounting to
approximately HKS$17,830,000 (2023: Nil) to the shareholders
of the Company (“Shareholders”) whose names appear on
the register of members of the Company on 28 August 2024
(Wednesday), subject to the approval of the Shareholders at the
forthcoming annual general meeting to be held on 20 August
2024 (Tuesday) (“2024 AGM”).

Business Review and Performance

A fair review of the Group’s business, a discussion and analysis
of the Group’s performance during the Year, important events
occurred after the reporting period and an analysis of the likely
future development of the Group’s business are set out in the
Management Discussion and Analysis from pages 5 to 12 of this
annual report. Description of the principal risks and uncertainties
facing the Group are set out in the Corporate Governance Report
from pages 31 to 58 of this annual report and notes 31 and 32(b)
to the consolidated financial statements respectively.

In addition, an analysis of the Group’s performance during the
Year using financial key performance indicators is provided in
the Five-year Financial Summary on page 159. Discussion on the
Group’s environmental policy and performance, key relationships
with the Group’s key stakeholders as well as compliance with
relevant laws and regulations which have significant impact
on the Company are set out in the Environmental, Social and
Governance Report 2023/2024 of the Company.

Five-year Financial Summary

A summary of the results and assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years is set out on page 159 of this
annual report.
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Investment Properties

As at 31 March 2024, the Group revalued all of its investment
properties on an open market value basis. A decrease in fair
value amounting to HK$20,300,000 has been recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income.

Details of changes in the investment properties of the Group are
set out in note 14 to the consolidated financial statements.

A summary of investment properties of the Group as at 31 March
2024 is set out on page 160 of this annual report.

Property, Plant and Equipment

During the Year, the Group acquired property, plant and
equipment at a cost of HK$12,760,000.

Details of changes in the property, plant and equipment of
the Group are set out in note 15 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Share Capital

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during
the Year are set out in note 26 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of the
Company’s Listed Securities

During the Year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
securities.

Pre-emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Bye-laws, or the laws of Bermuda, which would oblige
the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
Shareholders.
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Reserves
Details of movements in the reserves of the Group during the Year
are set out on page 68 of this annual report.

Distributable Reserves

As at 31 March 2024, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution to the Shareholders, calculated in accordance with
the provisions of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, amounting
to HK$969,900,000 (2023: HK$935,127,000), of which HKS$0.015
has been proposed as a final dividend for the Year. In addition,
the Company’s share premium account in the amount of
HKS$436,765,000 (2023: HKS436,765,000) may be distributed in the
form of fully paid bonus shares.

Directors
The Directors during the Year and up to the date of this annual
report were:

Non-executive Director:
Ms. Luk Siu Man, Semon (Chairperson)

Executive Directors:
Mr. Wong Chi Fai
Ms. Fan Man Seung, Vanessa

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Ms. Kwan Shin Luen, Susanna

Ms. Lai Ka Fung, May

Mr. Yeung Man Sun

Biographical details of the Directors and senior management as
at the date of this annual report are set out from pages 13 to 15
of this annual report. Details of Directors’ remuneration are set
out in note 10 to the consolidated financial statements.

In accordance with Bye-laws 84(1) and 84(2) of the Company’s
Bye-laws, Ms. Fan Man Seung, Vanessa (“Ms. Vanessa Fan”) and
Ms. Kwan Shin Luen, Susanna (“Ms. Susanna Kwan”) shall retire
by rotation at the 2024 AGM. Ms. Susanna Kwan who served as
independent non-executive director of the Company (“INED(s)”)
for almost 9 years, being eligible but does not offer herself for
re-election. Ms. Vanessa Fan, being eligible, offers herself for
re-election and does not have an unexpired service contract
with the Group which is not determined by the Group within one
year without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).
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Management Contracts

No contracts, other than employment contracts, concerning the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial
part of the Group’s business were entered into or existed during
the Year.

Permitted Indemnity Provisions

During the Year and up to the date of this annual report, the
Company has in force the permitted indemnity provisions which
are provided for in the Company’s Bye-laws and in the directors
and officers liability insurance maintained for the Group in
respect of potential liability and costs associated with legal
proceedings that may be brought against the Directors and the
directors of the Group respectively.

Emolument Policy

The emoluments of the Directors shall be decided by the
Board as recommended by the Remuneration Committee
having regard to a written remuneration policy (which ensures
a clear link to business strategy and a close alignment with
the Shareholders’ interest and current market best practice).
Remuneration should be paid with reference to the Board’s
corporate goals and objectives, the salaries paid by comparable
companies, time commitment and responsibilities of the
executive and non-executive Directors, internal equity of
employment conditions across the Group and applicability of
performance-based remuneration. The Directors’ fees are paid in
line with market practice. No individual should determine his or
her own remuneration.

Employees’ remuneration was determined in accordance with
individual’s responsibility, competence and skills, experience
and performance as well as market pay level. Remuneration
package includes, as the case may be, basic salaries, Directors’
fees, housing allowances, contribution to pension schemes,
discretionary bonus relating to the financial performance of
the Group and individual performance, ad hoc rewards, share
options and other competitive fringe benefits such as medical
and life insurances. Details of the emoluments of the Directors
and the five highest paid individuals of the Group are set out in
note 10 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests

in Securities

As at 31 March 2024, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executives of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”)) as recorded in the
register maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of
the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors adopted by the Company (“‘EEH Securities Code”)
were as follows:

(A) Long position interests in the Company
Ordinary shares of HK$0.0001 each of the Company
(“Shares”)

Capacity/
Name of Director Nature of interests
EENR 213 EmEE
Ms. Luk Siu Man, Semon Interest of spouse
(“Ms. Semon Luk”) o B =

EhEit(TERL)

Note: These Shares were held by Emperor Entertainment Hotel
Holdings Limited, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of
Emperor International. Emperor International is a company
with its shares listed in Hong Kong and as at 31 March 2024,
approximately 74.71% of its issued shares was held by Emperor
International Group Holdings Limited (“Emperor International
Group Holdings”). The entire issued share of Emperor
International Group Holdings was wholly-owned by Albert Yeung
Holdings Limited (“AY Holdings”) which was held by First Trust
Services AG (“First Trust Services”), being the trustee of a
private discretionary trust founded by Dr. Yeung Sau Shing, Albert
(“Dr. Yeung”) who was deemed to have interests in the said
Shares. By virtue of being the spouse of Dr. Yeung, Ms. Semon Luk
also had deemed interests in the same Shares.
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(B) Long position interests in associated

corporations of the Company

Ordinary shares

Name of Directors

ERNS

Ms. Semon Luk

BEit

Ms. Vanessa Fan

EBat

Note: Emperor International, Emperor W&J, Emperor Culture, Ulferts
and New Media Lab are companies with their shares listed on
the Stock Exchange. These shares were ultimately owned by the
respective private discretionary trusts which were also founded
by Dr. Yeung. By virtue of being the spouse of Dr. Yeung, Ms.
Semon Luk had deemed interests in the same shares.

Name of associated
corporations

HBEER B

Emperor International
HEER

Emperor W&J
HEERKE

Emperor Culture

HEXEEX

Ulferts
Blt

New Media Lab
HELE

Emperor International
RERRK

(BT 2B HBZBZHE

i
ZiER

Number Approximate %

of shares of issued

Capacity/Nature of interested voting shares

interests FEiEEZ HERTE

-1V $:1:3:1 RHEYE BREERGHES%

Interest of spouse 2,747,611,223 74,71
[ (Note)
(i)

-Ditto- 4.298,630,000 63.41
- Lk- (Note)
(i3t

-Ditto- 2,371,313,094 73.80
- E- (Note)
(H3t)

-Ditto- 600,000,000 75.00
- E- (Note)
(#iz)

-Ditto- 315,000,000 52.50
-E - (Note)
(13t

Beneficial owner 10,500,000 0.29

BEoBEA

Mt HEER - HEEEKRE - HEXE
EX BRERTEEITHERHBI
BT EHHAE - ZFRHGTHHEE
MM ABBESE(FHEBE IR &
REER - ERNEREIRABETZES
REESEEHEBDROOER -
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Share Options

The Company has adopted a share option scheme on 19
September 2023 (“Share Option Scheme”), details of which are
set out in note 27 to the consolidated financial statements. No
share option was granted, exercised, cancelled or lapsed under
the Share Option Scheme since its adoption.

The number of options available for grant under the scheme
mandate limit and the service provider sublimit under the Share
Option Scheme were 118,849,098 and 59,424,549 respectively at
the date of adoption of the Share Option Scheme and the end of
the Year.

Equity-linked Agreements

Other than the Share Option Scheme, no equity linked
agreement was entered into by the Company during the Year or
subsisted at the end of the Year.

Arrangements to Purchase Shares or
Debentures

Other than the Share Option Scheme as stated above, at no time
during the Year was the Company, any of its holding companies,
subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries, a party to any arrangements
to enable the Directors or chief executives of the Company
or their spouses or children under 18 years of age to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures
of, the Company or any other body corporate.
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Other Persons’ Interests in Shares and
Underlying Shares

So far as is known to any Directors or chief executives of
the Company, as at 31 March 2024, the following persons or
corporations (other than the Directors or chief executives of the
Company) who had, or were deemed or taken to have interests or
short positions in the Shares or underlying Shares as recorded in
the register required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO (“DI
Register”) were as follows:

Long positions in the Shares

Capacity/
Name of Shareholders Nature of interests
RREE B B HmEE
Emperor International Interest in a controlled corporation
HEE2ER REEGZEZ#ES
AY Holdings Interest in a controlled corporation
HBERERZER REEGZEZ#ED

First Trust Services

WABBEREZRTEA

Dr. Yeung

iz TWABBIEFEZRIZA

Note: These Shares were the same Shares of which Ms. Semon Luk had
deemed interests as those set out under Section (A) of “Directors’ and

Chief Executives’ Interests in Securities” above.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2024, the Directors or
chief executives of the Company were not aware of any other
person or corporation (other than the Directors and chief
executives of the Company) who had, or were deemed or taken to
have, any interests or short positions in any Shares or underlying
Shares as recorded in the DI Register.

Directors’ Interests in Competing
Business

As at 31 March 2024, none of the Directors nor their respective
associates was interested in any business which was considered
to compete or was likely to compete, either directly or indirectly,
with the business of the Group as required to be disclosed
pursuant to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”).

Emperor Entertainment Hotel Limited #2244 EEFRAE
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Directors’ Material Interests in
Transactions, Arrangements or
Contracts and Connected Transactions

During the Year, the Group had the following connected
transactions with connected persons (as defined in the Listing
Rules) of the Company and certain Directors had material
interests, directly or indirectly in such transactions:

(i) Continuing Connected Transactions — 2020
Master Leasing Agreement (“2020 MLA”)

Date:

Parties:

Term:

Nature:

24

3 December 2020
(i) The Company
(i) Emperor W&J

From 1 April 2021 to 31 March 2024

The 2020 MLA sets out the framework
of the terms governing all existing and
future tenancy/licensing transaction(s)
(“Tenancy Transaction(s)”) regarding
leasing of certain retail shops to Emperor
W&J with aggregate tenancy annual caps
being set for each of the financial years
ended 31 March 2022, 2023 and 2024
(“Aggregate Tenancy Annual Caps”).

Pursuant to the 2020 MLA, relevant
members of the Group and any member(s)
of Emperor W&J may from time to
time enter into any definitive leasing
agreement(s) in relation to any Tenancy
Transactions (“Definitive Leasing
Agreement(s)”). The terms of each
of the Definitive Leasing Agreements
shall be on normal commercial terms
or on terms which are no less favorable
available to the Group than terms offered
by independent third parties. The terms
and rental shall be subject to arm’s length
negotiation and be determined based on
the condition of the properties and with
reference to the then prevailing market
rents on property(ies) comparable in
location, area and permitted use.

Emperor Entertainment Hotel Limited & 21244 EEBRAF)
Annual Report 2023/2024 %k

REFE > *EBB

BARNBMEAL(E
EREHHA)ETFHMER S ME
FTEERARRSTERABEERE
A

(i) FF4ERAIE3Z 5 — 20205 4870
EiE(M0205 48 E1%:3))

HER: 202012H3H

HES I () B /N

(i) HREBHKKH
FH:

H2021F4H81HEE
2024%3831H

2020 R EWHEEHT
HEMHEEETZSESH
FTHEBEBRKRBEZFAB
HERXRKEE BiE
R (MHERZ)) WESE
f&F > WIEE20224F ~

20235 522024%3831H
R FEETILLHEE
%J‘E)’J:FE(F%*EEEEJ:

J o

HE:

RIR2020F MIEE 1 -
AEBEMEMBREEER
2SR IR E X R P B R A B
MAEMEER T IER
EXBERZ (EXHEE
W) - KIEXBEWE
Z AR R g B — AR i AR
MHEAERBLFE=F
MYAERZIRREIIL ©
KR EERFE
ERE > WEREZEY
ERRKREEZEFMREN
B HRERFABEZY
XERTHZEESETE -



ESERS

Connected
relationship
and Directors’
interests:

Announcement:

Aggregate
amount:

Remark:

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

As the Company and Emperor W&J
were both indirectly controlled by the
respective private discretionary trusts
founded by Dr. Yeung, Emperor W&J
was a deemed connected person of
the Company under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules. Ms. Semon Luk had
deemed interest in the transactions by
virtue of being an associate of the eligible
beneficiaries of the aforesaid private
discretionary trust controlling Emperor
W&J.

3 December 2020

During the Year, the aggregate amount of
the Tenancy Transactions with Emperor
W&J or its relevant members was
HKS$3,699,000.

With the expiration of the 2020 MLA, the
Company entered into a new master
agreement with Emperor W&J on 23
March 2023, details of which are set out in
the announcement of the Company dated
14 July 2023.
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(ii) Continuing Connected Transactions —
Service Agreement (“Service Agreement”)
in relation to the operation of Grand
Emperor Hotel

Date:

Parties and
connected
relationship:

Term:

Nature:

26

30 December 2022 and 26 April 2023 (for
an addendum)

(i) Tin Hou Limited (“Tin Hou”), an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company

SJM, a company incorporated in
Macau, which was principally engaged
in gaming business in Macau and
was one of the six concessionaires/
sub-concessionaires licensed to carry
on casino operations in Macau. SJM
had 19.99% equity interest in Luck
United Holdings Limited, an indirect
non wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, and was a connected
person of the Company by virtue of
being a substantial shareholder of a
subsidiary of the Company.

From 1 January 2023 to 31 December
2025

The provision of services including
management services and promotion
services by Tin Hou to SJM in relation to
the operation of Grand Emperor Hotel
whereas Tin Hou shall be entitled to
percentage sharing of the gross gaming
revenue in respect of the monthly
operating performance of the gaming
area of Grand Emperor Hotel and bear
all necessary operational expenses in
relation to the operation of the gaming
area.
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Announcements: 30 December 2022, 21 February 2023 and

25 January 2024

Receipt: During the Year, the Group’s receipt
amount under the Service Agreement was
HK$459,150,000.

Remark: As supplemented by the addendum,

several clauses of the Service Agreement
were partially amended which did
not vary materially from its original
provisions.

Compliance with Disclosure

Requirements

Save as “Rental income from a related company” (under the 2020
MLA) in the amount of HK$3,699,000 for the Year as shown in note
36 to the consolidated financial statements which constituted
a continuing connected transaction (“CCT(s)”) of the Company
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, all other transactions
as shown in that note are connected transactions exempted
from announcement, reporting, annual review and independent
Shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules. The Company has complied with the disclosure
requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules
in respect of the above non-exempt connected transactions.
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Independent Auditor’s Letter on
Non-exempt CCTs

The Company’s independent auditor was engaged to report on
the non-exempt CCTs of the Group in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical
Financial Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740
(Revised) “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions
under the Hong Kong Listing Rules”(“Auditor’s Letter”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

The independent auditor issued an unqualified conclusion in
respect of the non-exempt CCTs of the Group in accordance with
Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules.

Confirmation of Independent
Non-executive Directors on Non-exempt
CCTs

Pursuant to Rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, the INEDs had reviewed

the non-exempt CCTs and the Auditor’s Letter and confirmed that
these transactions had been entered into by the Group:

(i) inthe ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(i) on normal commercial terms or better (as the case may be);
and

(iii) according to the respective agreements governing them on
terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
Shareholders as a whole.
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Save as disclosed above, there was no transaction, arrangement
or contract which was significant in relation to the Group’s
business to which the Company or any of its holding companies,
subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party and in which a
Director or his/her connected entity had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the Year or
at any time during the Year.

Major Customers and Suppliers

During the Year, the aggregate amount of revenue attributable
to the Group’s five largest customers represented 63.4% (2023:
42.4%) of the Group’s total revenue. The largest customer
accounted for 58.2% (2023: 34.5%) of the Group’s total revenue
and is the operator of mass market hall and slot machine hall
who paid fee for the services rendered by the Group during the
Year.

During the Year, the aggregate amount of purchases and services
received attributable to the Group’s five largest suppliers
represented less than 30% of total purchases and services
received by the Group during the Year.

None of the Directors, their close associates or Shareholders
(who, to the knowledge of the Directors own more than 5% of the
Company’s issued share capital), had a beneficial interest in the
share capital of any of the above major customers and suppliers
of the Group.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on the information publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, as at the latest practicable
date prior to the issue of this annual report, there was sufficient
public float of at least 25% of the Company’s issued Shares as
required under the Listing Rules.
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Independent Auditor 35 3L #% S4B

Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu will retire and a resolution for EEZ) e B EMR H FsHEI T IB(E > — 18
their re-appointment as independent auditor of the Company #HHZEEWNZEEAL AT BILIZEETZ

will be proposed at the 2024 AGM. REZERN2024FREBFAGLIRERE
On behalf of the Board RREES

Luk Siu Man, Semon ZE

Chairperson EhE

Hong Kong, 24 June 2024 &% > 2024F6824H
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The Board is committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate
governance for the Company so as to ensure “Accountability,
Responsibility and Transparency” towards the Shareholders,
investors, employees as well as other stakeholders of the Company.

The Directors have adopted various policies to ensure
compliance with the code provisions of the Corporate
Governance Code (“CG Code”) as set out in Appendix Cl1 to
the Listing Rules so as to having effective application of the
principles of good corporate governance. During the Year, the
Company fully complied with all code provisions of the CG Code.

CORPORATE CULTURE AND STRATEGY

The Company is committed to cultivating a corporate culture,
focusing on four pillars, namely customer centricity, excellence
in services, people first and positivity, which is underpinned by
its purpose and values that enable employees at all levels of
the Group to thrive and meet their full potentials by acting in a
lawful, ethical and responsible manner that allows the Company
to deliver sustainable long-term performance and operate in a
way that benefits society and the environment.

The Company’s purpose and values serve as a guide for
employees’ conduct and behaviours, ensuring that they are
integrated throughout the Company’s operational practices,
workplace policies and practices and stakeholder relationships:

2
\§/

Purpose -
— REMER
T~ B8
) E thical
To engage and delight our stakeholders for success M otivation

FRERBRRFNGE > ERI

E xcellence

R esourceful

O penness

R esponsible
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The management is responsible for setting the tone and shaping
the corporate culture of the Company, as well as defining the
purpose, values and strategic direction of the Group, which are
under review by the Board. Taking into account the corporate
culture is reflected in various contexts, such as workforce
engagement, employee retention and training, legal and
regulatory compliance, staff safety, wellbeing and support, the
culture, purpose, values and strategy of the Group are aligned
with one another.

THE BOARD

The Company is headed by the Board which is responsible for the
leadership, control and promotion of the success of the Group in
the interests of the Shareholders by directing and supervising its
affairs and by formulating strategic directions and monitoring the
financial and management performance of the Group.

Board Composition and Diversity

The Board currently comprises six Directors, with one
Non-executive Director who is also the Chairperson of the Board,
two Executive Directors and three INEDs. Names and biographical
details of the members of the Board are set out on pages 13
and 15 of this annual report under “Biographies of Directors
and Senior Management” section. All of them possess the skills,
experience and expertise either in the same industry or relevant
to the management of the business of the Group.

To ensure independent views and input are available to the
Board, the following mechanisms were established:

e sufficient number of INEDs in a total of three, representing
more than one-third of the Board;

* no INED has served the Board for more than 9 years;

e separation of the role of the Chairperson and the chief
executive ensures that there is a balance of power and
authority; and

e annual meeting between the Chairperson and all INEDs
without presence of other Directors provides an effective
platform for the Chairperson to listen to independent views
on various issues concerning the Group.

During the Year, the Board reviewed the implementation of these
mechanisms and determined that they remain effective.
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The Company also adopted the Board Diversity Policy setting out
the approach to achieve a diverse Board with a balance of skills,
experience and diversity of perspectives to the business nature
of the Company. In designing the Board’s composition, Board
diversity has been considered from a wide range of aspects,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge
and length of service, and any other factors that the Board may
consider relevant and applicable from time to time. The merits
and contribution that will bring to the Board for any Director
proposed for re-election or any candidate nominated to be
Director will also be assessed, taking into account the Company’s
corporate strategy and the mix of skills, knowledge, experience
and diversity needed in the future.

The current Board composition reflects a diverse mix of
educational background, professional knowledge, industry
experience and length of service. The diversity mix of the Board
as at 31 March 2024 is summarised as follows:

(i) Board Composition, Gender Distribution, Age
Distribution and Length of Service

Number of Directors

EEAH
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(ii) Directors’ Skills and Experience

Areas of Experience

EER AR

Related Industry Knowledge/Experience
MHETEMH KB

Business Management

FHERE

Legal/Regulatory

EREE

Financial & Accounting

MEEgs

Strategic Planning & Risk Management
SRR AR 81 B B IR

The Board’s gender diversity level is relatively high compared to
other companies listed on the Stock Exchange, with four female
directors out of six (67%). During the Year, the Nomination
Committee recommended and the Board approved to keep
a target of having no less than 25% female directors on the
Board. The Nomination Committee was of the view that
the current gender diversity of the Board was appropriate,
balanced and exceeding the target set. Therefore, no timeline
or plan was proposed for further enhancing the gender
diversity target of the Board for the time being. The Nomination
Committee will continue reviewing the composition of the
Board to maintain diversity.

As at 31 March 2024, our total workforce comprised of
45% female and 55% male, whereas senior management
comprised of 10% female and 90% male. The current gender
diversity of workforce was appropriate taking into account
the business models and operational needs.

The term of appointment of the INEDs is subject to
retirement by rotation and re-election provisions under the
Bye-laws of the Company and the Listing Rules. Based on
the annual review conducted by the Nomination Committee,
the Board considered each of them to be independent with
reference to the factors as set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules.

Board Process

Other than regular Board meetings held during the Year,
additional Board meetings, or meetings of Board committees
established by the Board to consider specific matters, were
convened, when necessary.
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The attendance of the Directors at the meetings during the Year is
set out below:

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

AEEEFHREERZBERHEIIWOT:

No. of meeting attended/held

tEeH/2neERy
Corporate
Audit Remuneration  Nomination  Governance Executive General

Board  Committee  Committee  Committee  Committee  Committee meeting
Name of Directors 133 Bt EBHERT GMERT REEAT GEERERT WAEAT 3PN |
Non-executive Director EuiES
Ms. Semon Luk Byt 55(C) - - - - - 11
Executive Directors WirES
Mr. Wong Chi Fai ESERY 55 - 1N - - 10/10(C) il
Ms. Vanessa Fan BxT 55 - - 1N 11(C) 10/10 il
Independent Non-executive Directors BUEUGES
bs. Susanna Kwan Bat 55 33 - 11(0) il - 1
M. La Ka Fung, My RRE4T 55 33 1 i - - i
Mr. Yeung Man Sun BRELE 55 33(0) 1N - il - il
Total number of megting(s) held fegz88 5 3 1 1 1 10 1

C: Chairperson/Chairman of the Board/Committee

During the Year, the Chairperson held a meeting with INEDs
without the presence of Executive Directors in compliance with
code provision C.2.7 of the CG Code.

The Company received biannual confirmation from each Director
that he/she has given sufficient time and attention to the affairs
of the Company during the Year. Directors also disclosed to
the Company the changes, if any, in the number and nature
of offices they held in public companies or organisations and
other significant commitment, including the identity of the
public companies or organisations and an indication of the time
involved.

During the Year, Ms. Semon Luk acted as the Chairperson of the
Board who provided leadership to the Board. The day-to-day
management of the Group was delegated by the Board to the
Executive Directors, Mr. Wong Chi Fai and Ms. Vanessa Fan who
were responsible for the Group’s strategic planning, business
growth and development. The segregation of duties made the
Board and the operation of the Group function effectively.

Emperor Entertainment Hotel Limited 2821244 HEHRAE]

CEF® Z8EIF

REFER > REEEZEEBTRZTA
HWXFEC2TF > TFEERBIUIIFRNITE
EAERTEERERFEZBRTEREE -

AABDENEBYEREIEFTHHNE
RE HEIEREAFEENLENERE
RAEADTHMEARBDEH EFTFEMAE
AERERFN QR AT A TR
BRNHERMEUAKREMERKENE
BB BEARARHEMANZER
BTHETAERBHR Y ROERE -

REFER BEXITEREIEFTEEXE
FESEFRT -AEBENBEEEHES
EERTHATEFESEEAERER L
REEEFAEBRZRIEEE - EHFER
RER -BBEDPICEFEREEEN
EEAYMMEE -

Annual Report 2023/2024 ££%5

35



—

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

EXEERHE

If a Director has conflict of interest in a matter to be considered
by the Board which the Board has determined to be material, the
matter will be dealt with by a physical Board meeting rather than
a written resolution. That Director will abstain from voting on the
relevant Board resolution and he/she shall not be counted in the
quorum present at such Board meeting.

Procedures are also put in place for each Director to have
access to supporting papers and relevant information for
each scheduled meeting. All Directors also have access to the
services of the Company Secretary and her team, and may take
independent professional advice upon request, at the Company’s
expense.

Induction and Training for Directors

Newly appointed Directors will receive a comprehensive,
formal and tailored induction on appointment. Besides, the
Company provides Directors with regular updates on changes
to and developments of the Group’s business, and on the latest
developments in the laws, rules and regulations relating to
Directors’duties and responsibilities to help them make informed
decisions and discharge their duties and responsibilities as
Directors.

During the Year, each Director participated in continuous
professional development by attending seminars/workshops/
reading materials on the following topics to develop and refresh
their knowledge and skills and provided a record of training to
the Company:

Name of Directors

EEns

Ms. Semon Luk
B+

Mr. Wong Chi Fai
ESERE

Ms. Vanessa Fan

BRE

Ms. Susanna Kwan

Fifogun

Ms. Lai Ka Fung, May
BRERL

Mr. Yeung Man Sun
BRIRTE
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BOARD COMMITTEES

To assist the Board in execution of its duties and facilitate
effective management, certain functions of the Board have
been delegated by the Board to the Executive Committee, Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee, Nomination Committee
and Corporate Governance Committee mainly. Clear written
terms of reference of all the Board Committees are given to the
respective members of these Committees.

1. Executive Committee
The Executive Committee consists of all Executive Directors,
namely Mr. Wong Chi Fai (Chairman of the Committee) and
Ms. Vanessa Fan. It has all powers and authorities of the
Board except the following major matters as set out in a
“Formal Schedule on matters reserved for and delegated by
the Board”:

determining the Group’s objectives and strategies;

ii. approving annual and interim results and financial
reporting;

iii. declaring or recommending payment of dividends or
other distributions;

iv. approving major changes that require notification by
announcement under the Listing Rules;

v. approving publication of announcements for notifiable
transactions under the Listing Rules;

vi. approving non-exempt connected transactions/non-exempt
CCTs (other than those transactions took place from time to
time under the master agreement(s) previously approved
by the Board/Shareholders (as the case may be)) under the
Listing Rules; and

vii. approving major capital restructuring and issue of new
securities of the Company.
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To advise and assist the Executive Committee on the
formulation and implementation of the environment,
social and governance (“ESG”) initiatives of the Group,
a sub-committee under the Executive Committee known
as the ESG Committee was set up. The ESG Committee
consists of representatives from operation and supporting
departments and the Executive Committee. It has the powers
and authorities as delegated by the Executive Committee
to formulate and execute relevant ESG action plan, and
assess and make recommendations on matters concerning
the Group’s sustainability development and ESG risks and
opportunities.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee consists of three INEDs, namely Mr.
Yeung Man Sun (Chairman of the Committee), Ms. Susanna
Kwan and Ms. Lai Ka Fung, May.

The major roles and functions of the Audit Committee are set
out in its terms of reference which include duties specified
in the CG Code and are posted on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company.

A summary of the work performed by the Audit Committee
during the Year is set out as follows:

reviewed with the management/finance personnel and/
or the external auditor the effectiveness of audit process
and the accounting principles and practices adopted by
the Group, and the accuracy and fairness of the annual
consolidated financial statements for the financial year
ended 31 March 2023 (“Previous Year”) and the interim
consolidated financial statements for the six months
ended 30 September 2023;

ii. reviewed with the senior management and finance
personnel the effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control systems of the Group for the Previous
Year;

iii. performed an annual review of the non-exempt CCTs of
the Group for the Previous Year;

iv. recommended to the Board on the re-appointment of
independent auditor at the 2023 annual general meeting
(2023 AGM”);

v. reviewed the audit fees and the fees for non-audit
services payable to the independent auditor;
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vi. reviewed the independence of the independent auditor
and approved its engagement;

vii. approved the audit plan for the Year;
viii. reviewed the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications
and experience, training programmes and budget of

the Group’s accounting, internal audit and financial
reporting function; and

ix. recommended to the Board on the formal adoption of
policy on use of external auditor for non-audit services
of the Company.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee consists of three members,
namely Ms. Lai Ka Fung, May (Chairperson of the Committee)
and Mr. Yeung Man Sun, both being INEDs, and Mr. Wong Chi
Fai, being an Executive Director.

The major roles and functions of the Remuneration
Committee are set out in its terms of reference which include
duties specified in the CG Code and are posted on the
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

A summary of the work performed by the Remuneration
Committee during the Year is set out as follows:

reviewed the Directors’ fees and made recommendation
to the Board;

ii. reviewed the current remuneration structure/package
of the Executive Directors and senior management
and recommended the Board to approve their specific
packages; and

iii. recommended to the Board on the adoption of Share
Option Scheme.

Before recommendation to the Board, the Remuneration
Committee has reviewed and assessed the remuneration
package of the Directors with reference to the Group’s
operating results, duties and level of responsibility of the
Directors and the prevailing market conditions. Details of the
remuneration of each of the Directors for the Year are set out
in note 10 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Nomination Committee
The Nomination Committee consists of three members,
namely Ms. Susanna Kwan (Chairperson of the Committee)
and Ms. Lai Ka Fung, May, both being INEDs, and Ms. Vanessa
Fan, being an Executive Director.

The major roles and functions of the Nomination Committee
are set out in its terms of reference which include duties
specified in the CG Code and are posted on the websites of
the Stock Exchange and the Company.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for formulating
policy and making recommendations to the Board on
nomination, appointment and re-appointment of Directors,
and Board succession pursuant to the Nomination Policy
adopted by the Company.

The Nomination Policy aims at assisting the Nomination
Committee in identifying and nominating suitable
candidates for directorship based on the Board Diversity
Policy and sets out the nomination criteria and the
nomination procedures for (i) nominating new Director to fill
a casual vacancy on the Board; (ii) making recommendation
to Directors and Shareholders regarding any Director
proposed for election or re-election at general meeting; and
(iii) nomination by Shareholders on election of new Director.

The Nomination Committee may identify potential
candidates from any source as it may consider appropriate
and evaluate them by considering various factors, including
their professional expertise, industry and business
experience, time commitments, potential contributions to
board diversity, material conflict of interest with the Group (if
any) and independence (for INEDs). The Committee will then
make recommendation of suitable candidates to the Board
for consideration of appointment. In case of reappointment
of existing Directors who will retire at an annual general
meeting (“AGM”), the Committee will review the retirement
by rotation of Directors and make recommendations to the
Board accordingly.
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A summary of the work performed by the Nomination
Committee during the Year is set out as follows:

reviewed the structure, size, composition and diversity
of the Board;

ii. reviewed the Board Diversity Policy;

iii. reviewed the mechanisms implemented regarding
independent views of the Board;

iv. reviewed the independence of INEDs;

v. reviewed Directors’ time commitment in performing
their duties as Directors;

vi. made recommendation to the Board on the re-election
of Directors at the 2023 AGM; and

vii. reviewed the gender diversity target at Board level.

Corporate Governance Committee

The Corporate Governance Committee (“CG Committee”)
consists of five members, namely Ms. Vanessa Fan
(Chairperson of the Committee), being an Executive Director,
Ms. Susanna Kwan and Mr. Yeung Man Sun, both being
INEDs, a representative from company secretarial function
and a representative from finance and accounts function.

The specific written terms of reference of the CG Committee
is available on the Company’s website. The primary duties
of the CG Committee are (i) developing and reviewing the
policies and practices on corporate governance of the
Company (“CG Policy”) and making recommendations to
the Board; (ii) reviewing and monitoring the policies and
practices of the Company on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements; (iii) developing, reviewing and
monitoring the codes of conduct applicable to Directors
and relevant employees of the Group regarding dealings
in the Company’s securities; (iv) reviewing and monitoring
the training and continuous professional development of
Directors and senior management; and (v) reviewing the
Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in
this report.
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A summary of the work performed by the CG Committee
during the Year is set out as follows:

reviewed the CG Policy;

ii. reviewed the policies and practices on compliance with
legal and regulatory requirements;

iii. reviewed the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

iv. reviewed the codes of conduct applicable to Directors
and relevant employees of the Group; and

v. reviewed the Company’s compliance with the CG Code
and disclosure in Corporate Governance Report.

COMPANY SECRETARY

During the Year, the Company Secretary, being an employee of
the Company, duly complied with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules
by taking no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training.

SECURITIES TRANSACTION OF
DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the EEH Securities Code as its own
code of conduct regarding securities transactions by Directors
on no less exacting terms than the required standards as set out
in Appendix C3 to the Listing Rules regarding the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers. Having
made specific enquiry to all Directors, all of them confirmed that
they had complied with the required standard of dealings as set
out in the EEH Securities Code throughout the Year.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Financial Reporting

The Directors acknowledged their responsibilities to prepare
the annual consolidated financial statements of the Group and
other financial disclosures required under the Listing Rules.
The management has provided all members of the Board with
monthly updates on internal consolidated financial statements
which give a balanced and understandable assessment of the
Group’s performance, position and prospects.
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In preparing the consolidated financial statements for the
Year, the Board adopted appropriate accounting policies and
applied them consistently, made judgment and estimates that
were prudent and reasonable and ensured the consolidated
financial statements were prepared on a “going concern” basis
(with supporting assumptions or qualifications as necessary)
and showed a true view of the state of affairs of the Group for
the Year. The management had provided sufficient explanation
and information to the Board on the consolidated financial
statements to enable it to make an informed assessment of the
financial and other information put before it for approval. The
independent auditor of the Company had made a statement
about their reporting responsibilities in the Independent
Auditor’s Report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

A. Goals and Objectives

Internal control is fundamental to the successful operation
and day-to-day running of a business and it assists a
company in achieving its business objectives. Internal
control policies and procedures within the Group are
updated regularly with the primary objective of providing
general guidance and recommendations on a basic
framework of risk management and internal control systems
(“Control Systems”).

A review has been conducted on (i) the Group’s internal
control measures and procedures covering all material
controls, including financial, operational and compliance
controls; and (ii) risk management functions in the principal
subsidiaries of the Company for the Year as follows:

The Board is responsible to ensure that the Group
establishes and maintains appropriate and effective Control
Systems. Such Control Systems are designed to manage
rather than eliminate risks of failure to achieve business
objectives, and can only provide reasonable, but not
absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The key objectives of the Control Systems include:
— safeguarding assets;

— ensuring completeness, accuracy and validity of
financial records and reports;

— promoting adherence to policies, procedures,
regulations and laws; and

— promoting effectiveness and efficiency of operations.
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B. Internal Control

(1) Governance Control
The control structure of the Control Systems is set out as
follows:

44

The Board

responsible for the Control Systems and reviewing
their effectiveness;

oversee the Control Systems on an ongoing basis
with the assistance of the Audit Committee;

ensure maintenance of appropriate and effective
Control Systems;

define management structure with clear lines of
responsibility and limits of authority; and

determine the nature and extent of significant risks
(including the ESG risks) that the Group is willing
to take in achieving the strategic objectives and
formulate the Group’s risk management strategies.

Audit Committee

review and discuss the Control Systems with the
management annually to ensure that the management
has performed its duty to maintain effective Control
Systems. This discussion also includes the adequacy of
resources, staff qualifications and experience, training
programmes and budget of the Group’s accounting,
internal audit and financial reporting function;

review the nature and extent of significant risks
(including ESG risks), and the Group’s ability to
respond to changes in its business and the external
environment;

review and discuss annually with significant control
failings or weaknesses that are identified by the
auditors; and

consider major findings on internal control matters
(if any) raised by internal and independent auditors
and make recommendations to the Board.
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Executive Committee

with the assistance of the ESG Committee, review
the effectiveness of ESG-related risk management
and the Control Systems and report to the Audit
Committee for its review.

The management (including heads of business units,
departments and divisions)

design and implement the Control Systems’
policies and procedures duly endorsed by senior
management and the Board;

monitor the Control Systems properly and ensure
the Control Systems are executed effectively;

monitor risks and take measures to mitigate risks in
their day-to-day operations;

give prompt response to, and follow up the findings
on internal control matters raised by internal or
independent auditors;

prepare organisation charts to show the reporting
relationships within the operation and management
to establish lines of responsibilities; and

provide confirmation to the Board on the
effectiveness of the Control Systems.

Internal Audit Department

carry out the analysis and independent appraisal
of the adequacy and effectiveness of the Control
Systems in respect of all material controls, including
financial, operational and compliance aspects;

alert the management to the audit review
findings or irregularities and advise them on the
implementation of necessary steps and actions to
enhance the internal controls of the Group; and

report the results of internal audit reviews and
agreed action plans to the Audit Committee and the
Board on a regular basis.
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(2) Operational Control
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The management is responsible for analysing the
control environment, identified risks pertaining thereto,
and implemented various controls therein as follows:

i. Approach taken: The management communicates
with relevant staff, reviews relevant documentation
of the Control Systems and evaluates findings
of any deficiencies in the design of the Group’s
Control Systems, then provides recommendations
for improvement and assesses the effectiveness of
implementation of such recommendations, where
appropriate. The scope and findings of the review
on the Control Systems will be reported to and
reviewed by the Audit Committee annually.

ii. Procedure manuals and operational guidelines:
They are in place to safeguard the assets against
unauthorised use or disposition and ensuring
maintenance of proper accounting records that are
in compliance with the applicable laws, rules and
regulations for the provision of reliable financial
information for internal use and/or external
publication.

iii. Management information system and technology:
To control over the business activities, it allows
close tracking of various inputs and outputs of the
Group’s business such as inventory, products and
customer relationship and human resources. It also
tracks audit trails in the authorisation system, under
which permissions and responsibility of authorisation
are clearly identified and adequate records can be
maintained in the Control Systems.

iv. Reports and variance analysis: Reports and
analysis of each segment are conducted on a
regular basis.

v. Information flow: The transparent information

flow alerts the management promptly of any
deviations. Benchmarking with historical database
and comparisons with the same also acts as a
detecting device for spotting unusual activities.
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Vi

Vil.

viil.

Safeguarding of assets: Surprise physical cash
count of hotels and assets count of serviced
apartments are performed by Operation Finance
team and reviewed by Internal Audit Department.
Full count of cash and inventories are also
performed regularly. To safeguard the assets, CCTV
and security systems are installed in each exchange
counter and casino exit which are monitored by
Security and Surveillance Department controlled
by SJM. Insurance coverage on the hotel properties
is periodically reviewed by the management for
sufficiency, and to ensure compliance with the
terms and conditions of the insurance policies.

Credit control: Relevant policy and procedures
are in place and the collectability of debts owed
by customers and tenants are reviewed regularly.
If there is indication of delay payment or doubtful
debt, corresponding actions such as follow-up call,
reminder, demand letter or even legal action will be
taken to follow up the debts.

Service quality control: Operational systems of
hotel and gaming business segments are reviewed
regularly to ensure the service quality, and
questionnaires are provided in different outlets
to welcome customers’ feedbacks for our service
improvement.

(3) Financial Control

Policies, procedures and systems are in place
for the recording of complete, accurate and timely
accounting and management information;

Annual budget of hotel and gaming operations
is prepared and reviewed regularly to ensure any
action can be taken to mitigate any changes in
conditions and market accordingly;

Financial management reports are provided to
all Directors and senior management which give
a balanced and understandable assessment of
the Group’s performance, financial position and
prospects in sufficient details;

Operational reports on revenue, debtors’ ageing
and internal financial analysis are prepared to
the management which give a balanced and
understandable assessment of the Group’s
operation performance;
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Vi

Available fund report and cash flow forecast are
regularly reviewed to monitor the cash flows and
working capital requirement of the Group; and

Annual audit by independent auditor is carried
out to ensure that the consolidated financial
statements are prepared in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, the
Group’s accounting policies and the applicable laws
and regulations.

(4) Compliance Control
The following policies and procedures are in place to
safeguard the compliance control:

48

Systems and procedures on disclosure of inside
information to ensure, with the assistance of an
internal work team (if required), that any material
information which comes to the knowledge of any
one or more officers should be promptly identified,
assessed and escalated, where appropriate, for the
attention of the Board. The Board shall make timely
decisions on disclosure, if necessary, and take
appropriate measures to preserve confidentiality of
inside information until proper dissemination of the
inside information;

Policies and practices on compliance with
legal and regulatory requirements which shall
be reviewed and monitored regularly by the CG
Committee as delegated by the Board in order
to ensure the Group is in compliance with all
applicable laws, statutes, rules and regulations; and
keep up on any legal developments;

CCT Compliance Committee is established to
monitor, control and regularly review connected
transactions and CCTs of the Group and ensure
proper compliance with all relevant laws and
regulations, the Listing Rules and disclosure
requirements;
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iv. Whistle-blowing policy is established to provide
reporting channels and guidance for employees and
related third parties who have business dealings
with the Group (e.g. customers and suppliers) to
raise concerns, in confidence and anonymity, about
any suspected misconduct or malpractice within
the Group. The Audit Committee, delegated by the
Board, shall ensure that proper arrangements are in
place for fair and independent investigation of any
concerns raised, appropriate follow-up actions are
taken and other recommendations are provided, if
thinks fit;

v. Anti-corruption policy is established to outline
the Group’s zero-tolerance stance against
bribery and corruption and assists employees in
recognising circumstances that may lead to or give
the appearance of being involved in corruption
or unethical business conduct, so as to avoid
such conduct which is clearly prohibited, and to
promptly seek guidance where necessary or report
any reasonably suspected case of corruption or any
attempts thereof, to the management through an
appropriate reporting channel; and

vi. Anti-money laundering and counterterrorist
financing policy and procedures is established
to set out the general framework for combating
crime against money laundering and financing of
terrorism. It provides guideline to combat money
laundering and terrorist and help the Group’s
employees identify and assess clients/customers/
suppliers/vendors/contractors/transactions/
activities of high risk of money laundering,
terrorist financing or other financial crime and take
appropriate measures and actions.

(5) Review of Internal Control
Effectiveness of internal control is tested by Internal
Audit Department regularly. Internal audit reviews and
agreed action plans should be reported to the Audit
Committee and the Board on a timely basis.

iv. BIERRWBAEBNOE
BEREFERBEEHERN
MEAE=ZAWMERKRHE
HRMPBRRERIES
URBERESNAAHAE
EAERIHRAZETA/ER
Bfe HRAE - §$$W%Z
BERZESRBERFLE
ﬁm’ﬁﬁ%$ﬁLﬁ@$
RBINBE  LEDAE
BRBERTHRNEE m&%
THRREHEMERS,

v. BIERBESHEUSLAE
EHBERARESHNERIIL
% Wi B & A AT AEE
NPLEBR I RESHAER
BMETANEBER  WLERIE
BRBRLENGTR LEL
ERBFRIKRIES > HEB
BENRHRREERNEERR
SEMGEERRNESEN
HEMEE; K&

vii RIEITERERBHRFAE
EEEHERERFUHTT
ERBRREZHBEIREETEE
PLPRZEIEER > MR MIT
BRBERZHDFZIE5]
1 Bh < & [ B9 {8 & 5t Bl K 5F
HEARKE -RHBOFESR
EEFHMERMILFEARS
NER BT HER &
R/REE X5/ E >
WIRENEE M RITE

(5) ERIPEBE 1
NEBEZSFERASEANIE
ERNARM TRERODEZE
BEEREFTREANTELR
AN RERENITEEE -

Emperor Entertainment Hotel Limited 2821244 HEHRAE]

Annual Report 2023/2024 74 49



—

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EXERRS

C. Ak EE
(1) BB EEESF

C. Risk Management
(1) Risk Management Process

50

The risk management process includes risk
identification, risk evaluation, risk management
measures and risk control and review.

The management is entrusted with duties to identify,
analyse, evaluate, respond, monitor and communicate
risks associated with any activity, function or process
within its scope of responsibility and authority. Risks
are evaluated by the Board and management based on
(i) the severity of the impact of the risks on the Group’s
finance and operations; and (ii) the probability and
frequency that the risks will occur.

Based on the risk evaluation, the Company will manage
the risk as follows:

e Risk elimination — the management may identify
and implement certain changes or controls that in
effect eliminate the risk entirely.

e Risk mitigation — the management may implement
risk mitigation plan designed to reduce the
likelihood and impact of the risk to an acceptable
level or contingency plan for possible loss scenarios.

e Risk control and monitoring — it involves making
decisions regarding which risks are acceptable and
how to address those that are not; accidents and
other situations involving loss or near-loss will be
investigated and properly documented as part of
the effort to manage risks.

¢ Risk retention — the management may decide that the
risk rating is low enough that the risk is acceptable level
and no action is required and the risk will continue to
be monitored as part of the risk management program
to ensure the level of risk does not increase to an
unacceptable level.
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(2) Significant Risks and Strategies
Certain significant risks have been identified through
the process of risk identification and assessment.
Such significant risks of the Group together with their
respective key strategies/control measures are set out
below:

a) Changes in social, economic and political

environment:

Changes and volatility in general economic
conditions caused by China-USA political/trade
disputes, and stringent policies implemented by
PRC Central Government and Macau Government
impacting hospitality and travel related activities in
Macau etc. Any more adverse change in one of the
above situations would have significant impact to
the Group’s business.

e Stay alert to changes in economic and market
conditions in mainland China or global
economy and adjust business strategic plans to
cope with these changes.

e Explore opportunities to expand business
or market (e.g. Hong Kong), broaden the
Group’s customer base (e.g. covering serviced
apartment tenants) so as to widen the income
source and enhance utilisation of resources of
the Group.

e While keeping high-quality hospitality
services, endeavor to control the expenses
and manpower or reallocate resources in
an efficient manner. For example, setting
up of hotel management companies aim
to better utilise the manpower and human
resources within the Group and regular review
of the performance of serviced apartment
management company aims to control cost
and quality of service.
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b)  SIM’s operating license and services agreement

(including the risk in changing law and policy of
satellite operator by local government):

The Group’s gaming business is solely relied on
SJM’s Concession Contract, which was granted by
Direc¢ao de Inspeccdo e Coordenagao de Jogos
(“DICJ”) and will expire on 31 December 2025, and
the services agreement with SJM. Termination
of the SUM’s Concession Contract or the services
agreement with SJM for whatever reasons or the
renewal thereof is not granted to or made by SJM
or unfavourable change in the terms of the services
agreement would have impact on the gaming
business of the Group.

e Stay alert to the government law, policy and
practice and the industrial practices and the
market change, and make changes to the
existing business plans or strategies, as and
when appropriate.

e Discuss with SIM in response to any changes in
the situation and seek for possible solutions in
a timely manner.

* Explore any other potential business in Macau
or Hong Kong to strengthen the Group’s income
base.

Keen competition in hotel and gaming industry:
Increased competition in hotel and gaming
industry due to opening of more luxury and
diversified hotels/resorts by competitors as well
as increasing in numbers of VIP rooms, gaming
tables and slot machines from existing casinos
in Macau and among other Asian countries. No
assurance that the growth of tourism industry
would increase in line with or outpace the supply
of hotel accommodation, casino gaming tables and
slot machines and this could adversely affect the
Group’s business.

e Enlarge and expand the footprint of the Group
in sourcing hotel patrons.

e Devote to provide the best personalised
service to the guests in order to give them a
memorable experience; thereby differentiating
the Group’s hotels from the others and
enabling them to make the Group’s hotels be
their first choice when they come back to Hong
Kong and Macau.
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Cooperate with travel agencies and airline
companies to develop long-haul visitor market.

Launch promotions featuring the Group’s
hotels’ excellent location to attract guests to
extend length of overnight stay, integrating
with local tourism resources, especially World
Cultural Heritage scenic spots.
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e Improve marketing strategy and enhance o AEFNEZIHKRIEI N
promotions and publicities from time to time BEEREE UREE
in order to encourage existing gaming patrons HRERBEZERRBIER
and hotel customers to come back to the FEHEERBEERRK

Group’s hotels and attract new customers
around the world.
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d) Anti-money laundering (“AML”): d) BriEk#E(TBrIEESE ) -
Non-compliance with applicable AML laws ERBAMKLEAEBEEEE
would adversely affect the Group’s business and HAEENEBREEBER
reputation. RrREE-

e Develop and/or continuously review the AML e HIER HIFEEBK
compliance policy and procedures to ensure IEEBERBERREZR
they remain up-to-date and meet all regulatory NEREHERMER
requirements. TREFMBEEER-

e Regular internal audit review to ensure s THERANMEZER
adequacy of internal control procedures as well UERABEZEERHN
as being carried out effectively. RAMRBEBAT -

e Comply with the reporting requirements and e EBETHERIRBRENR
compliance procedures are requested by DICJ WX BEREREEKRNER
or the compliance department of SJM or under BEERERER -
the applicable laws.

e Give sufficient regular training to the staff. e THAEBIRHRAEW
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experienced staff:

The pool of experienced management personnel in
Macau’s gaming industry is limited. No assurance
to recruit and retain the replacement of the existing
key management personnel once loss of their
service. In addition, there is intense competition to
recruit and retain a sufficient number of qualified
and skilled casino or hotel employees due to a
relatively limited labor market of the supply of
employees.
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e Ensure competitiveness of the reward system
and incentive system with reference to market
bench.

e Clearline of sight on career ladder.

e Maintain regular dialogues with staff on
personal goals for career advancement.

e Provide specific skills trainings to different level
of staff.

e Develop and implement Staff Development and
Learning programs as well as staff recognition
and work-life balance programs.

e Expansion of talent acquisition pipelines
via close communications with vocational
institutions and universities to attract “new
blood”.

D. Management Confirmation

The Board acknowledged that it had received a confirmation
from the management on the effectiveness of the Control
Systems of the Group for the Year. The Audit Committee and
the Board, upon reviewing the Control Systems, were not
aware of any significant issues that would have an adverse
impact on the effectiveness and adequacy of the Group’s
operational, financial and compliance areas of the Control
Systems.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company adopted a dividend policy setting out the
principles for the Board to determine appropriate amount of
dividend to be distributed to the Shareholders. The Company
intends to provide the Shareholders with regular interim and
final dividends (as the case may be) based on the earnings
attributable to its Shareholders after taking into consideration
of the factors as stated in the policy, including inter alia, (i) cash
flow requirements for business operations; (ii) cash available,
financial liabilities and capital commitment; (iii) market
environment and challenges; and (iv) future development
and investment opportunities. The declaration of dividends
or recommendation on such payment shall be subject to all
applicable laws, rules and regulations including but not limited
to the Listing Rules, the applicable laws of Bermuda and
Bye-laws of the Company.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company’s Shareholders’ Communication Policy (available
on the website of the Company) sets out the strategies,
practices and commitment for maintaining ongoing and
effective communication with Shareholders, both individual and
institutional, and in appropriate circumstances, the investment
community at large so as to enable them to engage with
the Company and exercise their rights as Shareholders in an
informed manner. To this end, the Company strives to ensure
that all Shareholders have ready and timely access to all publicly
available information of the Group. To facilitate communication
with Shareholders and the investment community, the Company
has established various communication channels, as follows: (i)
the holding of AGMs and special general meetings (“SGM(s)”),
if any, which may be convened for specific purposes to provide
opportunities for the Shareholders to communicate directly with
the Board; (ii) the publication of announcements, annual reports,
interim reports and/or circulars as required under the Listing
Rules and press releases providing updated information of the
Group; (iii) the availability of latest information of the Group on
the Company’s website at https://www.Emp296.com; (iv) the
holding of press conference(s) from time to time; and (v) meeting
with investors and analysts when necessary.

General presentations are made when financial results are
announced and dialogue with institutional Shareholders is made
from time to time. Shareholders and investors are welcome
to visit the Company’s website and to raise enquiries through
our Investor Relations Department whose contact details
are available on the Company’s website and the “Corporate
Information and Key Dates” section of this annual report.

The Chairperson of the Board and the chairperson/members
of the Board Committees, appropriate management executives
and the independent auditor are available to attend the general
meetings to answer questions from the Shareholders.

The Company shall review the Shareholders” Communication
Policy annually to ensure its implementation and effectiveness.
Having considered the multiple channels of communication and
engagement in place, the Board is satisfied that the Shareholders’
Communication Policy has been properly in place during the Year
and remains effective.
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EXEERHE

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Set out below is a summary of certain rights of the Shareholders
as required to be disclosed pursuant to the CG Code:

Right to Convene/Call general meetings

Pursuant to the Bermuda Companies Act 1981 and the Bye-laws
of the Company, Shareholder(s) holding at the date of the
deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid-up
capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company shall have the right to submit a written
requisition requiring a SGM to be called by the Board. The
written requisition (a) must state the purpose(s) of the meeting;
and (b) must be signed by the requisitionists and deposited
at the registered office and principal place of business of the
Company in Hong Kong for attention of the Company Secretary,
and may consist of several documents in like form, each signed
by one or more requisitionists. Such requisition will be verified
with the Company’s Hong Kong Branch Share Registrar and
upon its confirmation that the requisition is proper and in
order, the Company Secretary will ask the Board to convene
a SGM by serving sufficient notice to all Shareholders. On the
contrary, if the requisition has been verified as not in order, the
requisitionists will be advised of this outcome and accordingly,
the SGM will not be convened as requested.

If the Directors do not within 21 days from the date of the deposit
of a valid requisition proceed duly to convene a SGM for a day
not more than 2 months after the date of deposit of a proper
requisition, the requisitionists or any of them representing
more than one-half of the total voting rights of all of them may
convene a SGM, but any SGM so convened shall not be held
after the expiration of 3 months from the said date of deposit
of the requisition. In addition, such meeting convened by the
requisitionists shall be convened in the same manner, as nearly
as possible, as that in which meetings are to be convened by
Board.
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Putting forward Proposals at General Meetings
Pursuant to the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, either any
number of the Shareholders holding not less than one-twentieth
of the total voting rights of all the Shareholders having at the
date of the requisition a right to vote at general meetings of
the Company (“Requisitionists”), or not less than 100 of such
Shareholders, can request the Company in writing to (a) give to
the Shareholders entitled to receive notice of the next general
meeting notice of any resolution which may properly be moved
and is intended to be moved at that meeting; and (b) circulate
to Shareholders entitled to have notice of any general meeting
any statement of not more than 1,000 words with respect to the
matter referred to in any proposed resolution or the business
to be dealt with at that meeting. The requisition signed by all
the Requisitionists must be deposited at the principal place of
business of the Company in Hong Kong with a sum reasonably
sufficient to meet the Company’s relevant expenses and not
less than six weeks before the meeting in case of a requisition
requiring notice of a resolution or not less than one week before
the meeting in the case of any other requisition. Provided that
an AGM is called for a date 6 weeks or less after the requisition
has been deposited, such requisition though not deposited
within the time required shall be deemed to have been properly
deposited for the purposes thereof.

Proposing a Person for Election as a Director
The procedures for the Shareholders to propose a person for
election as a Director are available for viewing on the Company’s
website.

Enquiries from Shareholders

Shareholders should direct their enquiries about their
shareholdings to the Company’s Hong Kong Branch Share
Registrar, Tricor Secretaries Limited. Other Shareholders’
enquiries can be directed to the Investor Relations Department of
the Company.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There are no significant changes in the Company’s constitutional
documents during the Year.
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EXEERHE

AUDITOR’S INDEPENDENCE AND
REMUNERATION

The Audit Committee is mandated to review and monitor
the independence of the auditor to ensure objectivity and
effectiveness of the audit process of the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with applicable standards. Members
of the Audit Committee were of the view that Messrs. Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu (“Deloitte”) is independent and recommended
the Board to propose its re-appointment as the Company’s
independent auditor at the 2024 AGM. During the Year, Deloitte
rendered audit services and non-audit services to the Group and
the remuneration paid/payable to it by the Group is set out as
follows:

Services rendered

FF #2 13 AR %5

Audit services

% BBR

Non-audit services

RS
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Deloitte.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

it

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF EMPEROR ENTERTAINMENT
HOTEL LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Emperor Entertainment Hotel Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on
pages 65 to 158, which comprise the consolidated statement
of financial position as at 31 March 2024, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including material accounting
policy information and other explanatory information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 March 2024, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAS”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current year. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.
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Key audit matters

MRERER

How our audit addressed the key audit matters

FITMAEERREZEE

Valuation of investment properties located in Macau

it RMZREMEZSEE

We identified the valuation of investment properties
located in Macau as a key audit matter due to the
significant management’s assumptions involved in
the valuation.
RITHEMUNBRMAZREYEZ2MEHEAS —ERR
BEREE RERAMGEEIREEENERNRS
As disclosed in note 4 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group’s investment properties held
for earning rental income under operating leases
of commercial properties in Macau amounted to
HKS$511,900,000 as at 31 March 2024. Fair value
gains arising from those investment properties of
HKS$19,700,000 were recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income for the year ended 31 March 2024. The
fair value of the Group’s investment properties in
Macau was estimated based on a valuation on these
properties conducted by an independent firm of
qualified professional property valuers engaged
by the Company and approved by the directors
of the Company using income capitalisation
method with significant unobservable inputs and
assumptions of market conditions. The relevant
inputs and conditions include capitalisation
rates and comparable market rents transactions
with adjustments to reflect different locations or
conditions, and changes in market conditions.
AR & B4 TS R R MY SE4PT IR BB 0 12202443831
H> BEX£EREBEEFEVELCERAENRMAERME
BONESWABRRZIREY*%511,900,000# 7T ©
ZEREMEER Z A AEEZ W 19,700,000
TTEREBE2024F3A3IH L FEZGEeEa R E
MEERZRANER - EEENREFAZREYE
RREBEDRE ERTEZEENBIGERER
MELEMITURABRECEZ(ERTREKRFT
BHROAHBRETRZBRIEZEMEETE
K BRAESFHEZGEMS - HEBABER
FBHEAEERNCERARALERITHEHEHERS
MDRBAEMERKER > UKRHRES -
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Our procedures in relation to evaluating the
appropriateness of the valuation of investment
properties in Macau included:
RITMAERPREYELEZREEZEFEE:!
e Understanding management’s process
for reviewing the work of the independent
qualified professional property valuers
engaged by the Company;
TREEESEE ERRZENBIGERE
EYELEMNITEZRE;

e Evaluating the competence, capabilities
and objectivity of the independent qualified
professional property valuers engaged by the
Company;
it BEARNEENBICEREEYEMLE
fZzA® B HREEN;

e Understanding the valuation techniques and
key inputs applied by holding discussion
with the management of the Group and the
independent qualified professional property
valuers engaged by the Company with
the involvement of our internal valuation
specialists; and
B EEEHEEER EATZEMNBILISE
REXYEMLEMETIR THETZA
HEEER2HE, UTHEMERANMGERMN
T BR 52 & A BUHR R

*  Assessing, with the involvement of our internal
valuation specialists, the reasonableness of
the valuation conducted by the independent
qualified professional property valuers
engaged by the Company by (i) checking details
of rentals, on a sample basis, to the respective
underlying existing tenancy agreements; (ii)
comparing to relevant market information
on rentals achieved and capitalisation rates
adopted in other similar properties with the
consideration of changes in market conditions;
and (iii) developing an independent estimate
based on market available data.
BB()FHBEEHEMREHEREZZENAE
E(HREEEE); (Bt EERNEEREM
HUMEMRMBRAZEREXRGI T RESES N
HEADHBER, R(IHNER TS SEHEHE
BUFHERSE SATZENBILSER
EXMEGHEMAETZHMEZGEM I
HATZARGEERSH -
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We
have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND
THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
of the Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors of the Company either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing
the Group’s financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the
Bermuda Companies Act, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is
a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors of the Company.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
F|NANC|AL STATEMENTS (continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought
to bear on our independence, and where applicable, actions
taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the
independent auditor’s report is Au Mei Yin.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
24 June 2024
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Lol kAN EIRER

For the year ended 31 March 2024 &t Z20244# 3531 H IF &

Revenue KA

Contracts with customers BEREHN 5(a) 740,737 260,673

Leases HE 5(b) 48,525 30,446
Total revenue “mUg A 789,262 291,119
Cost of sales & B A (36,429) (23,061)
Cost of hotel and gaming operations  BIERIEBXEHZ M A (432,154) (370,722)
Direct operating expenses in respect FEREYE>

of leasing investment properties BEELKERX (12,830) (13,025)
Gross profit (loss) EF (38) 307,849 (115,689)
Other income Hr A 20,741 19,321
Other gains and losses Htl &= R 518 7 (78) 21,319
Impairment losses reversed on ME - WBRZE

property, plant and equipment B[Rz R E 8 31,781
Fair value changes of investment REWMERAEBEZ

properties BaE) (20,300) 19,700
Impairment allowance for trade BRI ZBAEREE

receivables — (590)
Selling and marketing expenses HERTHZEESEB (146,369) (35,133)
Administrative expenses THEHR (125,360) (120,811)
Finance costs M ER 8 (1,073) (1,109)
Profit (loss) before taxation BrF AR (B518) 9 35,410 (181,211)
Taxation credit #3 18 [B] % 11 27,421 53,214
Profit (loss) and total comprehensive ~ EE & F (518) &

income (expense) for the year 2EKE(FR) 4% 62,831 (127,997)
Profit (loss) and total comprehensive  FE{EEEZEF (FBE) K&

income (expense) for the year 2mEK = (B )

attributable to: 4aEE

Owners of the Company KRBEEA (98,192)

Non-controlling interests JEIER R (29,805)

(127,997)

Earnings (loss) per share SRR (E8)

Basic K 13 LGS HKS(0.08) 7 7T
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

S EMBINRE

At 31 March 2024 }$202443531H

Non-current assets EREBEE
Investment properties KREME 14
Property, plant and equipment ME - KB RERE 15
Right-of-use assets EREEE 16
Deposits paid for acquisition of BEME - HEX
property, plant and equipment REZEMITE
Pledged bank deposit BIEFIRITER 18
Current assets MEBEE
Inventories 78
Trade and other receivables B 5 K Hfih FE U= 17
Pledged bank deposits BIRWBITER 18
Short-term bank deposits FEHARITHEM 18
Bank balances and cash RITHEGREAS 18
Current liabilities mENBE
Trade and other payables B 5 Kk HAthFE TR 19
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries REHMBRARRIE 20
Amounts due to non-controlling TMBRAB ZIEER
interests of subsidiaries #mmIE 21
Taxation payable FE I 13 18
Lease liabilities HEAaR 24
Net current assets MBEEFR
Total assets less current liabilities WEERTBERE
Non-current liabilities FEREBAERE
Lease liabilities HEAaR 24
Deferred taxation RERIE 25
Net assets BEEFH

Emperor Entertainment Hotel Limited 2221244 HEHRAE]
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1,485,900
2,253,841
384,898

1,563
30,811

4,157,013

12,256
78,114
311
14,900
599,790

705,371

102,518
6,367

39,523
51,733
611

200,752
504,619
4,661,632

26,278
63,200

89,478
4,572,154

1,506,200
2,361,668
401,922

1,162

4,270,952

11,312
52,145
66,187
56,789
380,330

566,763

96,744
21,889

39,523
94,255
802

253,213
313,550
4,584,502

26,444
48,735

75,179
4,509,323




SFEMBINRE

At 31 March 2024 }$202443531H

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Capital and reserves BARAREE
Share capital fig A< 26
Reserves G
Equity attributable to owners KAEIEB ARG ER
of the Company
Non-controlling interests FFIERE S 29
Total equity T % 48 &R

The consolidated financial statements on pages 65 to 158 were
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 24
June 2024 and are signed on its behalf by:

Wong Chi Fai
mEE
Director

EF

119 119
3,752,578 3,691,693

3,752,697 3,691,812
819,457 817,511

4,572,154 4,509,323

FSEEFISSEFMBHZHEAHBHREE
20246 B4R EFEHERKTET
HOoWHATINEFTRAKREE:

Fan Man Seung, Vanessa

EEE

Director

E
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
SFaEmBTmER

For the year ended 31 March 2024 &t Z20244# 3531 H IF &

At 1 April 2022 #022%4818 10 43676 o8 14,58 B 30630 293590 3794415 47316 4B4LT3L
Loss end fotel comprehensive expense EEERR2ER L8

for the year - - - - - - (%819 (8190 (29805  (121997)
Ordinary shares repurchased and EORHEER

cancelled frore 24) (W#%) ) - 1 - - - {4 4 - (4410
At 31 March 203 R0BE3A3NA 436,765 39,392 2,832,988 3,691,812 817,511 4,509,323
Profitand total comprehensive income ~ EEBHREENAAE

for the year - 60,385 60,885 1,946 62,831
Transfer from retained profits tolegel ~~ BRBENERTERER

feserve = - (3) - - -
31 Wrch 2004 IMEIRYIR 136765 W0 2808 TG SIS 45T

Note: The other reserve of the Group arose from acquisition of additional Mzt Zx& B 22 Hfth %% A & 202243831

interests in non-wholly owned subsidiaries from non-controlling B %2019F38318 L FERNBFZER
interests during the years ended 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2019. DB EWNB AR ZBRINERFR
EEo

Emperor Entertainment Hotel Limited 2221244 HEHRAE]
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SalERER

For the year ended 31 March 2024 &t Z20244# 3531 H IF &

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit (loss) before taxation
Adjustments for:

Interest income

Interest expenses

Fair value changes of investment
properties

Impairment allowance for trade
receivables

Impairment losses reversed on
property, plant and equipment

Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment

Depreciation of right-of-use assets

Loss (gain) on disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Gain on disposal of a subsidiary

REKEEHZHERE

R B R (45 98)
B
FIBIKA
AEER

BREMEQIABEZ

2%

5 R 2
1

M B BERE
02 A A A

ME- - RBERKREZ

e
EREEEZINE
HEME - HEX

Rz EE ()
HE—BWBARZ

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

35,410

(19,311)
948

20,300

120,457
17,024

W =
Gain on lease modification HE BRI &

Operating cash flows before movements ~ K& EE LB EHAT 2

in working capital KERERE
(Increase) decrease in inventories EE 2 (8m) &L
(Increase) decrease in trade and other B REMBERZRZ

receivables (3 i) i L
Increase (decrease) in trade and other B REMEMRZ

payables 110 Gk L)

(Decrease) increase in amounts due to
fellow subsidiaries

REARMBATDREZ
(iR D) 8 hn

174,882
(944)

(24,706)

14,803

(15,522)

Cash generated from (used in) operations

Income tax paid

®E(AR)REEHZ
B
EffFRER

148,513
(636)

Net cash from (used in) operating
activities

®E(AR)KEEHZ
RBE28

147,877

Emperor Entertainment Hotel Limited 221344 HEHRAE)
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(181,211)

(8,853)
952

(19,700)
590
(31,781)

113,572
17,008

(1,291)

(1,434)
(381)

(112,529)
702

78,257
(31,463)

17,349

(47,684)

(47,684)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FaBERER

For the year ended 31 March 2024 &t Z20244# 3531 H IF &

Cash flows from investing activities REREEFHZHERE
Withdrawal of short-term bank REEHRITEM
deposits 244,234 336,703
Withdrawal of a pledged bank RIBEPRITER
deposit 66,555 355
Interest received g2 E 18,048 9,669
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEMZE - KB K
plant and equipment REZFEMRE 76 1,747
Acquisition of investment properties WEKREYE 22 - (490,000)
Placement of short-term bank FEARHEITEMR
deposits (202,345) (79,153)
Placement of pledged bank deposits FABEHIETER (31,490) (2,054)
Acquisition of property, plant and BEME HEX
equipment = A (20,994) (14,011)
Deposits paid for acquisition of BEME HEX
property, plant and equipment REZEMITE (1,196) (522)
Net cash outflow from disposal of HE—RWBARZ
a subsidiary RE ML FE 23 (100)
Net cash from (used in) investing KEEMKRETHZ
activities REFEE (237,366)
Cash flows from financing activities REMEFHZHERE
Payment on repurchase of shares BRERMHZM® (4,389)
Interest paid ENFE (952)
Repayments of lease liabilities BEHEEE (354)
Transaction costs attributable to BREERNELEZ
repurchase of shares RBHAE (22)
Net cash used in financing activities ARmEEESZ
REFHE (1,305) (5,717)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and RERREEEY 2
cash equivalents W CRb) B EE 219,460 (290,767)
Cash and cash equivalents at the ERPUZHERRE
beginning of the reporting period EEY 380,330 671,097
Cash and cash equivalents at the end ERPRZRAETRRE
of the reporting period, representing ZEY > BIRITHER
bank balances and cash REE 599,790 380,330

Emperor Entertainment Hotel Limited 2221244 HEHRAE]
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SRaMPRRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2024 & E20244F3531H IF F &

1. GENERAL INFORMATION 1. — &5 H

Emperor Entertainment Hotel Limited (“Company”) is
incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted company with
limited liability and its shares are listed on the Main Board
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock
Exchange”). The Company’s immediate holding company is
Emperor Entertainment Hotel Holdings Limited, a company
incorporated in Hong Kong Special Administrative Region
(“Hong Kong”) with limited liability. The intermediate
holding company of the Company is Emperor International
Holdings Limited (“Emperor International”), a company
incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability, the shares
of which are also listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange. The ultimate holding company of the Company is
Albert Yeung Holdings Limited, a limited liability company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands which is in turn held
by First Trust Services AG, being the trustee of The Albert
Yeung Discretionary Trust (“AY Trust”), the founder and
settlor of which is Dr. Yeung Sau Shing, Albert (“Dr. Yeung”).
The addresses of the registered office and principal place
of business of the Company are disclosed in the “Corporate
Information and Key Dates” section of the annual report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HKS$”), which is also the functional currency
of the Company.

The Company is an investment holding company. The
principal activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in
note 38.

Emperor Entertainment Hotel Limited 2821244 HEHRAE]
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R MPRRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2024 & E2024%#3/531H IFFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND 2. EMIEREETZE
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG AMFERSEN(TEE
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS B FEER S ERY))
(“HKFRSs”)

MEFEEEFERZIIER
BEIZEAMBRSEN
REFE FEBEREASER
HOMAR(ERTH ARG EG
THHEREET 2 EBMBRE
# 8) > H 57 & 202344810 B
i FEMMBAEN UERE

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are

mandatorily effective for the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the following
new and amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) for the
first time, which are mandatorily effective for the Group’s
annual period beginning on 1 April 2023 for the preparation

of the consolidated financial statements: R RS
HKFRS 17 (including the Insurance Contracts BEAMBTREEDN REASL
October 2020 and February F1TR (B 1E
2022 Amendments to 2020F 108 &
HKFRS 17) 2022428 %
EBMBRE
HRHEITHZ
&&T)
Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting EBgstER EstfhstZzER
Estimates B8 2 15T
Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to EBZtER BE—-RGHPEL
Assets and Liabilities F125R 2 1&E] NEEREHRE
arising from a Single MHEANELER
Transaction BE=]
Amendments to HKAS 12 International Tax Reform — EBTHER [ P AR U B &
Pillar Two Model Rules EAVE A — S ZiE
1 ik
Amendments to HKAS 1 and Disclosure of Accounting EBEER BB RIKE

HKFRS Practice Statement 2 Policies

Except as described below, the application of the new
and amendments to HKFRSs in the current year has had
no material impact on the Group’s financial positions
and performance for the current and prior years and/or
on the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial
statements.

Emperor Entertainment Hotel Limited & 21244 EEBRAF)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SRaMPRRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2024 & E20244F3531H IF F &

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND 2. fE;

AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“H KF RSS”) (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year

(continued)

Impacts on application of Amendments to HKAS 8
Definition of Accounting Estimates

The Group has applied the amendments for the first time
in the current year. The amendments define accounting
estimates as “monetary amounts in financial statements
that are subject to measurement uncertainty”. An accounting
policy may require items in financial statements to be
measured in a way that involves measurement uncertainty.
In such a case, an entity develops an accounting estimate
to achieve the objective set out by the accounting policy.
The amendments to HKAS 8 clarify the distinction between
changes in accounting estimates, and changes in accounting
policies and the correction of errors.

The application of the amendments in the current year had
no material impact on the consolidated financial statements.

Impacts on application of Amendments to HKAS 12
Income Taxes International Tax Reform — Pillar Two
Model Rules

The Group has applied the amendments for the first time in
the current year. HKAS 12 is amended to add the exception
to recognising and disclosing information about deferred
tax assets and liabilities that are related to tax law enacted
or substantively enacted to implement the Pillar Two model
rules published by the Organisation for Economic Co-
operation and Development (“Pillar Two legislation”). The
amendments require that entities apply the amendments
immediately upon issuance and retrospectively. The
amendments also require that entities to disclose separately
its current tax expense/income related to Pillar Two income
taxes in periods which the Pillar Two legislation is in effect,
and the qualitative and quantitative information about its
exposure to Pillar Two income taxes in periods in which the
Pillar Two legislation is enacted or substantially enacted but
not yet in effect in annual reporting periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2023.

E(ER
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EREEEHBAESHZ TR
EHZERN RS

FEFEREAEEBEREAZES -
ZEITEZGH A AIFEFER
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ENHBHRENBEEETSHE -
EERT —HERBERR GG
st EEEINGHRRHINER -
ERGHERNFSRZEIES G
LA EHEEFRREFZIANE
A A SE IE $EER ©

REFERBAZEBIHGEEMHR
RIBEATE -

EREEBEHERFI2RZIEETEH
BRI E — SR EREN R
&

70 8 [ B 10 5 48 B R PR A5 8T o
EBGHEA BRI UM
ARBREBEERAEERSE
ERNBNER MEEEERA
MEMABKEESFEEREM
D 80 3 HE = T2 5K 48R T AR 4 o
B LR R (R = ) o &
6 5T 2 R BB 78 % 5 T 85 45 18 3 B
EWRER - ZEHTBEREMAR
20231510 o > % B 14 10 & £ 3R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S MERRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2024 & E2024%#3/531H IFFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“ HKF RSS”) (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year

(continued)

Impacts on application of Amendments to HKAS 12
Income Taxes International Tax Reform — Pillar Two
Model Rules (continued)

The Group is yet to apply the temporary exception during
the current year because the Group’s entities are operating
in jurisdictions which the Pillar Two legislation has not
yet been enacted or substantially enacted. The Group
will disclose known or reasonably estimable information
that helps users of financial statements to understand the
Group’s exposure to Pillar Two income taxes in the Group’s
annual consolidated financial statements when the Pillar
Two legislation is enacted or substantially enacted and will
disclose separately current tax expense/income related to
Pillar Two income taxes when it is in effect.

Impacts on application of Amendments to HKAS 1 and
HKFRS Practice Statement 2 Disclosure of Accounting
Policies

The Group has applied the amendments for the first time in
the current year. HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements
is amended to replace all instances of the term “significant
accounting policies” with “material accounting policy
information”. Accounting policy information is material if,
when considered together with other information included in
an entity’s financial statements, it can reasonably be expected
to influence decisions that the primary users of general
purpose financial statements make on the basis of those
financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SRaMPRRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2024 & E20244F3531H IF F &

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND 2, &

AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“H KF RSS”) (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year

(continued)

Impacts on application of Amendments to HKAS 1 and
HKFRS Practice Statement 2 Disclosure of Accounting
Policies (continued)

The amendments also clarify that accounting policy
information may be material because of the nature of the
related transactions, other events or conditions, even if the
amounts are immaterial. However, not all accounting policy
information relating to material transactions, other events or
conditions is itself material. If an entity chooses to disclose
immaterial accounting policy information, such information
must not obscure material accounting policy information.

HKFRS Practice Statement 2 Making Materiality Judgements
(“Practice Statement”) is also amended to illustrate
how an entity applies the “four-step materiality process”
to accounting policy disclosures and to judge whether
information about an accounting policy is material to its
financial statements. Guidance and examples are added to
the Practice Statement.

The application of the amendments has had no material
impact on the Group’s financial positions and performance
but has affected the disclosure of the Group’s accounting
policies set out in note 3 to the consolidated financial
statements.

B4 S B aE ) A Rk 2 F il B
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S MERRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2024 & E2024%#3/531H IFFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(“ HKF RSS”) (continued)
Amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet

effective

The Group has not early applied the following amendments

to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 7
and HKFRS 7

Amendments to HKAS 21

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be

determined.

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture!

Lease Liability in a Sale and
Leaseback?

Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current and
related amendments to Hong
Kong Interpretation 5 (2020)?

Non-current Liabilities with
Covenants?

Supplier Finance Arrangements?

Lack of Exchangeability?

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024.

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2025.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SRaMPRRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2024 & E20244F3531H IF F &

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND

AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“H KF RSS”) (continued)

Amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet

effective (continued)

Except for the amendments to HKFRSs mentioned below,
the directors of the Company anticipate that the application
of all other amendments to HKFRSs will have no material
impact on the consolidated financial statements in the
foreseeable future.

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities

as Current or Non-current and related amendments

to Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (2020) (“2020
Amendments”) and Amendments to HKAS 1
Non-current Liabilities with Covenants (“2022
Amendments”)

The 2020 Amendments provide clarification and additional
guidance on the assessment of right to defer settlement for
at least twelve months from reporting date for classification
of liabilities as current or non-current, which:

e clarify that if a liability has terms that could, at the
option of the counterparty, result in its settlement by
the transfer of the entity’s own equity instruments,
these terms do not affect its classification as current
or non-current only if the entity recognises the option
separately as an equity instrument applying HKAS 32
Financial Instruments: Presentation.

e specify that the classification of liabilities as current
or non-current should be based on rights that are in
existence at the end of the reporting period. Specifically,
the amendments clarify that the classification
should not be affected by management intentions or
expectations to settle the liability within twelve months.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S MERRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2024 & E2024%#3/531H IFFE

2.

78

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“ HKF RSS”) (continued)

Amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet

effective (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities

as Current or Non-current and related amendments

to Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (2020) (2020
Amendments”) and Amendments to HKAS 1
Non-current Liabilities with Covenants (“2022
Amendments”) (continued)

For rights to defer settlement for at least twelve months from
reporting date which are conditional on the compliance
with covenants, the requirements introduced by the 2020
Amendments have been modified by the 2022 Amendments.
The 2022 Amendments specify that only covenants with
which an entity is required to comply with on or before the
end of the reporting period affect the entity’s right to defer
settlement of a liability for at least twelve months after the
reporting date. Covenants which are required to comply with
only after the reporting period do not affect whether that
right exists at the end of the reporting period.

In addition, the 2022 Amendments specify the disclosure
requirements about information that enables users of
financial statements to understand the risk that the liabilities
could become repayable within twelve months after the
reporting period, if an entity classifies liabilities arising from
loan arrangements as non-current when the entity’s right to
defer settlement of those liabilities is subject to the entity
complying with covenants within twelve months after the
reporting period.

The 2022 Amendments also defer the effective date of
applying the 2020 Amendments to annual reporting periods
beginning on 1 April 2024 with respect to the Group. The
2022 Amendments, together with the 2020 Amendments,
are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on 1
April 2024 with respect to the Group, with early application
permitted. If an entity applies the 2020 Amendments for
an earlier period after the issue of the 2022 Amendments,
the entity should also apply the 2022 Amendments for that
period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SRaMPRRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2024 & E20244F3531H IF F &

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL

ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
Basis of preparation of consolidated

financial statements

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. For
the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial
statements, information is considered material if such
information is reasonably expected to influence decisions
made by primary users. In addition, the consolidated
financial statements include applicable disclosures required
by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (“CO”).

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for investment properties
which are measured at fair values at the end of each
reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies set
out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

For financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements
are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the degree
to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are
observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value
measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

e Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity
can access at the measurement date;

e level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

e Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

Emperor Entertainment Hotel Limited 2821244 HEHRAE]

B
8!

m

B4
X &5t

CE

I

KRR
B RS

¥ 35
[

FEMBERENESE

HRAEMBRERDREBEEBEESHAQ
CHEMZEBMBREERMER -
MERGEEMBREMS > WER
CERARERETEMEAENR
RORAZEHBRAAEEZEM - IE
o REMBBRREEBRXES
EHRWCEHRU) REBRAB MK
BIasEFIFRFREZERIKE -

HMEMBRREBRELNEREER
HOEREVERSERZRPRRER
AEBEFEGEN TXHI Z G5 K
SRFRARTE) o

FEE 5B BY Ax — A A X & am B AR 5 PR
MTREZARBEARENE -

MMBREMS > 2ABEFER
BAABEAENBARBEIRR
RERAABEFENBAHESR
HERENEEUE2EAFIR - $2
AREEIMR  FIRWT

e FIRWMABEBEABRESEH
REBHSAIUNRFZERE
EFERRECRERE) ;

s BBBMABEBEAEENERE
EYEEIBER 20 ANEG
IR EENRERIN) &

e FIMMBMAHBEAEEHRRFED
FRAIBREARE -

79

Annual Report 2023/2024 ££%5



—

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S MERRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2024 & E2024%#3/531H IFFE

3.

80

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(continued)

Material accounting policy information

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities controlled
by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved
when the Company:

e has power over the investee;

e s exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

e has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to
one or more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income from the date the Group gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary.

Profit or loss is attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income
of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company
and to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SRaMPRRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2024 & E20244F3531H IF F &

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF &

m

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(continued)

Material accounting policy information
(continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein, which represent
ownership interests entitling their holders to a proportionate
share of net assets of the relevant subsidiaries upon
liguidation.

Business combinations or asset acquisitions

Optional concentration test

The Group can elect to apply an optional concentration
test, on a transaction-by-transaction basis, that permits
a simplified assessment of whether an acquired set of
activities and assets is not a business. The concentration test
is met if substantially all of the fair value of the gross assets
acquired is concentrated in a single identifiable asset or
group of similar identifiable assets. The gross assets under
assessment exclude cash and cash equivalents, deferred tax
assets, and goodwill resulting from the effects of deferred tax
liabilities. If the concentration test is met, the set of activities
and assets is determined not to be a business and no further
assessment is needed.

Asset acquisitions

When the Group acquires a group of assets and liabilities
that do not constitute a business, the Group identifies and
recognises the individual identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed by allocating the purchase price first to
investment properties which are subsequently measured
under fair value model and financial assets/financial
liabilities at the respective fair values, the remaining
balance of the purchase price is then allocated to the other
identifiable assets and liabilities on the basis of their relative
fair values at the date of purchase. Such a transaction does
not give rise to goodwill or bargain purchase gain.

Emperor Entertainment Hotel Limited 2821244 HEHRAE]

B4
X

L

I

KRR
B RS

¥ 35
[

t #

N
SN
T

EXEsHEERER ®

HEREBE (B
FREERAEBENERRBXZZ
EERAFHEEREGRE  Bm
WA XHERBEERITNES T IR
B ¥ U2 BHEH -

RBABSZFERETEAER
FritzEmDREY  HRAKES
EEoHFEFAARBERKL
PIDEERANB AR ZEERE -

EBCHAEERE
e e Al o

FEETZERZEERBERN
EPEANS AFFEHEFEKRIKE
ZEBREEENZETBINES -
ERMBBZREEZRBARBIAN
BEEFRE-—THEENEM
AHNEEMARN INEERER
Ao RAMZRBREEFABRERERK
REZEYW EERBEE > UK
FEEREGEEZEMEEZEHE -
EEFETEMNS  FHREEME
BB A B B MIEER > BEBFE

—F ¥ h e

HEWE

EAEENBIBREBZEER
BEAENFR EARIBZARE
ERBEESIEEEREAAE
BEREABEZREVERVBTEE
S E R K RS E B
WA ZEWNBEEREREGR
REeEBHEMARIEEREERE
ERBZEBLAAEE BRBEE
BERELIEEEMAIMINEERE
BoEXZAEELEREAREBEW
BBl o

81

Annual Report 2023/2024 ££%5



—

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S aMBRRMSE

For the year ended 31 March 2024 & E20244F3531H IF FE

3.

82

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(continued)
Material accounting policy information

(continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or
services underlying the particular performance obligation is
transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or
a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of
distinct goods or services that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised
over time by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation if one of
the following criteria is met:

e the customer simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefits provided by the Group’s performance as the
Group performs;

e the Group’s performance creates or enhances an asset
that the customer controls as the Group performs; or

e the Group’s performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the Group and the Group
has an enforceable right to payment for performance
completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the distinct good or service.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(continued)

Material accounting policy information
(continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)
Contracts with multiple performance obligations (including
allocation of transaction price)

For contracts that contain more than one performance
obligations including bundle sales for hotel accommodation,
and food and beverage, the Group allocates the transaction
price to each performance obligation on a relative stand-
alone selling price basis.

The stand-alone selling price of the distinct good or service
underlying each performance obligation is determined
at contract inception. It represents the price at which the
Group would sell a promised good or service separately
to a customer. If a stand-alone selling price is not directly
observable, the Group estimates it using appropriate
techniques such that the transaction price ultimately
allocated to any performance obligation reflects the amount
of consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in
exchange for transferring the promised goods or services to
the customer.

Over time revenue recognition: measurement of progress
towards complete satisfaction of a performance obligation
Output method

The progress towards complete satisfaction of a performance
obligation is measured based on output method, which is
to recognise revenue on the basis of direct measurements
of the value of the services transferred to the customer to
date relative to the remaining services promised under
the contract, that best depict the Group’s performance in
transferring control of services.
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3.

84

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(continued)
Material accounting policy information

(continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)
Performance obligations for contracts with customers

The Group provides services to a gaming concessionaire in
Macau under service arrangements for gaming operation
in mass market hall, VIP room and slot machine hall. The
performance obligation represents provision of gaming-
related marketing and public relation services to the gaming
concessionaire. Revenue from such services are recognised
as a performance obligation satisfied over time as the
Group is entitled to receive its service income according
to the relevant operating performance from the gaming
concessionaire which simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefits provided by the Group’s performance as the
Group performs.

The Group also provides hotel rooms to customers. The
performance obligation represents provision of hotel
accommodation services for the customers. Revenue from
hotel rooms is recognised as a performance obligation
satisfied over time as the Group is entitled to receive its
income according to the relevant operating performance
from the customers and the customers simultaneously
receive and consume the benefits provided by the Group’s
performance as the Group performs.

The transaction price of food and beverage sales is the
net amount collected from the customers for such goods.
The transaction price for such transactions is recorded as
revenue when the goods are transferred to the customer.
There is no other separate performance obligation identified
except for delivery of goods. The revenue on food and
beverage sales is recognised as revenue when the food and
beverage are delivered.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SRaMPRRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2024 & E20244F3531H IF F &

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. &

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(continued)

Material accounting policy information
(continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)
Performance obligations for contracts with customers
(continued)

The Group has other contracts that include multiple goods
and services, such as packages that bundle food and
beverage and other services with hotel stays. For such
arrangements, the Group allocates revenue to each good or
service based on its relative stand-alone selling price. The
Group primarily determines the stand-alone selling price of
hotel rooms and food and beverage based on the amount
that the Group charges when each is sold separately in
similar circumstances to similar customers.

Investment properties
Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals
and/or for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost,
including any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent
to initial recognition, investment properties are measured
at fair values, adjusted to exclude any prepaid or accrued
operating lease income. Gains or losses arising from changes
in the fair value of investment properties are included in
profit or loss for the period in which they arise.
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3.

86

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(continued)
Material accounting policy information

(continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tangible assets including
buildings that are held for use in the supply of goods or
services, or for administrative purposes. Property, plant
and equipment are stated in the consolidated statement
of financial position at cost or deemed cost upon transfer
from investment properties, less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment
losses, if any.

When the Group makes payments for ownership interests of
properties which includes both leasehold land and building
elements, the entire consideration is allocated between the
leasehold land and the building elements in proportion to
the relative fair values at initial recognition. To the extent the
allocation of the relevant payments can be made reliably,
interest in leasehold land is presented as“right-of-use assets”
in the consolidated statement of financial position except
for those that are classified and accounted for as investment
properties under fair value model. When the consideration
cannot be allocated reliably between non-lease building
element and undivided interest in the underlying leasehold
land, the entire properties are classified as property, plant
and equipment.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost or
deemed cost of items of property, plant and equipment less
their residual values over their estimated useful lives, using
the straight line method. The estimated useful lives, residual
values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end
of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.
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Material accounting policy information EXEHAHERH @
(continued)

Property, plant and equipment (continued) ME HBERRE (&

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised ME - BBERI[IEEEREERH

upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are

FHEZEEBERZEENSEX

expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any REBENZRFICHES - BHEE
gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item FLEFERAYME - KBBIRREEBEM

of property, plant and equipment is determined as the
difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

B (E IR 3 A R 9 S
REREEREEZEEHE I
S EE TR

Impairment on property, plant and equipment and WE HBERBEREFEZTEZ
right-of-use assets P-4/

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the REERBAXR  AEEFERAEY
carrying amounts of its property, plant and equipment E - RBEIEUAREREEEZ
and right-of-use assets to determine whether there is any REE UREESEETRER

indication that these assets have suffered an impairment
loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount
of the relevant asset is estimated in order to determine the
extent of the impairment loss, if any.

The recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets are estimated individually. When it is
not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an asset
individually, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

In testing a cash-generating unit for impairment, corporate
assets are also allocated to the relevant cash-generating
units when a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation
can be established, or otherwise they are allocated to
the smallest group of cash-generating units for which
a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be
established. The recoverable amount is determined for the
cash-generating unit or group of cash-generating units to
which the corporate asset belongs, and is compared with
the carrying amount of the relevant cash-generating unit or
group of cash generating units.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(continued)

Material accounting policy information
(continued)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets (continued)

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset (or a cash-generating unit) for which the
estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or the cash-generating unit)
is reduced to its recoverable amount. For corporate assets
or portion of corporate assets which cannot be allocated
on a reasonable and consistent basis to a cash-generating
unit, the Group compares the carrying amount of a group
of cash-generating units, including the carrying amounts of
the corporate assets or portion of corporate assets allocated
to that group of cash-generating units, with the recoverable
amount of the group of cash-generating units. In allocating
the impairment loss, the impairment loss is allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill (if applicable)
and then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis based on
the carrying amount of each asset in the unit or the group
of cash-generating units. The carrying amount of an asset
is not reduced below the highest of its fair value less costs
of disposal (if measurable), its value in use (if determinable)
and zero. The amount of the impairment loss that would
otherwise have been allocated to the asset is allocated
pro rata to the other assets of the unit or the group of
cash-generating units. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Emperor Entertainment Hotel Limited & 21244 EEBRAF)
Annual Report 2023/2024 %k

&
#

m

MEBERERE
RAEFHEET

b

¥ 35
e
o

o
SN
T

EXGHHEEER @

HE BEBRZGREFARKETEZ
E

AREZFEALXIABEREERS
REBBEEMEZRSE - R
EREER GStZ2AKRREERE
MARMITRERITREARE X
RREmMTIEHEEEREBEEKRMGE
SAARRBEERERERABZEENR
ReEEFTEUZBERRZFTME -

MEBHEEXNREEEEMNZAR
METEAFBREREE ZEE
FREEEFEMUZREERZHNR
EHAKREBZHE HREEFEER
BOEEEEAEGE - D
EF-RRESELEEURN FEBRLR
—HREEELENNREEEED
FEEREE > ABPEDEEZXE
REELTBEUNGCXEEREE A
ZHEBRTEEEMUZAIKROEE-
DEMEBER > ZAEGERL
53 Bo LA B 1K A ] 75 2 B9 AR 0 (E (i@
B) MEERNZEMRNHZERE
EXBUKBEEEZREERLLHA
PEEEMEE . —HEENKRE
BEAERERRAEAABERLE
BAMAstE)  HEREEWA
BERIRERRSE - FRIREZ
EEMNHEGEZEERILE 2
EZBEUNYZEREEEEUNE
MEE - BREGEIHNFRIEDR

.
8 o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SRaMPRRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2024 & E20244F3531H IF F &

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF &

m

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(continued)

Material accounting policy information
(continued)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets (continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit or a
group of cash-generating units) is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset (or a cash-generating unit or a group
of cash-generating units) in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Leases

Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the
right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after the date
of initial application of HKFRS 16 Leases (“HKFRS 16”) or
arising from business combinations, the Group assesses
whether a contract is or contains a lease based on the
definition under HKFRS 16 at inception, modification date or
acquisition date, as appropriate. Such contract will not be
reassessed unless the terms and conditions of the contract
are subsequently changed.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S aMBRRMSE

For the year ended 31 March 2024 & E20244F3531H IF FE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(continued)

Material accounting policy information
(continued)

Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessee

Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

The Group applies practical expedient not to separate non-
lease components from lease component, and instead
account for the lease component and any associated non-
lease components as a single lease component.

Short-term leases

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to leases of land and buildings and motor
vehicles that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the
commencement date and do not contain a purchase option.
Lease payments on short-term leases are recognised as
expense on a straight-line basis or another systematic basis
over the lease term.

Right-of-use assets
The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

e the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liability; and

e any initial direct costs incurred by the Group.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses. Right-of-use assets are
depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of its
estimated useful life and the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets that do not meet the

definition of investment property or inventory as a separate
line item on the consolidated statement of financial position.
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MBS RRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2024 & E20244F3531H IF F &

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(continued)
Material accounting policy information

(continued)

Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group recognises
and measures the lease liability at the present value of
lease payments that are unpaid at that date. In calculating
the present value of lease payments, the Group uses the
incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement
date if the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable.

The lease payments include fixed payments (including
in-substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives
receivable.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted
by interest accretion and lease payments.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line item on
the consolidated statement of financial position.

The Group as a lessor

Classification and measurement of leases

Leases for which the Group is a lessor are classified as
operating leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in
profit or loss on a straight line basis over the term of the
relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating
and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying
amount of the leased asset, and such costs are recognised as
an expense on a straight line basis over the lease term except
for investment properties measured under fair value model.

Rental income which are derived from the Group’s ordinary
course of business are presented as revenue.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S aMBRRMSE

For the year ended 31 March 2024 & E20244F3531H IF FE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(continued)

Material accounting policy information
(continued)

Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessor (continued)

Allocation of consideration to components of a contract
When a contract includes both leases and non-lease
components, the Group applies HKFRS 15 Revenue from
Contracts with Customers (“HKFRS 15”) to allocate
consideration in a contract to lease and non-lease
components. Non-lease components are separated from
lease component on the basis of their relative stand-alone
selling prices.

Cash and cash equivalents and pledged bank deposits
Bank balances and cash and pledged bank deposits
presented on the consolidated statement of financial
position include:

(a) cash, which comprises of cash on hand and demand
deposits, excluding bank balances that are subject to
regulatory restrictions that result in such balances no
longer meeting the definition of cash; and

(b) cash equivalents, which comprise of short-term
(generally with original maturity of three months
or less), highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible to a known amount of cash and subject to
an insignificant risk of changes in value, and pledged
bank deposits, which comprise of restricted deposits
arising from requirement under the New Gaming
Concession Contract that are held for meeting short-
term cash commitments. Cash equivalents are held for
the purpose of meeting short-term cash commitments
rather than for investment or other purposes.

For the purposes of the consolidated statement of cash

flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of bank balances
and cash.
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(continued)

Material accounting policy information EXEHHERR B
(continued)

Inventories #R

Inventories represent food and beverage, consumable and
other goods of hotel and are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Costs of inventories are determined on
a first-in, first-out method. Net realisable value represents
the estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated
costs of completion and costs necessary to make the sale.
Costs necessary to make the sale include incremental costs
directly attributable to the sale and non-incremental costs
which the Group must incur to make the sale.

Taxation
Taxation credit represents the sum of current and deferred
income tax (credit) expense.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profits differs from profit (loss) before taxation
because of income or expense that are taxable or deductible
in other years and items that are never taxable or deductible.
The Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax
rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised
for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profits will be available against
which those deductible temporary differences can be
utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from the
initial recognition (other than in a business combination)
of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither
the taxable profit nor the accounting profit and at the time
of the transaction does not give rise to equal taxable and
deductible temporary differences.
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3.

94

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(continued)

Material accounting policy information
(continued)

Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries
except where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred
tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments are only recognised to
the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient
taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in
the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of
its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for investment
properties that are measured using the fair value model, the
carrying amounts of such properties are presumed to be
recovered entirely through sale, unless the presumption is
rebutted. The presumption is rebutted when the investment
property is depreciable and is held within a business model
whose objective is to consume substantially all of the
economic benefits embodied in the investment property
over time, rather than through sale. If the presumption is
rebutted, deferred tax for such investment properties are
measured in accordance with the above general principles
set out in HKAS 12 (i.e. based on the expected manner as to
how the properties will be recovered).
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Material accounting policy information EXEHHERR B
(continued)

Taxation (continued) wRE (&

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority on either:

(a) the same taxable entity; or

(b) different taxable entities which intend either to
settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net
basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously, in each future period in which
significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets
are expected to be settled or recovered.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are
recognised at the rates of exchanges prevailing at the
dates of the transactions. At the end of each reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost
in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit
schemes are recognised as an expense when employees
have rendered service entitling them to the contributions.
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3.

96

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(continued)

Material accounting policy information
(continued)

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid
as and when employees rendered the services. All short-
term employee benefits are recognised as an expense unless
another HKFRS requires or permits the inclusion of the
benefit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees
(such as wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave)
after deducting any amount already paid.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when
a group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instruments. All regular way purchases or sales of
financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade
date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the time frame established by regulation or convention in
the market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value except for trade receivables arising
from contracts with customers which are initially measured
in accordance with HKFRS 15. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial
assets and financial liabilities are added to or deducted from
the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability
and of allocating interest income and interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts and
payments (including all fees and points paid or received
that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through
the expected life of the financial asset or financial liability,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SRaMPRRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2024 & E20244F3531H IF F &

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. &

m

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(continued)

Material accounting policy information
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

e the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is to collect contractual cash flows; and

e the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for financial assets measured subsequently at
amortised cost. Interest income is calculated by applying
the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount
of a financial asset, except for financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-impaired (see below). For
financial assets that have subsequently become credit-
impaired, interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial
asset from the next reporting period. If the credit risk on
the credit-impaired financial instrument improves so that
the financial asset is no longer credit-impaired, interest
income is recognised by applying the effective interest
rate to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset
from the beginning of the reporting period following the
determination that the asset is no longer credit-impaired.

B4
X

L

I

KRR
B RS

e
RE

EXEHERER =
EMIA ()

t #

N
SN
T

BATIRGEZEMAER BEE
DELE ¥

e HEZTHEEZEBEABN

ABRBRENEERE &
e GHBRNEEAPEEZR

%mgﬁﬂ%§ﬁ$$&$ﬁ
BEAEZHE -

BN RF S WA

HERBHEKNSFEZESMEEL
FMEWATRBERN R AZHE -
MEBMADEEREMEENKRE
MEERRERANXZAHE HEHES
REERENEREERINETX)
MEBLBEEFERENEMEEM
ECHNEBRATEBRBHEREER
TERSHANBERETERERF
EMED -WMECGERENEZ/RMT
BGFERBRIE BEEHET®
EEFAHAHREERE AISKA
DEBHETRMEENERNEEZER
EABUHBEEERERZKRSHRA
MEZIREQERBAERF XME

Z
a8 o

Emperor Entertainment Hotel Limited 2821244 HEHRAE]

Annual Report 2023/2024 &3 97



—

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S aMBRRMSE

For the year ended 31 March 2024 & E20244F3531H IF FE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(continued)

Material accounting policy information
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets and lease receivables
subject to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments (“HKFRS 9”)

The Group performs impairment assessment under expected
credit loss (“ECL”) on financial assets (including trade and
other receivables, pledged bank deposits, short-term bank
deposits and bank balances) and lease receivables which
are subject to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9. The
amount of ECL is updated at each reporting date to reflect
changes in credit risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all
possible default events over the expected life of the relevant
instrument. In contrast, 12 months ECL (“12m ECL”)
represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to
result from default events that are possible within 12 months
after the reporting date. Assessment are done based on
the Group’s historical credit loss experiences, adjusted for
factors that are specific to the debtors, general economic
conditions and an assessment of both the current conditions
at the reporting date as well as the forecast of future
conditions.

The Group always recognises a lifetime ECL for trade
receivables and lease receivables.

For other financial instruments, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has been
a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
in which case the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The
assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be recognised is
based on significant increases in the likelihood or risk of a
default occurring since initial recognition.
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MBS RRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2024 & E20244F3531H IF F &

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(continued)

Material accounting policy information
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets and lease receivables
subject to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments (‘“HKFRS 9”) (continued)

(i) Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a
default occurring on the financial instrument as at the
date of initial recognition. In making this assessment,
the Group considers both quantitative and qualitative
information that is reasonable and supportable,
including historical experience and forward-looking
information that is available without undue cost or
effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly:

* an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the financial instrument’s external (if available) or
internal credit rating;

e existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected
to cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s
ability to meet its debt obligations; or

e an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the operating results of the debtor.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S aMBRRMSE

For the year ended 31 March 2024 & E2024%#3/531H IFFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

Material accounting policy information

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets and lease receivables

subject to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 Financial

Instruments (“HKFRS 9”) (continued)

(i)

100

Significant increase in credit risk (continued)
Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk on a financial
asset has increased significantly since initial recognition
when contractual payments are more than 30 days past
due, unless the Group has reasonable and supportable
information that demonstrates otherwise.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of
the criteria used to identify whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the
amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group
considers an event of default occurs when information
developed internally or obtained from external sources
indicates that the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors,
including the Group, in full (without taking into account
any collaterals held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that
default has occurred when a financial asset is more than
90 days past due unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information to demonstrate that a more
lagging default criterion is more appropriate.
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MBS RRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2024 & E20244F3531H IF F &

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

Material accounting policy information

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets and lease receivables

subject to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 Financial

Instruments (“HKFRS 9”) (continued)

(iii) Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred.
Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired
includes observable data about the following events:

(a) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower;

(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or past due

event;

the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower
a concession(s) that the lender(s) would not
otherwise consider; or

(d) itis becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation.

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the counterparty is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect
of recovery, for example, when the counterparty has
been placed under liquidation or has entered into
bankruptcy proceedings. Financial assets written off
may still be subject to enforcement activities under
the Group’s recovery procedures, taking into account
legal advice where appropriate. A write-off constitutes
a derecognition event. Any subsequent recoveries are
recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S MERRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2024 & E2024%#3/531H IFFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

Material accounting policy information

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets and lease receivables

subject to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 Financial

Instruments (“HKFRS 9”) (continued)

(v)

102

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability
of default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the
loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default. The
assessment of the probability of default and loss given
default is based on historical data and forward-looking
information. Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased and
probability-weighted amount that is determined with
the respective risks of default occurring as the weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and the cash flows that
the Group expects to receive, discounted at the effective
interest rate determined at initial recognition. For a
lease receivable, the cash flows used for determining the
ECL is consistent with the cash flows used in measuring
the lease receivable in accordance with HKFRS 16.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset unless the
financial asset is credit-impaired, in which case interest
income is calculated based on amortised cost of the
financial asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss
in profit or loss for all financial instruments by
adjusting their carrying amount, with the exception
of trade receivables and lease receivables where the
corresponding adjustment is recognised through a loss
allowance account.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SRaMPRRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2024 & E20244F3531H IF F &

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. &

m

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(continued)

Material accounting policy information
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised
cost, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received and receivable is
recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities and equity

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial
liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance
of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all
of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company
are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue
costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments is
recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or
cancellation of the Company’s own equity instruments.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities including trade and other payables,
amounts due to fellow subsidiaries and amounts due to
non-controlling interests of subsidiaries are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
method.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S aMBRRMSE

For the year ended 31 March 2024 & E20244F3531H IF FE

3.

104

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(continued)
Material accounting policy information

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity (continued)

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount
of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration
paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENT
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which
are described in note 3, the directors of the Company are
required to make judgments, estimates and assumptions
about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and
underlying assumptions are based on historical experience
and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised
if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

Critical judgment in applying accounting
policies

The following is the critical judgment, apart from those
involving estimations (see below), that the directors of the
Company have made in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies and that have the most significant effect
on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial
statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SRaMPRRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2024 & E20244F3531H IF F &

4, CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENT

AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Critical judgment in applying accounting
policies (continued)

Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or
deferred tax assets arising from investment properties that
are measured using the fair value model, the directors of the
Company have reviewed the Group’s investment property
portfolios and concluded that the Group’s investment
properties situated in Macau with aggregate carrying
amount of HKS$511,900,000 as at 31 March 2024 (2023:
HK$492,200,000) are held within a business model whose
objective is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in these investment properties over
time, rather than through sale. Therefore, the directors of
the Company have determined that the presumption that
the carrying amounts of such investment properties are
recovered through sale is rebutted. As a result, the Group
has recognised deferred tax liabilities of HK$39,177,000
(2023: HKS$36,813,000) on changes in fair value of the
investment properties subject to Macau Complementary Tax
on the assumption that these investment properties will be
recovered through use as at 31 March 2024.

In respect of investment properties that are located in Hong
Kong with aggregate carrying amount of HK$974,000,000
(2023: HKS1,014,000,000), the directors of the Company
concluded that these investment properties are not held
within a business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in these
investment properties over time. Therefore, in measuring the
Group’s deferred taxation in these investment properties,
the directors of the Company have determined that the
presumption that the carrying amounts of such investment
properties using the fair value model are recovered entirely
through sale is not rebutted. As a result, the Group has not
recognised any deferred tax liability on changes in fair value
of the investment properties situated in Hong Kong, as it is
expected that the Group will not subject to any income taxes
on disposal of these investment properties.
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4,

106

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENT
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
end of the reporting period that may have a significant risk
of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

Valuation of investment properties

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties in Macau
and Hong Kong was estimated based on a valuation on these
properties conducted by an independent firm of qualified
professional property valuers engaged by the Company and
approved by the directors of the Company using income
capitalisation method with significant unobservable inputs
and assumptions of market conditions for both years. The
relevant inputs and conditions include capitalisation rates
and comparable market rent transactions with adjustments
to reflect different locations or conditions, and changes in
market conditions for both years.

The Group’s investment properties held for capital
appreciation and for earning rental income under operating
leases of commercial properties in Macau amounted to
HK$511,900,000 (2023: HK$492,200,000) as at 31 March 2024.
Fair value gains arising from those investment properties
of HK$19,700,000 (2023: HKS$10,700,000) were recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income for the year ended 31 March 2024.

The Group’s investment properties held for earning rental
income under operating leases of serviced apartments
in Hong Kong amounted to HKS$974,000,000 (2023:
HKS$1,014,000,000) as at 31 March 2024. Fair value losses
arising from those investment properties of HK$40,000,000
(2023: fair value gains of HKS$9,000,000) were recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income for the year ended 31 March 2024.

The basis of valuation is disclosed in note 14. Changes to
these assumptions and inputs would result in changes in
the fair value of investment properties and corresponding
adjustments to the amount of gain or loss reported in the
profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SRaMPRRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2024 & E20244F3531H IF F &

4, CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENT

AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)
Key sources of estimation uncertainty

(continued)

Valuation of investment properties (continued)

In estimating the fair value of the Group’s investment
properties, the Group uses market-observable data to the
extent it is available. At the end of each reporting period,
the designated team works closely with the independent
firms of qualified professional property valuers engaged by
the Company to establish and determine the appropriate
valuation techniques and inputs for Level 3 fair value
measurements.

Impairment assessment on the recoverable amounts of

4.

BEEgAEEEHAR
BEHZEERE®

B FHEEHEZEERE @

REMEZIGE (B
FEBRNBRERSZT B IRREH
BRAGTEBRENMEZAAE
B - REEHRHR EEEHEHLESL
REZEBENBULCEREEYEM
BEMTEEARE URIKRREE
BHNEERMKRFEIRAANEBESE
B & A B o

BESHKBHIEZHIERENERE

property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets BRZHE BERBEREHE
in respect of hotel and related operations in Grand BERBEEBEEBFENE)ZT
Emperor Hotel (collectively “Grand Emperor Hotel i 6] £ 88 2 % (B F 15

Properties”)

The impairment assessment of the Grand Emperor Hotel
Properties is performed by comparing the recoverable
amount of the Grand Emperor Hotel Properties, which is the
higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in use to
its carrying amount as at 31 March 2024.

The recoverable amount of the Grand Emperor Hotel
Properties is estimated based on fair value less cost
of disposal using income approach with significant
unobservable inputs and key assumptions adopted by the
management of the Group including forecasted revenue and
costs, and discount rate applied in the valuation conducted
by an independent firm of qualified professional valuers
engaged by the Company and approved by the directors of
the Company. Changing the inputs and assumptions could
materially affect the fair value.

During the year ended 31 March 2024, no impairment loss
has been recognised on the Grand Emperor Hotel Properties
(2023: Nil).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MBRRMSE

For the year ended 31 March 2024 &t Z20244# 3531 H IF &

5. REVENUE
(a) Contracts with customers

108

An analysis of the Group’s revenueis AHNEBZIWASHWT :
as follows:
Recognised over time: R—ERR R
Gaming revenue: BRWA:
— Service income from gaming —PIEEERS ZRH
transactions in mass market hall N 441,491 80,756
— Service income from gaming —AFREEERSZ
transactions in slot machine hall AR 75 Wx A 17,659 6,294
— Service income from gaming —BEEERERZZ
transactions in VIP room AR 75 W A 690
Hotel revenue: BIEWA
— Hotel room income —BEEEWRA 166,247 85,168
— Others — Hith 871 13,765
626,268 186,673
Recognised at a point in time: MRS ERRE:S:
Hotel revenue: BIEUWA
— Food and beverage sales —BEMEE 114,469 74,000
Revenue from contracts with RKEEFRAHBKA
customers 740,737 260,673
Gaming revenue HE WA 459,150 87,740
Hotel revenue B IE A 281,587 172,933
Revenue from contracts with REEFRAEHBA
customers 740,737 260,673

On 15 June 2022, Tin Hou Limited (“Tin Hou”), an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
entered into an agreement with SJM Resorts, S.A.
(“SJM”) for the provision of the hotel rooms, catering
and other ancillary services for the gaming operation
run by SJM in Grand Emperor Hotel from 27 June
2022 to 31 December 2022, and on 30 December 2022,
Tin Hou, entered into an agreement with SJM for the
provision of gaming-related marketing and public
relation services to SJM in Grand Emperor Hotel for a
term of 3 years commencing from 1 January 2023.

Emperor Entertainment Hotel Limited 2221244 HEHRAE]
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MBS RRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2024 & E20244F3531H IF F &

5. REVENVE (continued)

(a) Contracts with customers (continued)
Transaction price allocated to the remaining
performance obligations for contracts with
customers
All sales or services rendered from gaming and hotel
transactions are for contracts with an original period of
one year or less. As a practical expedient under HKFRS
15, the transaction price allocated to these remaining
performance obligations is not disclosed.

(b) Leases

Total revenue arising from leases:

Operating lease payments that are
fixed

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

5. KA @
(Q)ERaH #®)
HEERNIRERTHRYE
FZEEERE

BEEERBEXZRENFA
HEXARBIISRBRD —F
HUANEH - FRBEBMBR
HEABISRZAIITEESZE
TREZEFFETROEEZX
BEBRTIKE -

()&

BlREEZHEEA:

B E & & HE R

2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FHEr F#ET
30,446

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION

The executive directors of the Company (“Executive
Directors”) have been identified as the chief operating
decision makers (“CODM”). The CODM review the Group’s
internal reporting in order to assess performance and
allocate resources.

The segment information reported externally is analysed
on the basis of the composition of its reporting segments
by geographical operations, which are Macau operations
and Hong Kong operations, respectively. The CODM are of
the view that the presentation of the operating segment
information better reflects the Group’s operations and this is
consistent with the internal information regularly reviewed
by the CODM for the purposes of resources allocation and
assessment of performance.

Emperor Entertainment Hotel Limited #2244 EEFRAE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S aMBRRMSE

For the year ended 31 March 2024 & E2024%#3/531H IFFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

The Group’s operating segments are classified as (i) Macau
operations and (ii) Hong Kong operations. The details of the
Group’s operating segments are as follows:

(i) Macau operations

Operations in Macau derive revenues from gaming, hotel
and leasing transactions: (a) gaming revenue from services
rendered for mass market hall, slot machine hall and
VIP room transactions and provision of gaming-related
marketing and public relation services for Grand Emperor
Hotel, (b) hotel revenue from sales or services rendered
in Grand Emperor Hotel and Inn Hotel, and (c) leasing
revenue from investment properties in these hotels.

(ii) Hong Kong operations

Operations in Hong Kong derive revenues from hotel
and leasing transactions: (a) hotel revenue from sales
or services rendered in a hotel and (b) leasing revenue
from investment properties in the hotel and serviced
apartments.

The CODM assess the performance of individual operating
and reportable segments based on a measure of adjusted
profit (loss) before interest, tax, depreciation, impairment
losses reversed on property, plant and equipment,
exchange losses at corporate level and fair value changes of
investment properties (“Adjusted EBITDA (LBITDA)”).

110
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SFaMPERRMGE

For the year ended 31 March 2024 &t Z20244# 3531 H IF &

6. EEH @

Information regarding the above segments is reported ERLtEDBZEHNEZROT:
below:

Segment revenues and results REWARES

For the year ended 31 March 2024 B F2024F3HF31A L E

Segment revenue
Gaming revenue
Hotel revenue
Leasing revenue

Total

Segment result based on the
Adjusted EBITDA

Bank interest income

Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment

Depreciation of right-of-use
assets

Exchange losses at corporate
level

Fair value changes of
investment properties
Finance costs

Profit before taxation

SEWA
IEEA PN 459,150 — 459,150
B 5 WA 171,433 110,154 281,587
HEWA 18,925 pL R 48,525
aF 649,508 139,754 789,262
BN & HEEBITDAZ
DEERE 151,936 23,095 175,031
RITF S WA 19,311
ME- - HBRRKREZ
e (120,457)
EREEEZINE
(17,024)
TEEENERER
(78)
REMEAARBEZ
29 (20,300)
MHBER (1,073)
B 75 A0 i A 35,410

Emperor Entertainment Hotel Limited 2 21244A/EARAT]
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R MPRRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2024 & E2024%#3/531H IFFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. ﬁ#ﬁfé*il (%)
Segment revenues and results (continued) DHEWBWARES &)
For the year ended 31 March 2023 B F2023F3H31HIFFEE
Macau Hong Kong
operations operations Total
P E TS BERED aF
HKS 000 HKS’ 000 HKS 000
F#ET FET FET
Segment revenue FHEBA
Gaming revenue EER WA 87,740 — 87,740
Hotel revenue BIEWA 94,079 78,854 172,933
Leasing revenue HEWKA 7,549 22,897 30,446
Total =k 189,368 101,751 291,119
Segment result based on the E R & HE (LBITDA)

Adjusted (LBITDA) EBITDA EBITDAZ D IE% 4 (110,207) 408 (109,799)
Bank interest income RITFBWA 8,853
Depreciation of property, M- -HBRZHEZ

plant and equipment e (113,572)
Depreciation of right-of-use FEREBEZINE

assets (17,008)
Impairment losses reversed M- HBRRRE

on property, plant and WOz RESIE

equipment 31,781
Exchange losses at corporate ¥ B HE R E R 518

level (57)
Fair value changes of KEMEARBEZ

investment properties B 19,700
Finance costs % &R (1,109)
Loss before taxation B #2711 A5 18 (181,211)

Other than the segment information disclosed above, there BREXBZDEERD  RBE
was no other information reviewed by the CODM for the year 2024%3H31H ’&2023%F3H31H 1t
ended 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023. FER HMEEMEHEIERE
RENER -

Segment assets and liabilities PHEERAR

No analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities by operating HRAEBRTEEHRIEERA
and reportable segments is disclosed as it is not regularly ERNHEEREBROIMNTEEL
provided to the CODM for review. ?T REANBR RIBKBIEMRD

Emperor Entertainment Hotel Limited 52 {244 FEEFRAE]
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SFaMPERRMGE

For the year ended 31 March 2024 &t Z20244# 3531 H IF &

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. PEEHE »®
Geographical information & |
The Group’s operations are located in Macau and Hong AEBMNEBUNBRMRES -
Kong.
The Group’s revenue from external customers and FEERBIBEFZNARER
information about its non-current assets, other than a EEMEBUEBEE 2ZIERPEECK
pledged bank deposit, by geographical location of the assets BRE-EEEARITERIZEHNN
are detailed below: FBEWMT:

Macau 649,508 189,368 1,751,126 1,811,141
Hong Kong R 139,754 101,751 2,375,076 2,459,811

789,262 291,119 4,126,202 4,270,952

Information about major customer EMRETEERZEH

During the year ended 31 March 2024, revenue derived from REE2024F3831BILEERN > K E

one (2023: one) customer which contributed over 10% of the IEARERAKRAL0%MU £z —5 (023

Group’s total revenue amounted to HK$459,150,000 (2023: F:—R)F P UL A #E459,150,0007%

HK$100,536,000). The revenue related to Macau operations 75 (20234 : 100,536,000 7T) © Z UL A

(2023: Macau operations). BURPIEETE (20235F RPIZER) BR ©
7. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES 7. Bty 25 R 518

Net foreign exchange losses EREEFE (57)
Forfeiture of unredeemed commission BWEEERRBERH
expenses in gaming operation (Note) HE &R Z) 22,305
Others Hith (929)
Note: The amount represented the forfeiture of commission payable to Mz ZeEARELDRAMEREBRKE
gaming patrons after the expiry of the redemption period. THEEEEREZEE -
8. FINANCE COSTS 8. HEER

Interest on lease liabilities HEaEEMNE
Bank charges RITFEE

Emperor Entertainment Hotel Limited 2 21244A/EARAT]
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MBRRMSE

For the year ended 31 March 2024 &t Z20244# 3531 H IF &

9. PROFIT (LOSS) BEFORE TAXATION 9. B&# At 1 (B548)

Profit (loss) before taxation has been PR ARSI (B518)
arrived at after charging: 2k :
Staff costs, including directors’ BEIMA > SFEEEMNE

emoluments
Retirement benefit schemes contributions i Kk 18 I &t 21 1t =X

Total staff costs WE TR A

Auditor’s remuneration % 81 BT B &

Commission expenses in gaming BREBZ2AEER
operation (included in selling and GtASHERTIHEE
marketing expenses) HEHRA)

Cost of inventories recognised as MBS ZEERE
an expense

Depreciation of property, plant and MES-RBERREZITE
equipment

Depreciation of right-of-use assets FRAEEEZINE

Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEME - KERKREZ
equipment 518

and after crediting: REstA:

Gross rental income from investment KEMEZHEWRAEEE
properties

Less: Direct operating expenses incurred & - M BERBE S KA BN

for investment properties that KREMEFRELEDN
generated rental income (included EEKERX(GTA
in administrative expenses) THERX)

Bank interest income (included in other RITH B WA

income) (Gt A EHAh g A R)

Government subsidies (included in other  BEUFF#HBL (5t A Efthlg A A1)
income) (Note) (Kt a2)

Gain on disposal of a subsidiary (included H&—FREH B R Z K
in other income) (Gt A EHAMhg A A)

Gain on disposal of property, plant and HEWE - KBRRHEZ
equipment e 7

Note: The government subsidies recognised during the year ended MiaE:

31 March 2023 represented certain Covid-19-related subsidies
from Macau and Hong Kong governments with no unfulfilled
condition.

Emperor Entertainment Hotel Limited 2221244 HEHRAE]
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292,230 254,631
3,980 2,772

296,210 257,403
4,400 4,016

69,706 10,324
36,429 23,061

120,457 113,572
17,024 17,008

54 —

30,446

(484)
29,962
8,853
3,859
1,434
1,291
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SFaMPERRMGE

For the year ended 31 March 2024 &t Z20244# 3531 H IF &

10.DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
INDIVIDUALS’ EMOLUMENTS

(a) Directors’ emoluments
Directors’ emoluments for the year, disclosed pursuant

NEFERIZEEHFMAL
2 % B

(a) = = & EM
EERNAEEZEHREER

to the applicable Listing Rules and CO, is as follows:

2024
Fees ik

EHRAUKRABGAREDT

Other emoluments HtEM
Salaries and other benefits HERHEMERN
Retirement benefit schemes BUEEREER
contributions
Performance related ARFHHYNES
incentive payment (Note) (i)
2023 2023%F
Fees g - 198 198 190 190 111 79 966
Other emoluments HtE
Salaries and other benefits HEREMERN - - - - - - - -
Retirement benefit schemes BABFEMT
contributions - - - - - - - -
Performance related BERHANES
incentive payment (Wofe) () - - - - - - - -
- 198 198 190 190 111 79 966
Note: The performance related incentive payment is determined Kz BIREHBHNESTIIENE

with reference to the financial performance and individual
performance.

The chief executives of the Company are also the
Executive Directors and the emoluments disclosed
above include those services rendered by them as chief
executives.

The Executive Directors’ emoluments shown above
were mainly for their services in connection with the
management of the affairs of the Company and the
Group. The emoluments of non-executive director and
independent non-executive directors shown above were
mainly for their services as directors of the Company.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R MPRRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2024 & E2024%#3/531H IFFE

10.DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHESTPAID 10.EEREESSSHMAL

INDIVIDUALS’ EMOLUMENTS (continued) ZEM =
(b) Employees’ emoluments (b) & & # EM
The five highest paid individuals did not include any RREFEFEN > BE2REHMA
director of the Company for both years. The total TAREERABRERNESE - ZE
emoluments of the five highest paid individuals for both EEeFMALTRmEFEZ
years were as follows: HENAREEW T :
2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$ 000
T#Er FET
Salaries and other benefits HmEREMEF 4,395
Retirement benefit schemes RIKAEF 5T & AR
contributions 90

116

4,485

Number of individuals

AH
2024 2023
Emoluments of the employees BEZFHFMMAFEUTEHER:
were within the following
bands:
HKS$500,000 - HKS$1,000,000 500,000 7t £1,000,0007% JT 4
HKS$1,000,001 - HKS1,500,000 1,000,0017% 7t 1,500,000 7T —
HKS$1,500,001 - HKS$2,000,000 1,500,001 75t £2,000,0007% 7T 1
No remuneration was paid by the Group to the directors RREFEAN > AEEHRERE
and the five highest paid employees as an inducement ERbErEHmMEEXME
to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation I # B > UERRSIEFMAS
for loss of office for both years. None of the directors FOON A 7 & B By 2 4% & B RE B
and the five highest paid individuals has waived any ZHE - MMEEFERN > HESE
emoluments during both years. EFHLEReHFMATIKRER

fe] B o

Emperor Entertainment Hotel Limited & 21244 EEBRAF)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SRaMPRRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2024 & E20244F3531H IF F &

10.DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
INDIVIDUALS’ EMOLUMENTS (continued)
(c) Retirement benefit schemes

WVEERABESHFMAL
2 =
(c)iBtAEF T

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme for all qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The
assets of the plans are held separately from those of the
Group in funds under the control of the independent
trustees. The Group and each employee make
mandatory contributions of 5% of relevant payroll costs
with maximum monthly contribution of HK$1,500 to the
scheme.

The Group also operates a defined contribution
retirement scheme for all qualifying employees of a
subsidiary of the Group in Macau since 1 September
2014. The assets of the scheme are held separately
from those of the Group in funds under control of
independent trustees. The retirement scheme cost
recognised in profit or loss represents contributions
payable to funds by the Group at rates specified in the
rules of the scheme. Where there are employees of the
Group who leave the scheme prior to vesting fully in the
contributions, the contributions payable by the Group
are reduced by the amount of forfeited contributions.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in Macau are
members of state-managed retirement benefit schemes
operated by the Macau government. The Group is
required to contribute a certain percentage of its payroll
to the retirement benefit schemes to fund the benefits.
The only obligation of the Group with respect to the
retirement benefit schemes is to make the required
contributions under the schemes.

During the year ended 31 March 2024, the retirement
benefit schemes contributions were HK$3,980,000 (2023:
HKS2,772,000).

TXEBSETHMECERER
EBEEZEMATMELTEEFE - &%
SHEIZEEHBILETAES
ZEESFA ULHAEBZEE
PR AEERERESREM
#r 2 A A B95% [ 5t 8 F 5%
M@ R ERAS H1,500
BT e

KAEBEB2014F9B 10 ETAE
EEZz—HERPFIKE QBRI
EoEREEEMERMHERE
REtd - ZEBZEERBILRE
AAERIZESHAE LHKE
EEEDHR - MiBm AR
B IR 5 8 Bl 45 45 4 & B #% 51 &
MAFMSTEEXRERABESREZ
MR HAEAEERBRENHRER
BEARMEE > AEHESH
AR B R W R & 2R F LA
i ©

FAEBRMMBLRABZEET
AEMBREEZEREER
REMFEZHE - NEBEAR
BEEHFMzEEEDLEEDZR
REFEHEIHR - EREEHZ
BABAMGEARKEZEEE
RRERZAE ZREETMH

=+
;o

8 E2024F3831H Ik £ B
R BARBAAEMHREZES
3,980,000 7t (20234 : 2,772,000
BIT) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MBRRMSE

For the year ended 31 March 2024 &t Z20244# 3531 H IF &

118

11.TAXATION CREDIT 11.78 I8 [o] 43
2024 2023
HK$’000 HKS 000
TER FE T
Current tax: HAIRIA :
Macau Complementary Tax (“CT”) BMFFEHETR
(TPRiGH TR ) (3,073) (862)
Hong Kong Profits Tax BEEMNER (980) (150)
(4,053) (1,012)
Reversal of CT provision in respect of BEOBEFEZ
prior years Fris iR & 45,478 52,371
Over (under) provision in prior years: BEFEBERERS
(BERRE) :
CT FRig w1 467 —
Hong Kong Profits Tax BEENER (6) -
461 -
Deferred taxation (note 25) IR IE R I8 (M7 3£ 25) (14,465) 1,855
Taxation credit 2 18 [o] #2 27,421 53,214

The CT is calculated at the applicable rate of 12% of the
estimated assessable profits for both years.

Pursuant to the CT law, the statutory right to issue CT
assessment on the estimated assessable profit in a year of
assessment will expire in five consecutive years after that
year of assessment. At the end of the reporting period, the
directors of the Company reassessed the adequacy of the
CT provision and determined to reverse part of the Group’s
relevant CT provision of HK$45,478,000 for the 2018 year
of assessment (2023: HK$52,371,000 for the 2017 year of
assessment) accordingly.

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated
assessable profits for both years.

Emperor Entertainment Hotel Limited 2221244 HEHRAE]
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11.TAXATION CREDIT (continued)

The taxation credit for the year can be reconciled to the
profit (loss) before taxation per consolidated statement of

11.1R I8 [E % =

profit or loss and other comprehensive income as follows: BRWIF:
2024
HK$ 000
FEx
Profit (loss) before taxation R ETEF (B518) 35,410
Taxation (charge) credit at the CT rate of ISR AEMRBEL%
12% SPEZMIE (Z ) B # (4,249)

Tax effect of expenses not deductible for
tax purpose

Tax effect of income not taxable for tax
purpose

FLAR B M S A & 00 B X
ZRBTE

MIRBMSBARREA
ZRBEE

(10,031)

4,400

Tax effect of tax losses not recognised REDREBIEZ
mEpe (5,773)

Effect of reversal of tax provision in BOBEFFERERHEZ

respect of prior years EE 45,478
Utilisation of tax losses previously not B) A ST Al R B 5T

recognised MIEEE 1,262
Tax effect of deductible temporary AERANBEREER

differences not recognised ZHBEE (3,812)
Others Hh (315)
Overprovision in prior years BEFEBREER 461
Taxation credit for the year F E 18 [o] 27,421

12.DIVIDENDS 12.88 B

The board of directors of the Company has recommended
the payment of the final dividend of HKS0.015 (2023: Nil)
per share for the year ended 31 March 2024 amounting to
approximately HK$17,830,000 (2023: Nil), which is subject to
approval of the shareholders of the Company at the annual

general meeting.

HERBAEE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SRaMPRRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2024 # Z20244#3/531H 1FF Z

Bk HAth

2023
HK$ 000
FTET

(181,211)

21,745
(22,989)
7,124
(12,171)
52,371
7,353

(599)
380

53,214

AABTEETCEEZ  MEE2024
F3H318 Ik F E &k 4 & R0.015%
TTQROBFE ) ZERKERE »&HHD
17,830,000 7T (20234 : =) A
EAXALATRRIEKRRBEBFEAT Lt
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S MERRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2024 & E2024%#3/531H IFFE

13.

14.

120

EARNINGS (LOSS) PER SHARE 13. 58 & # (&548)
The calculation of the basic earnings (loss) per share ERBEHEEAEREERELREF (F18)
attributable to owners of the Company is based on the ThiREB U T 8RHE
following data:
2024 2023
HK$’000 HKS 000
F#Ex FET
Profit (loss) i # (E548)
Profit (loss) for the year attributable to MEREARERF (FB51B)
owners of the Company for the purpose MEZAREEEBA
of basic earnings (loss) per share FE(LEEHF (B518) (98,192)
2024 2023
Number of shares i in & H
Weighted average number of ordinary MEREREF (E18)
shares in issue for the purpose of basic MEZERITEER
earnings (loss) per share 0 1 I 39 &k 1,192,444,010

Diluted earnings (loss) per share is not presented as there
was no dilutive potential ordinary share for both years.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

The Group leases out various commercial properties and
serviced apartments under operating leases with rentals
payable monthly. The leases typically run for an initial period
of 3 months to 5 years (2023: 3 months to 5 years). Majority
of the lease contracts contain market review clauses in the
event the lessee exercises the option to extend.

The Group is not exposed to foreign currency risk as a result
of the lease arrangements, as all leases are denominated in
the respective functional currencies of the relevant group
entities. The lease contracts do not contain residual value
guarantee and/or lessee’s option to purchase the property at
the end of lease term.

HREMEEFERETABREETE
Bk RUEEZTSREEERT (BR)

143 EME

FEERBEECEHEHAZEABE
MERRBAAE  HERAXM -
HE - % HA3ME AR =54 (2023
F3EREF) - KBHLHEEEHN
HAARBATNEZRRBRHSEM
EITEMEZMER -

HMRFEEEIUERERERS
BZREERsE REAERILE
HEELHFMARIIERRE -BE
BHITECSRBREERER
AEAREERRBEMENERE
o

HK$’000
FER

Fair value AREE
At 1 April 2022 72022F481H 996,500
Additions (note 22) NE (MaE22) 490,000
Increase in fair value ANRBEEM 19,700
At 31 March 2023 1202343H31H
Decrease in fair value NABERD
At 31 March 2024 720245 3831H

Emperor Entertainment Hotel Limited 52 {244 FEEFRAE]
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SRaMPRRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2024 & E20244F3531H IF F &

14.INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 1418 EME »

The fair values of the Group’s investment properties as at
31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023 have been arrived at on
the basis of valuations carried out on those dates by Savills
(Macau) Limited for investment properties in Macau and
Vincorn Consulting and Appraisal Limited for investment
properties in Hong Kong, independent firms of qualified
professional property valuers engaged by the Company
not connected to the Group, in accordance with the HKIS
Valuation Standards 2020 issued by The Hong Kong Institute
of Surveyors and, where applicable, the RICS Valuation —
Global Standards issued by the Royal Institution of Chartered
Surveyors, both incorporating the International Valuation
Standards.

For the investment properties situated in Macau, they are
held within a business model of the Group whose business
objective is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the investment properties over time,
rather than through sale. The valuation was arrived at with
reference to market rent transactions with adjustments to
reflect different locations or conditions using the applicable
capitalisation rates.

For the investment properties situated in Hong Kong, they
are not held within a business model of the Group whose
business objective is to consume substantially all of the
economic benefits embodied in the investment properties
over time. The directors of the Company considered
that income capitalisation method is appropriate for the
valuation of investment properties as at 31 March 2024
and 31 March 2023 as there are more market available data
in respect of comparable market rent transactions. The
valuation of serviced apartments was arrived by capitalising
the rental income with the applicable capitalisation rate. The
market rent is assessed with reference to market evidence
of recent transaction rents for similar properties with
adjustments to reflect different locations and conditions for
both years.

AEBEREYWEN2024F3A318 K
2023F3A3IHZ ARBENDRESR
AR EZERUEAEFTEREZRBIL
SEREEYEGEMITE KT
MEHMOCRPNARAE Rih=EH
RFEAERQXBANZEFEMD A H
BANKREVMEREBENRENE
REERBANEMBEEMBZEER
B2 G- EER2020% (N #EA) &
EERFHFAEMBERMHZEE
EXRHFAEMBEMH[E — 2HE
A(MEYWMABRGEZER)ETT
ZIEEMERE -

MARBRFANKRENEMS > HIF
BNABEHEEEMIFLERE
MEFRSBABIEBENNmZAE
EEBRAFTAE %EED2RED
LHEEXH LMK R R M E S 1F
HELAE FREREXREXM
BE -

MAUNREBENREYWEMS > HI
FRENABEREHERBEYEFRR
BERARBOCENm 2 AERETR
BAFHE - xRBDEETIANRAE
X AME X E#E & 12024538310 &
2023F3A3IAREMENGEE R
HRAUELLRTSHEERSEEY
RENTHAIRHAE - RHBEALE
ZHEEDNBBNERANELLEERSE
FXEHRETWARLE HHEHEETL S
RELUMELRT SR ZHEEEA
I FE R BR W 1B A [ 3 & R AR 1
fEH A B M T4 o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R MPRRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2024 & E2024%#3/531H IFFE

141 5ME »
TRIEHUNWNEETZSEKREYEN
ARABE(LEZMEBENEERM
FRBASBBEINER  UERIEEAR
BEst=ENBABENTEREE
HAREBEIAEETYENLAEB
BER(BLIREEIR) o

14.INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

The following table gives information about how the fair
values of these investment properties are determined (in
particular, the valuation technique and inputs used), as
well as the fair value hierarchy into which the fair value
measurements are categorised (Level 1 to 3) based on the
degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements
are observable.

Investment properties
held by the Group in the Sensitivity/relationship
consolidated statement of of unobservable inputs
financial position Fair value Valuation techniques Significant to fair value
SEARBAHBRRE  Fairvalue hierarchy and key inputs unobservable inputs HEE/FTREHA
REBRRNE RARE  DAREYE  GEARRRREARS EAFTRRBANE HEELRRENNE
HKS'000
TR
Commercial properties 511,900 Level 3 Income capitalisation method with market  Monthly rent, based on saleable floor area using ~ The higher the monthly rent, the higher the
in Macau (2023: 492,200) B34 unit rent and capitalisation rate as the direct market comparable and taking into fair value, and vice versa.
REANELNE (20234 : 492,200) key input for both years account of time, location, frontage and size of ~ AHM®  MIAABEME » RZTA o
RABEEUTREBREREEEAR  properties, which ranged from HKS22 to HKS98
REATBENUAE R E (2023: HKS26 to HKS92) per square foot. The higher the capitalisation rate, the
Rl BENGERALENEZAEREER > lowerthefairvalue, and vice versa.
ERHRNEZHH iE BHEERA)N BXtEdE WAABEEE RZT
ENTEERRNATENAT NBE B Ao
ETENAT)
Capitalisation rate, taking into account the
capitalisation of rentalincome potential,
nature of properties, prevailing market
condition, which ranged from 3% to 4% (2023:
3% to 4%) per annum.
Baf® GHREGRENAZESL  NE
ZREROTERA ) ENTEEINEL
(20235 : 3%F4%) °
Serviced apartments 974,000 Level3 Income capitalisation method with market ~ Monthly rent, based on saleable floor areausing ~ The higher the monthly rent, the higher the
in Hong Kong (2023:1,014000) %34 unit rent and capitalisation rate as the direct market comparable and taking into fair value, and vice versa.
REBNRERAE (2023 : 1,014,000) key input for both years account of time, location, quality, view, floor ~ AH#® » MAABEMS  RZFA o

There were no transfers into or out of Level 3 during both

years.

122

RREEENTREBREXCE AR
REABBRRAESLHE
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level and size of properties, which ranged from
HKS30 to HKS92 (2023: HK$33 to HKS89) per
square foot.

B RETRERTLENE 2 IEREERR
tRGRNEZER HE EE 58
BERAN HNFETHRIETENER
(023 3ETELET) o

Capitalisation rate, taking into account the
capitalisation of rental income potential,
nature of properties, prevailing market
condition, which ranged from 3% to 3.25%
(2023: 2.15% t0 3.25%) per annum.

BAfbE SHRERREUAZERL Y
RZEEROTSRE ENTEENE
3.25% (20235 : 2.75%F3.25%) ©

RWmEEER
4B o

The higher the capitalisation rate, the
lower the fair value, and vice versa.

ERCEUE AAABESE R2T
o

B EEANEHES



e MERRMSE

For the year ended 31 March 2024 &t Z20244# 3531 H IF &

15.PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

I5.ME -HBRRE

Cost 2

At 1 April 2022 202254818 2,813,516 90,767 457,903
Additions HE - - 15,783
Disposals HE - - (458)
At 31 March 2023 IRER) RN 1= I S2I 131516 473,228
Additions HE = 3,003
Disposals HE - -
At 31 March 2024 GITERRI I 2,813,516 476,231
Depreciation and impairment ~ HERRE

At 1 April 2022 1202254518 550,527 30,635 412,885
Provided for the year EEREE 73,094 2,269 19,649
Eliminated on disposals HERHH - - (458)
Impairment losses reversed BEEHERS - (2790)
At 31 March 2003 QUGN 6360 2004 429286
Provided for the year EENER 73,094 2,269 16,458
Eliminated on disposals HERHS - - -
At 31 March 2024 2024536318 696,715 35,173 445,744
Carrying amounts KEE

At31 March 2004 TYOTEEE I 2,116,800 55,59 30,487
At 31 March 2023 ROBEIRIA 210965 588 B4

286,746 35476 10771 6671 3,991,850
8,097 1770 20 18 26113
(1,446) (%) (6,440) - (8,440)
293397 321,150 4,009,523
5,501 3,088 12,760
(5,891) (1,539) (8,070)
293,001 328,700 4,014,213
268,057 296,909 9450 5,585 1,574,048
11,260 6,60 21l 820 11357
(1441) (%) (5,989) - (1984)

(15871)
262,005

15,402
(5,761)

(13,120)
289,962

12,464
(1,538)

271,646

300,888

21,361
31,39

27,812
37188

(31,781
1,647,855

120,457
(1,940)

1,760,372

2,253,841

939 449 1,361,608

The above items of property, plant and equipment are
depreciated on a straight-line basis at the following rates per

annum:

Hotel properties and

buildings

of 40 years or the unexpired

terms of the relevant leases,

whichever is shorter

Leasehold improvements 10-20%

Furniture, fixtures and

equipment
Machinery
Motor vehicles
Others

10-20%

10-20%
20%
20%

Emperor Entertainment Hotel Limited 221344 HEHRAE)
Annual Report 2023/2024 £

Over the estimated useful lives

LM E -HBIRRBEEEUER
BESBUTERTURE:

BIEMERET 45t fE A FEH40

HEMEEE

R KER
=Rt

1% 28

AE

Hth

FRAREEZ
R JE G 8 (A8
SEPR D)
10-20%
10-20%

10-20%

20%
20%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R MPRRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2024 & E2024%#3/531H IFFE

15.PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15.9% - s3Il @

(continued)

The hotel properties and buildings are located in Macau and BIEMERBFHAURBRMARES -
Hong Kong. As the lease payments for land and building H B 1 it K 48 5 3 3 2 #H & RRIE (M
elements, other than those included in note 16, cannot be FE16FTI B & bRIN) e et D C »
allocated reliably, the leases in Macau and Hong Kong are WRBEMAREEBEZHEHFAETF R
included in the carrying amounts of the buildings and the HERSBEEZBIEMEZREE -

hotel property of The Emperor Hotel.

On 30 December 2022, Tin Hou entered into a new service 72022 12H30H » X 5 B B 48 57
agreement with SJM for the provision of the gaming-related Y—IEMRBIHE NS B RI2023
marketing and public services to SJM in Grand Emperor F1R1IHEABIF R IRBEN H 2 R
Hotel for a term of 3 years commencing 1 January 2023. SLREREEEEMAZTIBEERER
Pursuant to the new service agreement, the directors of RERB - RWEBEMBRFTHRE > ~Q
the Company concluded there was indication for a reversal BEERAHE202F3831IHILEE
of impairment and conducted impairment assessment EEXRHURBEZ2REREBEER
on property, plant and equipment in respect of gaming RERBEBNYE - BRERRKER
and related operations in Grand Emperor Hotel which was BERENTR  THHEETRE
fully impaired during the year ended 31 March 2022. The Pl e HERYLFEFY REME
recoverable amounts of property, plant and equipment in BZzME-HErREZTKEE
respect of gaming and related operations in Grand Emperor ELIRBEREBEEIRSEEHEIE
Hotel was estimated based on value in use method with B4z E KT A BREEHAEIER
significant unobservable inputs and key assumptions ERR(DETR U E R KA UK
adopted by the management of the Group including ARIR ) {5t - Ei¥2023F3831HZ
forecasted revenue and costs, and discount rate. Based FEER ARAEFTEE > RUWB
on the result of the assessment as at 31 March 2023, the TEETERRERBLBEBBER
directors of the Company determined that the recoverable MHEAER ZWE - B R EED
amount of the property, plant and equipment in respect BEBE AIREEEZSEEEZ
of gaming and related operations in Grand Emperor Hotel AREEESREKREE R&E
was higher than its carrying amount that would have been 2023F3RB31H L FEEMA S 1R %
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for BIEEE RMEBER Z2E - KR
these assets in prior year. During the year ended 31 March Tz 5% 5 HE 50 R {E &5 $8 # [8]31,781,000
2023, a reversal of impairment loss of HK$31,781,000 had HT o WE 2202453831 L EE
been recognised on property, plant and equipment in W ERERERBEFEZIER KHE
respect of gaming and related operations in Grand Emperor MEBEELE &GN ARBES
Hotel. During the year ended 31 March 2024, in the view RABRSWREABAEER RBAMER
of the operating profits incurred by gaming and related ZWE - BBERIBLERETR
operations in Grand Emperor Hotel, the directors of the

Company concluded there was no indication for impairment

on property, plant and equipment in respect of gaming and

related operations in Grand Emperor Hotel.

During the year ended 31 March 2023, in view of operating REE2023F3B31HELFEER &
losses incurred by hotel and related operations in Grand MAESWREHE ZBE RERER
Emperor Hotel, the directors of the Company performed EEXEREHFEHE XABESFTEBL
impairment assessment of the Grand Emperor Hotel BHEP WO £ 8E B H 0202343831
Properties by comparing its recoverable amount to its HZ 8k EE S 621,242,000 7t »
carrying amount in aggregate of HK$621,242,000 as at 31 355 €5 4 007 5 ) 2 o 1T SR (B 3T o
March 2023. No impairment loss was recognised during RRRSRAEE 2 Al E S
the year ended 31 March 2023 as the recoverable amount PHEBREE W E £2023438
of the Grand Emperor Hotel Properties was higher than its BIHLEEFEELHmETRRERBE i
carrying amount. As at 31 March 2023, the Grand Emperor 2023F3R310 > HERYAEYE
Hotel Properties comprise property, plant and equipment BEBERMBEBAEF ZYE - KR
and right-of-use assets in respect of hotel and related ERZEUREAEEE  REES
operations with carrying amounts of HK$502,474,000 and A #502,474,0007%8 7t 52118,768,000
HKS$118,768,000, respectively. BT o

Emperor Entertainment Hotel Limited 52 {244 FEEFRAE]
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15.PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(continued)

During the year ended 31 March 2024, in view of operating
profits incurred by the hotel and related operations in Grand
Emperor Hotel as a result of the recovery in the Macau
tourism industry, the directors of the Company concluded
there was indication for reversal of impairment and
conducted impairment assessment on the Grand Emperor
Hotel Properties by comparing its recoverable amount
to its carrying amount in aggregate of HKS$580,304,000
as at 31 March 2024. No reversal of the impairment loss
was recognised during the year ended 31 March 2024. As
at 31 March 2024, the Grand Emperor Hotel Properties
comprise property, plant and equipment and right-of-
use assets in respect of hotel and related operations with
carrying amounts of HKS$466,687,000 and HKS113,617,000,
respectively.

During the year ended 31 March 2023, in view of operating
losses incurred by Inn Hotel, the directors of the Company
performed impairment assessment of the property, plant
and equipment and right-of-use assets of Inn Hotel by
comparing its recoverable amounts to its carrying amounts
in aggregate of HK$481,855,000 as at 31 March 2023. No
impairment loss was recognised during the year ended 31
March 2023 as the recoverable amounts of the property,
plant and equipment and right-of-use assets of Inn Hotel
were higher than its carrying amounts. During the year
ended 31 March 2024, in the view of the operating profits
incurred in Inn Hotel, the directors of the Company
concluded there was no indication for impairment on
property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets of Inn
Hotel.

During the year ended 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023, in
view of operating losses incurred by The Emperor Hotel, the
directors of the Company performed impairment assessment
of the property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets
of The Emperor Hotel by comparing its recoverable amounts
to its carrying amounts in aggregate of HK$1,396,616,000 as
at 31 March 2024 (2023: HKS1,440,088,000). No impairment
loss was recognised during the year ended 31 March 2024
and 31 March 2023 as the recoverable amounts of the
property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets of The
Emperor Hotel are higher than its carrying amounts.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SRaMPRRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2024 & E20244F3531H IF F &

159 % « KRR w

NE E2024F3R31HILEEER &
MAESWREHEZBERERER
BERMKRBEEEMELELSE &
Moo AXABDEERAHREREBEEY
ZERERENTR  WEBLLERHA
a] g [B] & %8 81 H 0202438318 2
BR @ {8 & #£580,304,0007% 7T i& 17 /A
BT o N8 E2024FE3831H L&
FE I % B 50 R B B B B O] - 722024
F3H31H HRERYEBEYEERE
BIEREBEB Z2ME - KBERR
EURERAEEE REEZNA
466,687,000 75 % 113,617,00078 7T ©

73"%&'12023&35315&&??@ g
HEEEELEBE  xQF
%ELLI:I:E&’*E‘@FE’J%ﬁ L7
BRREREAEEEZT KOS
% 4 H Bk @ E (102023438310 &
3t #481,855,0007% 7T) i 17 A (B &F
fli e MBI E2023F3A3IB L FE A
ERABEGRE AaRMHEEZ
ME-RERSBREBEEEZ
HJREEESHEKRAE - RBEE
20243831 L FER > ERNEH
BEEEEEHEN > ARAFEEFR
ABRUEAEZYE - H%%%Ezuxﬁ}i’z
ERAREEYERENR -

i & £202443H31H K&2023%3831
HLEFER > ERNRERRBEESE
KEBR ARFEFTEBIERRE
BRRBENYE RERRBRER
REEZAKWETRAHAKREE®G
202438310 & # #1,396,616,0007%
7t (20234 : 1,440,088,0007% 7T)) i 17
B AT o B & £2024F3831H &
20234 3A31H Ik F E i # 57 50 E
B AARERIBEEZYWE - #
BRRBEREAEEEZAWEIEER
SRHEREE-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MBRRMSE

For the year ended 31 March 2024 &t Z20244# 3531 H IF &

16.RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 16.(EFHIESE

Cost

At 1 April 2022
Additions

Disposal of a subsidiary
Lease expiry

Lease modification

At 31 March 2023 and
31 March 2024

Depreciation and
impairment

At 1 April 2022

Provided for the year

Eliminated upon disposal of
a subsidiary

Eliminated upon lease expiry

At 31 March 2023
Provided for the year

At 31 March 2024

Carrying amounts
At 31 March 2024

At 31 March 2023

373
%2022F481H 493,515 11,225 504,740
RE — 857 857
HE—HWEAE - (6,281) (6,281)
AEZH - (2,600) (2,600)
HEEK — (2,344) (2,344)
2023FE38318 &

2024 3H31H 493,515 857 494,372
3 & B i (B
2022F481H 75,641 8,682 84,323
FERNEE 16,595 413 17,008
& — M E A B R

Ea gl - (6,281) (6,281)
HEFIARHE — (2,600) (2,600)
7£2023F3H31H 92,236 92,450
FEREE 16,595 17,024
5£2024%3H31H 108,831 109,474
IREE
2024%3H31H 384,684 384,898
%2023%F3H831H 401,279 643 401,922

Expense relating to short-term lease FEHHERX

Total cash outflow for leases HEZRERHLEE
The Group leases certain leasehold lands and warehouse rEEBHEETHELIMREERE
for its operations. Lease contracts are entered into for fixed AEEBEZH HESYMIIIIZE
term from 2 to 25 years (2023: 2 to 25 years). Certain leases of EFHA2EEDFQI3F2EE
leasehold lands in Macau are negotiated for an initial term of 25F)c RBRMZEFHEL M
25 years with extension options exercisable by the Group. HNEBEEYT A EABFE > L AKX

SETREREREE-

Emperor Entertainment Hotel Limited 2221244 HEHRAE]
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SRaMPRRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2024 & E20244F3531H IF F &

16.RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (continued) lﬁ.ﬁm EEE (&)

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and
contain a wide range of different terms and conditions. In
determining the lease term and assessing the length of the
non-cancellable period, the Group applies the definition of a
contract and determines the period for which the contract is
enforceable.

In addition, the Group owns certain hotel and commercial
properties classified as property, plant and equipment
and investment properties respectively. The Group is the
registered owner of these property interests, including the
underlying leasehold lands. Lump sum payments were
made upfront to acquire these property interests. The
leasehold land components of these owned properties are
not presented separately as the payments made cannot be
allocated reliably.

As at 31 March 2023, the Group assessed the leasehold
lands included in right-of-use assets of Grand Emperor Hotel
together with its respective hotel properties for impairment
by considering their recoverable amounts, in view of
operating losses incurred by the hotel and related operations
in Grand Emperor Hotel. The details of the determination
of the recoverable amount are disclosed in note 15. No
impairment loss was recognised on the leasehold lands of
Grand Emperor Hotel for the year ended 31 March 2023. As
at 31 March 2023, the carrying amount of right-of-use assets
amounting to HKS$118,768,000 was included in the Grand
Emperor Hotel Properties.

As at 31 March 2024, the Group assessed the leasehold
lands included in right-of-use assets of Grand Emperor Hotel
together with its respective hotel properties for reversal of
impairment by considering their recoverable amounts, in
view of operating profits incurred by the hotel and related
operations in Grand Emperor Hotel as a result of the
recovery in the Macau tourism industry. The details of the
determination of the recoverable amount are disclosed in
note 15. No reversal of the impairment loss was recognised
for the year ended 31 March 2024. As at 31 March 2024,
the carrying amount of right-of-use assets amounting to
HKS$113,617,000 was included in the Grand Emperor Hotel
Properties.

HERROREERBERETHS
RegKEEREFERRMEHSE R
BEEHEBAKRGSATHBEABENOR
EF > x&EERBONERRE
EEHBEEMRHEAM -

5 xEBIREREET DS
BAVE BIAIBUKRKEY
EZBERBEME - ZEEBBZ
EMERT(BEEERBEE L) 2
AEMEAAN - AREZSYEED
BERASZM—FBRE  HINKEE
ARDEMARE HZEEBEY
ENHELHBOUEERET -

122023438310 BN EERHA
EZBEEREREFELELESHRE
AEEEE R WEE ETEEA
RERLAREERAREEZEEL
WERZBHEMZBEEYEZRE -
B E A YOl & 2R 2 5 1B MY SE 159K
B MEE2023F3A31HLELEFEER
MEMRSBREBFEZHE Tt
0 (B B5 18 o 722023438318 0 f#
FA#EEZIRME{E118,768,000% JT
SPAREREBEEYE -

122024538310 BN EERHA
IE 2 B R AH B 2 75 8 & R P IR i
EEEMEELZEEN  *EFHKE
Z & P U (o] & 2R 5T il 5T A SR 2 1R %
BEEREEEZHEELHERS
BHEBAZAEEMEZ RERER - &
ERWEEEZFBN M 15K E -
B £2024%F 38310 L F E I &2
AE B R & O - 722024F3A31H »
EREEEZKREE113,617,00078
Tt AREREBEME -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S MERRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2024 & E2024%#3/531H IFFE

16.

17.

128

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (continued)

As at 31 March 2024, the Group assessed the leasehold
lands included in right-of-use assets of The Emperor Hotel
(2023: Inn Hotel and The Emperor Hotel) together with their
respective hotel properties for impairment by considering
their recoverable amounts, in view of operating losses
incurred by these hotels. The details of the determination
of the recoverable amounts are disclosed in note 15. No
impairment loss was recognised on the leasehold lands
of Inn Hotel and The Emperor Hotel for the year ended 31
March 2024 and 31 March 2023.

16.(EESEE @

122024538310 ENHER R A
FEERKERR A&EEEETET
W ol & 8 ¥ 5 5t A 2 B 5 (20234 ¢
BUEBEREERRBE)ERAES
EZHEIMERZSBABMZAE
MEZRE - EERWEEEZF
B SE154K 88 - X 8 £ 2024438
31H %2023F3R31H L EFER I E
MBHEEREERSBAEZES
Tt iR E R 1R o

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 17.8 5 B H fth FE U 7
2024 2023
HKS$’ 000 HKS 000
Fi#&rx FH T
Trade receivables B S EWR® 54,430
Less: Impairment allowance bR RERE (21,469)
32,961
Other receivables and prepayments H{th FE UL 7R R T8 A9 =R 19,184
52,145

As at 31 March 2024, trade receivables comprise receivables
from contracts with customers and lease receivables of
HKS$47,488,000 (2023: HKS$32,240,000) and HKS$1,696,000
(2023: HKS721,000) respectively.

As at 1 April 2022, trade receivables from contracts with
customers and lease receivables amounted to HK$19,401,000
and HKS4,755,000 respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SRaMPRRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2024 & E20244F3531H IF F &

17.TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 17TES5REMEBEWER=

(continued)
An aging analysis of the Group’s trade receivables (net of
impairment allowance) based on the date of credit granted
or the invoice date at the end of the reporting period is set
out below:

UTHEAEBRRERPRERERE
ENREZABREINZEZTEK
MR ERER) ZRED

2024 2023

HK$’ 000 HKS’ 000

F&xT FET

0-30 days 0&E30H 19,388
31-60 days 31&60H 52
61-90 days 61F90H 249
91-180 days 91Z180H 294
Over 180 days 180H M E 12,978
32,961

The Group normally allows credit periods of up to 60 days
to its trade customers, except for certain credit worthy
customers with long term relationship and stable repayment
patterns, where the credit periods are extended to a longer
period.

As at 31 March 2024, included in the Group’s trade
receivables balance are debtors with aggregate carrying
amount of HK$13,119,000 (2023: HK$13,521,000) which were
past due at the end of the reporting period. Out of the past
due balances, HKS$12,970,000 (2023: HKS$13,272,000) has
been past due 90 days or more and is not considered as in
default as the directors of the Company are of the opinion
that the balances are still considered recoverable due to
long-term/ongoing relationship or agreed settlement plan
with the customers.

Details of impairment assessment of trade and other
receivables are set out in note 32(b).

TEE-MRETHEZE R RIEG
HzEEH HETEERBAMG
EEEERERANGEEREER
BREZEEHRITEERE—BRE
HARE o

122024538310 AEBMZ E &
Wi R A B B 4 BR T 48 {8 23 13,119,000
B 7t (20234 1 13,521,000 7T) Z FE
WRRERBREBH ZFEH
4 8% = > 12,970,000/ 7T (20234 :
13,272,0007% 7t) E & #990H 3¢ X L
BUYEKEAEDN LD HNEZ
EERNRB FEBGHEARS
EmMEEME  ALLEARABDES
04 2 F BRI RER A A AWk [a] o

B RHEMBWRZRETGHZF
BEE M EE32(b) ©
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18.

130

PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS/SHORT-
TERM BANK DEPOSITS/BANK
BALANCES AND CASH

As at 31 March 2024, pledged bank deposits comprise (i) a
deposit of HK$30,811,000 (2023: HKS$65,887,000) (classified
as non-current asset (2023: current asset)) and (ii) a deposit
of HKS$311,000 (2023: HKS$300,000) (classified as current
asset), details of which are set out in notes 30(b) and (c)
respectively. The pledged bank deposits carry fixed interest
rates which ranged from 3.55% to 4.20% (2023: 2.80% to
3.80%) per annum.

As at 31 March 2024, short-term bank deposits with an
original maturity over 3 months carry interest at fixed
interest rate of 4.70% (2023: fixed interest rates which ranged
from 1.20% to 4.30%) per annum.

Bank balances and cash comprise of cash held by the Group,
and bank deposits with an original maturity of 3 months or
less carry interests at prevailing market rate at 0.01% (2023:
0.01%) per annum or at fixed interest rates which ranged
from 1.50% to 4.58% (2023: 2.00% to 3.55%) per annum.

Included in bank balances and cash are the following
amounts denominated in currencies other than functional
currency of the relevant group entities:

Macau Pataca (“MOP”) BT (TR
Renminbi (“RMB”) ARBTARED
United States Dollar (‘USD”) ES U3

18.BiRIMIRITEM
Egﬁ%ﬁ/ﬁﬂﬁﬁiﬁ&

[22024%3H31H > BB IR T HFE X
B & (i) 77 7%30,811,0007% 7T (20234 :
65,887,000 T (D | A F R B E
EQOBE: R B & E)) & (i) F &
311,0007% 7t (20234 : 300,000 7T )(7
HARPHEE) HFBED B &E K
5£30(b) K (c) - BB IRITHF R L E
E F F X 7 F3.55E £4.20/2 (2023
F280EE380F)5HE °

122024538318 > R B HA B A31E
AULEZBHRBOTEREEEER
KATOEQO3F B EFHMENF
120 E4.30FE) 5 B

RTHEGRARSEELSEERFEZR
EREFAEHAIMERFUT ~ 2R
1T 3% E F F0.01E (20234 : 0.01E)
% EEEFERN F150E F4.58FE
(20234 : 2.00[E E3.55E) 5t B 2 SR 1T

BTEGRRESEETYRMBMBE
BERIMAESEUIINEEE
S %E:

2024 2023
HK$’ 000 HK$'000
FERT THET
17,195

313

5
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SaMEERRMGE

For the year ended 31 March 2024 &t Z20244# 3531 H IF &

19.TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 19.5 5 B H {th & 3 &=

Trade payables B 5 R 9,420

Construction payables and accruals M TERERESER 4,524

Other payables and accruals HithEN R & B E A 64,172

Accrued staff costs FEEtE TR 4 24,402

102,518

An aging analysis of the Group’s trade payables based on UTArERR2RPREZEZA
the invoice date at the end of the reporting period is set out HEJNZEZ RO ZIRE 2
below:

0-30 days 0ZE30H

31-60 days 31%E60H

61-90 days 61E90H

91-180 days 91F180H

Over 180 days 180HMX £
Other payables and accruals mainly include accrued HENRREAERETEZEGRER
commission expenses in gaming operation, other accrued FEBZEABEER - HMAES
expenses and other deposits. BERRHEMEE -

20.AMOUNTS DUE TO FELLOW 20.XFA&RMBATRIE

SUBSIDIARIES
The amounts are due to subsidiaries of Emperor EHNREAXREZEBEEETHEA
International, which are unsecured, interest-free, repayable BZRE VEEF - RERBERE
on demand, trade in nature and are aged within 30 days KEEZE BEZMUME BRBEZRMH
(2023: 1 year) based on invoice date at the end of reporting Ekéé)f%‘i BEHA > BRHS #230H W (20234 :
period. 14E) o
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21.

22,

132

AMOUNTS DUE TO NON-
CONTROLLING INTERESTS OF
SUBSIDIARIES

As at 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023, the amounts
represent unsecured and interest-free shareholders’ loans
due to non-controlling interests of Luck United Holdings
Limited (“Luck United”) and Able Elegant Development
Limited (“Able Elegant”). In accordance with the contractual
terms of the shareholders’ agreements, the amounts are to
be repaid from surplus fund, which represents cash available
in Luck United and its subsidiaries, and Able Elegant, after
paying all operating expenses and payables, including but
not limited to bank loans and third party loans which are due
for repayment together with the accrued interest.

As at 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023, the respective
management of Luck United and Able Elegant determined
that Luck United and Able Elegant have adequate available
surplus fund for the repayment of all principal amounts
outstanding to its non-controlling shareholders. Accordingly,
the amounts are shown as current liabilities as at 31 March
2024 and 31 March 2023 and repayable on demand.

ACQUISITION OF INVESTMENT
PROPERTIES

On 27 September 2022, Poly Keen International Limited
(“Poly Keen”), an indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary
of the Company, completed the acquisition of a property
situated at No.22 Davis Street, Hong Kong through the
acquisition of the entire interest of Ever Explore Holdings
Limited and its subsidiaries from a direct wholly-owned
subsidiary of Emperor International at a total cash
consideration of HK$490,000,000.
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LRMEBAE ZIEHER

T 7K IR

720243831 H /%2023F3H31H
% % MIE$E X Luck United Holdings
Limited (TLuck United)) & # & 2%
BERAB(ERNI)ZIFERES
WERIEHAREEREER - IRER
RpBEZENBRH ZERER U
BREtEE BHEE&TIELuck
United REfBABI U RERENR X
AR ERIKREMR(EEER
RREPEEZRITERRE=H
EREREAMB)BZAIFARE °

122024%F3831H &%2023F3H31H »
Luck United R EEZB 2 EEE R
Aluck United X ERBERE B 0] &)
BERESEEXRHEEERREZ
FRrE A% o AL > ZRIER20245F3
B31H K&2023F3831H % R"& R E
EBEKRBEERMEE-

2B EME

FR2022%9R827TH » " AFIEZEESR
& [t B 2 5 Poly Keen International
Limited (TPoly Keen)) & i& [/ 3 2
BERZEZEZEWES A3 UWHEEver
Explore Holdings Limited Bz E Kf & 2
3] B9 2 86 A% HE > 5T AR UK BB — 18 I
ERERITHLENYE KRS
18 %490,000,000# 7T °



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SRaMPRRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2024 # Z20244#3/531H 1FF Z

23.DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY BAEE—RHBAHE
On 13 April 2022, an independent third party agreed to R2022F4B13H BAUFE=ZFREE
purchase the entire issued capital of Affluent Travel Services 1B zRERBUBEARAT ZHE
Limited (“Affluent Travel”), an indirect non-wholly owned BEFEF2ENBLAAERREGRA
subsidiary of the Company, at a cash consideration of HKS1. B(ERRBE)ZE2HERTRA
The equity interest transfer was completed on 13 April 2022. BREEEE N2022F48 138 M °
Upon completion of the equity interest transfer, Affluent RRESRETRE EaRERE
Travel ceased to be a subsidiary of the Company accordingly. ABEABIZHMBRTE °
Assets and liabilities of Affluent Travel derecognised at the NEEEHR LRI HERBEZE
date of disposal are as follows: ERBRWT:
HKS 000
FHET
Deposit and prepayments FERKRFEMR 844
Bank balances $R1T 45 BR 100
Amount due to a fellow subsidiary X—ERREHEBATRE (567)
Lease liability HEAaR (1,811)
(1,434)
Consideration received 2UHKE —
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—HBRBARZKE (1,434)
Net cash outflow arising on disposal: HEEEZHRES M P
Bank balances and cash disposed of BHERTHEGRRRS 100
24,LEASE LIABILITIES .HEAR
2024 2023
HK$’000 HKS 000
TER FHET
Lease liabilities payable: EHHEEaE:
Within one year 1R 802
Within a period of more than one year 1F U L EBERBIB2EF
but not more than two years 611
Within a period of more than two years 2EM EBERBIBSE
but not more than five years 5,601
Within a period of more than five years 5&E Mk 20,232
27,246
Less: Amount due for settlement within BIBARBEELA
12 months shown under current R12EBAEE
liabilities EEHZEE (802)
Amount due for settlement after FIAERBBELAR
12 months shown under non-current REBBEEREEEZ
liabilities £ 26,444
The weighted average incremental borrowing rates applied FEAREEGENMETEESGE
to lease liabilities is 3.50% (2023: 3.50%) per annum. TEFZF %A3.50% (20234 : 3.50%) °
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24,

25.

LEASE LIABILITIES (continued)

Restrictions or covenants on leases

Lease liabilities of HKS$26,889,000 (2023: HKS27,246,000) are
recognised with related right-of-use assets of HK$19,954,000
(2023: HKS21,235,000) as at 31 March 2024. The lease
agreements do not impose any covenants other than the
security interests in the leased assets that are held by the
lessor. Except for the leasehold land and related assets
recognised in Macau, as set out in note 30(a), other related
leased assets may not be used as security for borrowing
purposes.

As at 31 March 2024, the amount of lease liabilities included
in a lease which is secured by a rental deposit with carrying
value of HKS76,000 (2023: HKS76,000).

DEFERRED TAXATION

The following are the major deferred tax (liabilities) assets
recognised and movements thereon during the year:

UIBEEE@®

HEENMREIEZLH
R2024%3H831H ERRABEEAE
26,889,000 7T (20234 : 27,246,000
B o) B8R BB R & E19,954,000
;‘ﬁ 76 (20234 : 21,235,000 JT)°
EmzkhHEBAASEZHEEEZ
BRI > WM IR RE E?
MsE30(a) FRE MR BERANEE
Hh B 48 BE & E 4 o Efﬁ!*ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬂ‘é‘iﬁ
EXSHEGENIRE o

12024538310 HE& GBS A
—IETHE > HLUBREE76,00078 7T (2023
F 176,000 7T) 2 HERESIFIEM -

25,1 3iE 75 IR

UTH/AFERIZTBRILERE(R
REEREHES:

Accelerated Revaluation

134

tax of Tax
depreciation  properties losses Total
MERIERE MEE REHE a%
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$’000
TER TER FER FTER
(Note)
(Hfat)
At 1 April 2022 1®2022F481R (43,499) (60,268) 53,177 (50,590)
Acquisition of investment properties W EER EY # (1,225) - 1,225 —
(Charge) credit to profit or loss R85 (30BR) 5t A (6,089) (11) 7955 1,855
At 31 March 2023 112023%3831H
Charge to profit or loss REZNRF
At 31 March 2024 112024%3831H
Note: The Macau Tax Authority granted a concessionary deduction Ha: BRPEMBBPIAARERIRE
to Grand Emperor Entertainment & Hotel (Macau) Limited WALz F'Eﬁ ?ﬁ EE2E Fﬁ BAB®
=] 174

(“Grand Emperor Entertainment”), an indirect non-wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company incorporated in Macau,
to claim deduction of depreciation allowance for certain
of its property, plant and equipment for tax purpose in an
accelerated pattern over a period which is half of the expected
useful lives of the property, plant and equipment and such a
concession ended on 31 December 2013. Out of the deferred tax
liability of HKS$55,185,000 (2023: HK$50,813,000), an amount of
HKS$21,720,000 (2023: HKS$22,258,000) has been recognised in
respect of the accelerated tax depreciation of those property,
plant and equipment related to the concession.
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ROREETYWE BERIEZ
FAstAIfE R ERAR ¥ UMEFE
MREMSZYWE KESRREZ
IERMRE > SAEEBN2013F
1AL - RIEERIEA E
55,185,000 7T (20234 : 50,813,000
Br)R EMBEEERFREZWE
HMBERREZMERBITERR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SRaMPRRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2024 & E20244F3531H IF F &

25.DEFERRED TAXATION (continued) 25 B ETRIE (@)

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated
statement of financial position, deferred tax assets and
liabilities have been offset for the temporary differences
arising from the same group entity and the same tax
authority.

As at 31 March 2024, the Group had unused tax losses of
HKS$794,132,000 (2023: HKS$829,969,000) available for offset
against future profits. Deferred tax asset is recognised
in respect of HKS$370,727,000 (2023: HKS$444,157,000) of
such loss. No deferred tax asset is recognised in respect
of the remaining tax losses of HKS$423,405,000 (2023:
HKS$385,812,000) due to unpredictability of future profit
streams. The Group’s unrecognised tax losses might be
carried forward indefinitely, except for an amount of
HK$36,364,000 (2023: HKS$36,364,000) which will expire in 3
years from the year of assessment.

MEVNGEMBRARMS > BT
MEEERBRERRA-—SEEBER
B—RBEREREE2ERMEER
B o

2024538318 & @ E X #
FA M IE B $8794,132,00058 7T (2023
£ 1 829,969,000 7o) At F iK 85 Xk
i@ ) o H & a% &5 38 9 370,727,000
# 70(20234F : 444,157,000 7T) B
BMABABEEREBEESEE - BN KK
HHEBEZATEINM BB T2
B #5 18423,405,0003 7T (20234 :
385,812,000 7T) It % FE 58 24 B (E R
BHEE AEBZABIBREESIE
OERHAAAE > R TREEREIF
7 E B8 =~ X 1836,364,000% 7T (2023
£ :36,364,00078 7T) R 4b ©

26.SHARE CAPITAL 26.08 7%
Number of
shares Share capital
i in & H [+ 2.3
HK$’000
TER
Ordinary shares of HK$0.0001 each FKREE0.0001ETZ
BiER
Authorised: ERE
At 1 April 2022, 31 March 2023 and 1£2022% 4818 ~
31 March 2024 2023%F3H31H &
2024 3831H 2,000,000,000,000 200,000
Issued and fully paid: ERTILIHME:
At 1 April 2022 12022 481H 1,197,305,983 120
Share repurchased and cancelled FENEHBEKRFHZ
during the year (Note) B& 15 (Kt at) (8,815,000) (1)
At 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2024  $:2023%F3831H &
20245 3H31H

Note: During the year ended 31 March 2023, the Company
repurchased its own shares from the market in total of 8,815,000
shares at an aggregate consideration of HK$4,411,000 (including
the relevant transaction costs and expenses of HKS$22,000).
The average price of the repurchased shares was HK$0.498 per
share. These repurchased shares had been cancelled during the
year ended 31 March 2023.

Mat: RBE02ZF3F3NHLEFER K
AR TG B 5 k5 48%£8,815,000
BB 15 - 48(E %44,411,0003 7T (B 1E
1R R 32 5 Al 25 K2 B 222,000 7T) © B
BERMDZFIEASRR0498H T °
ZE B MEE R MK I E2023F3H831
A FEBREH -
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27.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The previous share option scheme of the Company adopted
on 15 August 2013 expired on 14 August 2023. The Company
adopted a new share option scheme (“Share Option
Scheme”) on 19 September 2023.

The major terms of the Share Option Scheme are
summarised as follows:

(a) Purpose of the Share Option Scheme
To enable the Group to attract, retain and motivate
talented participants to strive for future developments
and expansion of the Group.

(b) Participants of the Share Option Scheme
Eligible participants include:

(i) employee participants including employees
(whether full time or part time), executive director
and non-executive director of the Company and its
subsidiaries;

(i) related entity participants (i.e. directors and
employees of the holding companies, fellow
subsidiaries of the holding companies or associated
companies of the Company); and

(iii) service providers, including advisor, consultant,
business or joint venture partner, contractor, a
person or entity that engages in construction,
renovation contractor, property agency, design and/
or project development work, to any member of
the Group, including any other service providers as
required in the ordinary course of business of the
Group.

(c) Total number of shares available for

issue under the Share Option Scheme
No option has been granted since the adoption date of
the Share Option Scheme.

As at the date of this report, 118,849,098 shares and
59,424,549 shares were available for issue, representing
10% and 5% of the total number of issued shares of the
Company respectively.
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27.SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 21, EEHQEE'I' E‘J (#&)
(d) Maximum entitlement of each eligible (d)iSRREMNDNIETERSE

participant under the Share Option

Scheme

(i) Not exceed 1% of the total number of issued
shares of the Company (excluding any options
lapsed in accordance with the terms of the Share
Option Scheme) in any 12-month period up to and
including the date of such grant unless otherwise
approved by the shareholders.

(i) Options granted to substantial shareholders
or independent non-executive directors of the
Company or their respective associates in the
12-month period up to and including the date
of such grant representing in aggregate more
than 0.1% of the total number of issued shares of
the Company on the date of such grant must be
approved by the shareholders of the Company.

(e) Period within which the option may be

exercised by the grantee under the Share
Option Scheme

At any time from the date of grant of the option to such
a date determined by the board of directors but in any
event not exceeding 10 years from the date of grant.

(f) Vesting period of options granted under

the Share Option Scheme

Not less than 12 months. A shorter vesting period of
less than 12 months may be granted to employee
participants at the discretion of the Board or the
Remuneration Committee (as the case may be) under
specific circumstances in the Share Option Scheme

(g) (i)  Amount payable on application or acceptance of

the option: HK$1.00;

(ii) The period within which payments or calls must
or may be made: Within 28 days from the date of
grant; and

(iii) Period within which loans for such purposes of the
payments or calls must be repaid: Not applicable.

HeaETERES LR

(i) FRIERRFZITHE > TN
BEREAH(EEZE)LE
128 B 8 > A 1FBB A
ABREBEHTRMEBEB(FEHRE
R RES B IFERRUH
E ] FE AR ) B9 1% o

(i) RBEERHBH(EEZA)L
REBHEREABTDEER
REBILFRTEFTARSE
ZEENBMBEARENBRE
BHEEARFRELBHE
BITRHD B ER0.1% L £ - B
AR RERRHALE -

(e) BRRIEEBIETIZEAT
17 fE B R & Z HA PR

REHEREDHEZEEEZSE
EZERBHAZEMER E
REMBERT A REAREH
HAFE ST 104F ©

(f) BRAGHEH BA TS 2
B8 B2 4 6% I 10
ARONRIEAR - REBRESE
NEEBRT EFFUFHME
EglRBEAMB)TNEDRE
ZHERTLOR1I2EBNERER
[ HA

(@) (i) ©R &5 o5 35 4 6 G 2 85 P 2 A
R EE: 1,008 7T ;

(i) @478 B] AE {7 7k 3¢ i@ A 1T 7K
ZHIR: & W B EES28H
(4

(i) ET BB RABENE
MESHAR: FER-
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27.

28.

29,

138

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

(h) Basis for determining the exercise price
The exercise price is determined by the Board and will
not be less than the highest of (a) the closing price of the
shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation
sheet on the date of grant; (b) the average closing price
of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotation sheets for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of grant; and (c) the nominal value of
a share.

(i) The remaining life of the Share Option
Scheme
The Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for

a period of 10 years commencing on its effective date,
being 17 October 2023.

LEGAL RESERVE

As stipulated by the relevant laws and regulations in the
Macau Special Administrative Region, certain subsidiaries
of the Company are required to set aside 25% of their profit
for the year to a legal reserve until the legal reserve has
reached 50% of their registered capital. During the year
ended 31 March 2024, the Group has transferred HK$36,000
(2023: Nil) from retained profits to the legal reserve of those
subsidiaries to reach 50% of their respective registered
capital.

NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

Included in non-controlling interests as at 31 March 2024
was a deemed contribution by non-controlling interests of
HKS$56,005,000 (2023: HK$56,005,000) on certain interest-
free loans from the non-controlling interests of a subsidiary
which were contributed in proportion to their shareholdings.
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For the year ended 31 March 2024 & E20244F3531H IF F &

30.PLEDGE OF ASSETS

(a)

As at 31 March 2024, certain assets of the Group were
pledged to a bank to secure for a banking facility
granted by the bank to the Group. The carrying values
of these assets at the end of the reporting period are as
follows:

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

30. 5 E R

(a)

R2024FE3831H KEBE T
EECKEFIRIT (FARITIE
FAEBZIRITRME ZIKTF o ¥
ERPR > ZEEENREBEN
T

2024 2023

HK$ 000 HK$ 000

TER FHET

Hotel property B IE ) % 235,065
Investment properties BREME 114,200
Right-of-use assets EHEEE 239,799
Others (Note) HAth (f157) 24,095
613,159

Note: Others represent floating charges over certain other assets

of the Group including principally property, plant and
equipment (other than hotel property), inventories, trade
and other receivables and bank balances.

As at 31 March 2023, the Group pledged a bank deposit
of HKS$65,887,000 to a bank for obtaining a bank facility
granted to a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.
The bank facility entailed a bank guarantee amounting
to MOP64,523,000 (equivalent to HKS$62,644,000) for the
period up to 26 June 2023 (“Expiry Date”), which was
made in favour of SIM for the Group’s fulfilment of all its
obligations of provision of services in the casino by the
Group to SJM, as stipulated under a service agreement
entered into between the wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company and SJM on 19 February 2010 (as
supplemented by an addendum dated 4 May 2020). This
bank guarantee was lapsed on the Expiry Date and the
pledged bank deposit was released by the bank during
the year.
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30.

31.

140

PLEDGE OF ASSETS (continued)

(b) (continued)
As at 31 March 2024, the Group pledged another bank
deposit of HK$30,811,000 to a bank for obtaining a
bank facility granted to a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company. The bank facility entails a bank
guarantee amounting to MOP30,900,000 (equivalent to
HK$30,000,000) for the period up to 31 December 2026,
which is made in favour of SJM for the Group’s fulfilment
of all its obligations of provision of services in the casino
by the Group to SJM, as stipulated under a service
agreement entered into between the wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company and SJM on 30 December
2022 (as supplemented by an addendum dated 26 April
2023).

(c) As at 31 March 2024, the Group also pledged a bank
deposit of HK$311,000 (2023: HKS$300,000) to a bank to
secure for the use of ferry ticket equipment provided by
a third party to the Group.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to stakeholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s
overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt, which
includes the amounts due to non-controlling interests of
subsidiaries and lease liabilities as disclosed in notes 21 and
24 respectively, net of cash and cash equivalents, and equity
attributable to owners of the Company, comprising issued
share capital, share premium, retained profits and other
reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure
on a regular basis. As part of this review, the directors
of the Company consider the cost of capital and the
risks associates with each class of capital. Based on
recommendations of the directors of the Company, the
Group will balance its overall capital structure through the
payment of dividends, new share issues and share buy-backs
as well as the issue of new debt or the redemption of existing
debt.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SRaMPRRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2024 # Z20244#3/531H 1FF Z

32.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 32.EFMITA
(a) Categories of financial instruments ()R ITAEZER
2024 2023
HK$’000 HKS$ 000
FER FET
Financial assets EMEE
Amortised cost: B A
Trade and other receivables B 5 Kk HEMEWR 67,222 44,877
Pledged bank deposits BIEFRITEN 31,122 66,187
Short-term bank deposits THRSR1TEX 14,900 56,789
Bank balances and cash RITHBRIEE 599,790 380,330
713,034 548,183
Financial liabilities EFMAaRA
Amortised cost: A
Trade and other payables B 5 K Hth FE 1 =X 32,360
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries RERMEB AT RIE 21,889
Amounts due to non-controlling TMB A ZIEER
interests of subsidiaries W@ IE 39,523
85,199 93,772
(b) Financial risk management objectives (b)HBERABEETEREE
and policies
The Group’s major financial instruments are listed in FEBZIETMIAHIN
above table. Details of the financial instruments are IR -ZEEMIAZHEBER
disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated ZERMERIRE - BZE
with these financial instruments include market risk BT HEZRERSIETSEERG
(foreign currency risk and interest rate risk), credit risk BRERANERR - EERKE
and liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate these RmENE & R o R0 R %
risks are set out below. The management of the Group ERMBZBMEHNTX - ZEH
manages and monitors these exposures to ensure EEEHZERARETEERER
appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and ER O HBRURKEENERZHS
effective manner. RETEEZHEHE o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R MPRRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2024 & E2024%#3/531H IFFE

32.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) R.EZMIA®
(b) Financial risk management objectives (b)) BAMEETERBE
and policies (continued) (&
Market risk 45 A BE
Foreign currency risk S B

142

Foreign currency risk refers to the risk that movement
in foreign currency exchange rate will affect the Group’s
financial results and its cash flows. Several subsidiaries
of the Company have foreign currency sales and
purchases, but the management of the Group considers
the amount of foreign currency sales and purchases is
insignificant. The management of the Group considers
the Group is not exposed to significant foreign currency
risk in relation to transactions denominated in MOP and
USD. Exposures on balances which are denominated in
MOP and USD in group entities with HKS as functional
currency are not considered significant as MOP is
pegged to HKS which is also effectively pegged to USD
under the pegged exchange system in Hong Kong.

The Group has certain bank balances which are
denominated in RMB (being currency other than the
functional currency of the relevant group entities)
amounting to HK$150,000 (2023: HKS$313,000). The
Group currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy. However, the management of the Group
monitors foreign exchange exposure and will consider
hedging significant foreign currency exposure should
the need arise.

The following details the Group’s sensitivity to a
reasonably possible change of 5% (2023: 5%) in
exchange rate of RMB against HKS, while all other
variables are held constant. 5% (2023: 5%) is the
sensitivity rate used when reporting foreign currency
risk internally to the key management personnel
and represents the management’s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in foreign currency rates.
The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding
foreign currency denominated monetary items and
adjusts their translation at the end of the reporting
period for a 5% (2023: 5%) change in foreign currency
rate. For a 5% (2023: 5%) strengthening in RMB against
HKS, the Group’s profit (loss) for the year would be
increased by HKS$8,000 (2023: decreased by HK$16,000).
If RMB had been weakened against HKS in an opposite
magnitude and all other variables were held constant,
the potential effect on the results would be equal and
opposite.
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MBS RRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2024 & E20244F3531H IF F &

32.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(b) Financial risk management objectives

and policies (continued)
Market risk (continued)
Foreign currency risk (continued)
In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the
sensitivity analysis is unrepresentative of inherent
foreign exchange risk as the year end exposure does not
reflect the exposure during the year.

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in
relation to fixed-rate pledged bank deposits, short-term
bank deposits, bank deposits included in bank balances
and lease liabilities as at 31 March 2024. The Group is
also exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in relation
to its variable-rate bank balances. The Group currently
does not have policy on cash flow hedges of interest rate
risk. However, the management of the Group monitors
interest rate exposure and will consider hedging
significant interest rate risk should the need arise.

The Group’s sensitivity to cash flow interest rate risk
has been determined based on the exposure to interest
rate for those variable-rate bank balances at the end
of the reporting period and management’s assessment
of the reasonably possible change in the interest rate
assuming that it took place at the beginning of each year
and was held constant throughout the respective year.

If interest rate for the variable-rate bank balances had
been 10 basis points (2023: 10 basis points) higher and
all other variables were held constant, the potential
effect on profit (loss) for the year is as follows:

Increase in profit for the year (2023: FEEA B (20234 :

Decrease in loss for the year): FEBEED)
— Variable-rate bank balances — FHFERITHER
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HK$’ 000 HK$'000
FER FTHET
58

If interest rates had been lower in an opposite
magnitude and all other variables were held constant,
the potential effect on the results would be equal and
opposite.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R MPRRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2024 & E2024%#3/531H IFFE

32.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) R.EZMIA®
(b) Financial risk management objectives (b)) BAMEETERBE
and policies (continued) (&
Credit risk management and impairment EERBEZERAEFEG

144

assessment

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk which
will cause a financial loss to the Group due to failure to
discharge obligations by the counterparties at the end
of reporting period are arising from the carrying amount
of the respective recognised financial assets as stated in
the consolidated statement of financial position.

The Group has concentration of credit risk at 53% (2023:
39%) of the total trade receivables due from the Group’s
largest customer.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management
of the Group has delegated a team responsible for
determination of credit limits, credit approvals and
other monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up
action is taken to recover overdue debts. In addition,
the Group performs impairment assessment under ECL
model upon application of HKFRS 9 on trade balances
individually. In this regard, the directors of the Company
consider that the Group’s credit risk is significantly
reduced.

During the year ended 31 March 2023, lifetime ECL of
HKS$590,000 for trade receivables from an individual
gaming patron with a gross carrying amount of
HK$590,000 was recognised as the management of
the Group considered this individual gaming patron as
credited-impaired. No lifetime ECL for trade receivables
from an individual gaming patron was recognised during
the year ended 31 March 2024.

The management of the Group has also assessed all
available forward looking information, including but
not limited to the economic outlook and subsequent
settlement of these receivables. As at 31 March 2024,
impairment allowance with an aggregate balance
of HKS$21,469,000 (2023: HKS$21,469,000) represents
individually credit-impaired trade receivables
from individual gaming patrons with an aggregate
gross carrying amount of HK$34,369,000 (2023:
HKS$34,369,000) as the management of the Group
considered the outstanding balances from these gaming
patrons were uncollectible.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SRaMPRRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2024 & E20244F3531H IF F &

32.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) RN.EMIA®
(b) Financial risk management objectives (b)BBABEETERBE
and policies (continued) (&
Credit risk management and impairment EEREEERREFGE

assessment (continued)

Lifetime ECL for the remaining trade receivables and
lease receivables with an aggregate gross carrying
amount of HKS$36,284,000 (2023: HKS$20,061,000) was
insignificant and thus not provided by the Group due
to the low probability of default of those debtors based
on historical credit loss experience. The management
of the Group has also assessed all available forward
looking information, including but not limited to the
economic outlook and subsequent settlement of these
customers, and concluded that the credit risk inherent
in the Group’s outstanding trade receivables and lease
receivables is insignificant.

The following table shows the movements in lifetime
ECL that has been recognised for credit-impaired trade
receivables from individual gaming patrons under the
simplified approach:

At 1 April 2022

New trade receivables originated during
the year

20224 481H
FENEEZMEESEKR

FR 7 BR [ 42 {8 % 36,284,000 7T
(20234 : 20,061,000 7T) B9 Fl &5
BoREKAKREBERKRZ 2
HEHEEFRIAELR Bt
NEBMITESIE - ILARIREIB
R EEBEER ZSBHEAR
HZOEMRE AEEEERE
I8 B 5 & Fr & B 2 EX A9 A B2 4
BE o BEEFERERNS
ZERPRHEBENERBHR » VA
TEBZAEEESRERRIT R
HERKFRZEERKBIEAE
j(o

TERHIREFZ D ZEH#R
WENBEEREEREES
BRFRNERRRAEEGRZS:

Lifetime
ECL (credit-
impaired)
2HEN
EEEHE
(EHAE)
HK$ 000
TEr

20,879

590

At 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2024

F220235F3H31H % 2024%3H31H

Note: As at 31 March 2024, lifetime ECL for trade receivables from
individual gaming patrons on gross carrying amount of
HKS$34,369,000 (2023: HKS$34,369,000) was HKS$21,469,000
(2023: HKS$21,469,000) as the management of the Group
considered certain individual gaming patrons were credit-
impaired.

Ktat: HR2024FE3B31H BN & &
BEEERAETENBE
EEEBEERE #FKEE
#34,369,000%8 7T (20234 :
34,369,000 7T) 2 3k B 8 Bl 18
KEEFRZEBSRERURZZ2HTHE
HA 1= B K5 18 421,469,000 7T
(20234 : 21,469,00038 7T) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R MPRRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2024 & E2024%#3/531H IFFE

32.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 2.&EMIA@®
(b) Financial risk management objectives (b)) BAMEETERBE
and policies (continued) (&

146

Credit risk management and impairment
assessment (continued)

For the pledged bank deposits, short-term bank
deposits and bank balances, impairment allowance
was insignificant and thus was not provided since the
management of the Group considers the probability
of default is negligible as such deposits are placed in
reputable banks with high credit ratings assigned by
international credit-rating agencies, and have low credit
risk.

For the other receivables, impairment allowance was
insignificant and thus was not provided since the
management of the Group considers the probability of
default is minimal after assessing the counterparties’
financial background and creditability.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by the management
of the Group to finance the Group’s operations and
mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The
management of the Group monitors the utilisation of
banking facilities and ensures compliance with loan
covenants, if any.

As at 31 March 2024, the Group has available
unutilised banking facilities of HK$419,650,000 (2023:
HK$408,650,000).

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its financial liabilities and lease
liabilities that will result in cash outflow. The table has
been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows
of financial liabilities and lease liabilities based on the
earliest date on which the Group can be required to
pay. The table includes both interest and principal cash
flows.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SFaMPERRMGE

For the year ended 31 March 2024 &t Z20244# 3531 H IF &

32.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 2.&EMIA @
(b) Financial risk management objectives (b)) BREBEETSREE
and policies (continued) (#4)
Liquidity risk (continued) RBEZmE (B)
Liquidity tables THEEZT R

2024 NUE
Trade and other payables BARAMERN 39309 39,309
Amounts dueto fellow subsidiares  XAAKBARFE 6,367 6,367
Amounts duetonon-controlling ~—— RKBRAFZEERK
interests of subsidiaries E2AE - 39,523 30,523
Sub-total It - 85,199 85,199
Lease liabilities figaE . 24,059 31001 26,389
U059 1006 112,088
003 3%
Trade and other payables BRREMENR - 30300 - - - - 32360 3,360
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries  XAAMBARHE - 21,889 - - - - 21,889 21,889
Amounts duetonon-controlling ~—— RRBRFZEERK
interests of subsidiaries ERE - 3953 - - - - 3953 39523
Sub-total It 9,17 - - - - 93772 93172
Lease liabilties figaE 350 38 95 3 9,346 2681 3833 146

93810 95 34 9,346 17681 132,104 121,18
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SRaMPERRMGE

For the year ended 31 March 2024 &t Z20244# 3531 H IF &

33.RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES BMETBHFREEZAR

ARISING FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES HER

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities TRFVAEEMETIHMELEN
arising from financing activities, including both cash and BEEF aiERERIIFREEH-
non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities MEEBMEENEGGENIEHERS
are those for which cash flows were, or future cash flows will MEECRAXAKRREEREENEKE
be classified in the Group’s consolidated statement of cash GEeREREXRPOBEAMEE
flows used in financing activities. BFFANREERENEGE -

At 1 April 2022 122022%F481H 39,523 31,279 70,802
Interest accrued FEstFI 2 — 952 952
New lease entered WmEIME — 857 857
Lease modification HEEX — (2,725) (2,725)
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—RRBRR

(note 23) (Hta£23) — (1,811) (1,811)
Financing net cash outflow ~ BBER &M HF 5B - (1,306) (1,306)
At 31 March 2023 7R2023E3H31H 27,246
Interest accrued FEstF 2 948

Financing net cash outflow B E IR H P 5 (1,305)
At 31 March 2024 1£2024%3831H 26,889
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SFaMPERRMGE

For the year ended 31 March 2024 &t Z20244# 3531 H IF &

34.CAPITAL COMMITMENTS MBI KIE

Contracted for but not provided inthe Ft# ¥ - B RREETH

consolidated financial statements, BRREGHMBHRRPER
net of amounts paid, in respect of (MBRE = 28)
property, plant and equipment
35.0PERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS BEESHEKE
The Group as lessor TEEMEALHEA

Operating lease rentals received and FEANMBREMEE U R
receivable for the year in respect of Rz &KEHERE
investment properties

At the end of the reporting period, minimum lease payments RERBFR BRKHEEZREHESE
receivable on leases are as follows: FEWTF:

Within one year

In the second year B24EF

In the third year B3F

In the fourth year FA4E

In the fifth year $E58F
Certain premises in the Group’s investment properties TEBRZREMVERNRBETYME
have committed tenants for the lease terms ranging from 3 EEMBEFAME HENFIMER ES
months to 5 years (2023: 3 months to 5 years) and the rentals FQ023F:3MER ESF)FE > M
are pre-determined and fixed. EhFELAEERAEEEEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MBRRMSE

For the year ended 31 March 2024 &t Z20244# 3531 H IF &

36.RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a) Otherthan as disclosed elsewhere in these consolidated
financial statements, during the year, the Group had the
following significant transactions with related parties:

Brokerage fee to a related
company

(i) Food and beverage sales to
related companies and fellow
subsidiaries

(iii) Hotel room income from
related companies and fellow
subsidiaries

(iv) Professional service fee to a
related company

(v) Purchase of property, plant and
equipment and merchandising
goods from related companies
and fellow subsidiaries

(vi) Reimbursement of
administrative expenses to
fellow subsidiaries

(vii) Rental income from a related
company

(viii) Secretarial fee to a related

company controlled by a

director of the Company

36.FAES XS
() RESHAMBEREMEED
FmEESN > RAEE > SEE
T RRE S T T EARS

m—fEREAR S ECE

BEAEXARKEREAR
HER

BEERARKERIEAR
W B R B IR A

m—EEEARSNEE
k% & A

BEERRKRERNEBAR
BEME  HERRER

/£ O

BHon

BENERMNBAGBM<TZ
TR X

m—EREATWERES
LN

m—EBHERARD—RESR
ERZREATMNWE
I % &
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Note: Except for item (viii), the above related companies and
fellow subsidiaries are controlled by the relevant private
discretionary trusts of which Dr. Yeung is the founder and
settlor.

The key management personnel of the Company
are the directors of the Company. The details of the
remunerations paid to them relating to short-term
employee benefits are set out in note 10.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SaMEERRMGE

For the year ended 31 March 2024 &t Z20244# 3531 H IF &

37.FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE SN.EBAFZHIEEE
COMPANY
The financial information of the Company as at 31 March K A B 1£2024%F3831H /&202343
2024 and 31 March 2023 is as follows: BI3lHZBHEERWMT

FRBEE

Non-current assets

Investment in a subsidiary R—ERBATEZKE 715,130 555,136
Amount due from a subsidiary El—EHEB AT RIE 503,804 735,417

1,218,934 1,290,553

Current assets MENEE

Prepayments SRR 981

Amount due from a subsidiary FE U — FE Bt B 2 Bl 7R IR 69,026

Bank balances and cash IRITHEEBERIRE 119,260

189,267

Current liability mENaE

Other payables H1th FE& X 738
Net current assets MENEEFLR 188,529
Net assets BEEFHE 1,407,463 1,372,690
Capital and reserves BEAXRKkG#E

Share capital & 2 119 119

Reserves (Note) & 15 (M1 at) 1,407,344 1,372,571
Total equity W 4E %A 1,407,463 1,372,690
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SRaMPERRMGE

For the year ended 31 March 2024 &t Z20244# 3531 H IF &

37.FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE 3NELTZHEERE »
COMPANY (continued) s -
Note: Jat .

At 1 April 2022 2022 481H 436,765 678 915,431 1,352,874
Profit and total comprehensive FEBARZ2EKZAE
income for the year — — 24,107 24,107
Ordinary share repurchased and BRRFH2EBR
cancelled (note 26) (Kt 5£26) — 1 (4,411) (4,410)
At 31 March 2023 72023438311 436,765 935,127 1,372,571
Profit and total comprehensive FERMEREZEKREALE
income for the year — 34,773 34,773
At 31 March 2024 74202438318 436,765 969,900 1,407,344
38.PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 38.MfiBAFIH TR
(a) General information of subsidiaries (A)MiBAR—REH
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company &R E) 202453831 H 52023
as at 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023 are as follows: FIA3IHZETEMBAGXS
wF:

Able Elegant Hong Kong HKS134,285 78.51  Provision of catering services

EE 5% 134,285% T RERHIRS

Acute Rise Limited British Virgin Islands ~ USS1 80.00  Investment holding

REFRAF HEEELHE IESH REER

Asian Glory Limited Macau MOP25,000 80.00  Property holding

SHRBRERAT P 25,0003 7T BENE

Assets Pro Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands/  USS1 80.00 Hotel entertainment
Macau e BERE

ABEYES/ A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SFaMPERRMGE

For the year ended 31 March 2024 &t Z20244# 3531 H IF &

38.PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 8. B ATFERE =
(continued)
(a) General information of subsidiaries (QffBam—MEH®
(continued)

Dickworth Limited British Virgin Islands ~ USS1
EREUHE IES

80.00 Hotel entertainment (2023:
Investment holding)

BEBREQBE &E

239)
Emperor Hotel Management Hong Kong HKSL 100.00  Provision of management
Services (HK) Limited & 187 services for hotel and

BEREEERE (FE)BERAT serviced apartments

REEERBEAATER

R %
Emperor Hotel Management Macau MOP25,000 100.00  Provision of management
Services (Macau) Limited BA 25,0002 7% services for hotels
BEEEEERRE (A ERAT REEEEERE
Emperor Hotel Management Hong Kong HKS2 80.00  Provision of serviced
Limited &% 28T apartments
HREEEERRRAR RURBALE
Grand Emperor Entertainment Macau MOP500,000 80.00  Provision of hotel and
HERGAERFM BP 500,000 70 catering services
REEERBRDRH
Inn Hotel Macau Limited Macau MOP100,000 100.00  Provision of hotel and
BB EEFRAR L] 100,000:2 F3 7T catering services
REEREREDRRE
Luck United British Virgin Islands ~ US$10,000 80.00 Investment holding
EERYHEE 10,000% 7% REER
Mori Investments Limited Hong Kong HKS$2 80.00  Property holding
&% 287 BENE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SRaMPERRMGE

For the year ended 31 March 2024 &t Z20244# 3531 H IF &

38.PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES IBHEBAFHE =

(continued)
(a) General information of subsidiaries (d)ffBam—MEH @
(continued)

154

MORI MORI Serviced Apartments

Hong Kong

Provision of serviced

Limited 5% 187 apartments
RUBBALE
Motive Drive Limited Hong Kong HKS100 80.00  Property holding
BZRERAE EE 100% 7 BENE
Oceanic Leader Investments British Virgin Islands ~ USS1 100.00  Investment holding
Limited BERYHEE IESH REER
Parkmost Limited Hong Kong HK$100 80.00  Property holding
BHEERAR 5E 100% 7 BENE
Poly Keen British Virgin Islands ~ US$1 80.00 Investment holding
EERYBES IES REER
Precision Faith Limited Macau MOP100,000 100.00  Inactive (2023:VIP room and
HEERAT iy 100,000 P97 provision of gaming-
related marketing and
promotion services)
BEHQNE EEEZE
BRE#BHERTSE
BEREERE)
Quick Gain Investments Limited British Virgin Islands ~ USS1 100.00  Investment holding
EEEYBE 1%7 REER
Right Achieve Limited British Virgin Islands ~ USS1 80.00 Investment holding
ERBRAR" ERRUHE IES REER
The Davis Investment Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 80.00  Property holding
5E 10,000% 70 BENE
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e MERRMSE

For the year ended 31 March 2024 &t Z20244# 3531 H IF &

38.PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES

(continued)
(a) General information of subsidiaries
(continued)

The Emperor Hotel Limited Hong Kong HKS1

HERSAERRAR X 17

The Unit Serviced Apartments Hong Kong HKS2
Limited X 2B

Tin Hou Limited Macau MOP25,000

ARERAH BP 25,0002 7t

Treasure Dragon Investments British Virgin Islands/ ~ USS1
Limited Macau IES

PRRAERAH EREYEE/ B

Vital Spring Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands ~ USS1

ERRUHE 1%7

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the directors of the Company,
principally affected the results or assets of the Group. To
give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion
of the directors of the Company, result in particulars of
excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries of the Company issued any
debt securities as at 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B.MBATERE®
(a)MBAR—REE®

80.00

80.00

100.00

100.00

Provision of hotel and
catering services

RAEERERRE

Provision of serviced
apartments

RERBILE

Provision of agency services
for gaming operation

REBEEBZDNRE
Investment holding

REER

Investment holding

RERER

RERBDEFEZRR » RIS
ERHAEBREXEENEERE
REZARTDWBRE - &xQ
BEERXAINHLHEMKMBLR
ZHBESREBNR AR -

1220244 3A31H X%2023F3A831
B> &xAF KBRS EETE

AEFHES
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SRaMPERRMGE

For the year ended 31 March 2024 &t Z20244# 3531 H IF &

38.PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES B.MEBAFERE =

(continued)

(b) Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries (b) B EAIEIERERZIE
that have material non-controlling EEMBARZHE
interests
The table below shows details of non-wholly owned TR EEEAEERESR
subsidiaries of the Company that have material non- HNAEAATEZEMB AT Z5F15:

controlling interests:

Luck United* British Virgin Islands 2,020 (29,700) 819,906 817,886

REELEHS

Individually immaterial subsidiaries with (74) (105) (449) (375)
non-controlling interests

BRFERERFERRENNEBAT

1,946 EEIEN 819,457 817511

Representing Luck United and its subsidiaries excluding its * HXRLuck United REM B AT »
subsidiary with non-controlling interests. TEEEEBIFEEREDOMNE
NS
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SaMEERRMGE

For the year ended 31 March 2024 &t Z20244# 3531 H IF &

38.PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES

(continued)

B.MBATERE®

(b) Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries (b)BEEEKRIEIZERERAIE
that have material non-controlling EEMBARZHER®
interests (continued)

Luck United* Luck United*

Current assets MEEE 740,191 613,663
Non-current assets ERBEE 3,612,934 3,734,461
Current liabilities mENBE (159,940) (176,598)
Non-current liabilities ERBasE (94,103) (82,471)
Equity attributable to owners of the KA B ARG R

Company 3,279,625 3,271,544
Non-controlling interests of Luck Luck United 2 JE#E R # 75

United 819,906 817,886
Non-controlling interests of Luck Luck United it B A8 Z

United’s subsidiary JEFERG RE 2 (449) (375)
Revenue A 725,622 266,231
Costs, expenses, other gains and LA~ B~ Hittlh s &

losses, and taxation BEUAKRRIE (715,595) (414,835)
Profit (loss) and total comprehensive  EE&EF (FB18) k2@

income (expense) for the year m () %8 10,027 (148,604)
Profit (loss) and total comprehensive  FEGEREFH (518) K&

income (expense) for the year 2ElE (BE) 5.

attributable to:

Owners of the Company TABEEBA 8,081 (118,799)

Non-controlling interests of Luck Luck United Z JE % f%
United ¥ &= 2,020 (29,700)
Non-controlling interests of Luck Luck United i B AB Z

United’s subsidiary FEERR R (74) (105)
10,027 (148,604)

Net cash from (used in) operating KERARRKRETEZ
activities REFEE 116,995 (65,911)

Net cash from (used in) investing KEERKRETHZ
activities REFE 36,409 (213,362)
Net cash used in financing activities BArRmMEES 2RS35 (1,028) (1,028)
Net cash inflow (outflow) BHEHRACRL) 152,376 (280,301)

Emperor Entertainment Hotel Limited 221344 HEHRAE)
Annual Report 2023/2024 £

157



—

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S aMBRRMSE

For the year ended 31 March 2024 & E2024%#3/531H IFFE

39.

158

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD

On 24 May 2024, an indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary of
the Company entered into a sale and purchase agreement
with a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of Emperor
International (“Vendor”) to acquire the entire issued share
capital of Star Omen Limited (“Star Omen”) and its loan due
to the Vendor. Star Omen and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as “Star Omen Group”) mainly owns a property
situated at Nos. 20-26 Old Bailey Street & No. 11 Chancery
Lane, Central, Hong Kong, and through the acquisition of
Star Omen Group, the Group would acquire the property,
which is at an agreed value of HK$700,000,000 by both
parties. Subject to fulfillment of conditions precedent,
Star Omen Group will become indirect non-wholly owned
subsidiaries of the Company upon completion of the
acquisition. As at the date of this report, the transaction has
not yet been completed.
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

For the year ended 31 March 2024 &t Z20244# 3531 H IF &

RESULTS

E

Revenue A 789,262 291,119 415,894 301,855 1,143,230
Profit (loss) before Bk 78 A1 & F
taxation (E518) 35,410 (181,211) (724,885) (304,327) 206,707
Taxation credit 5 18 [o] $2% 27,421 53,214 80,640 79,878 75,738
Profit (loss) for the year FERF (EE) 62,831 (127,997) (644,245) (224,449) 282,445
Profit (loss) for the year  FE{L &E E & F
attributable to: (F548) :
Owners of the EATEAA
Company 60,885 (98,192) (528,317) (177,576) 263,915
Non-controlling JEIERER
interests 1,946 (29,805) (115,928) (46,873) 18,530
62,831 (127,997) (644,245) (224,449) 282,445
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BERAR

Total assets
Total liabilities

Total equity attributable
to:
Owners of the
Company
Non-controlling
interests

MEE Loleplelii 4,837,715 5,030,423 5,868,867 6,278,258
maiE PLLPVEINE  (328,392)  (388,692)  (471,612)  (571,259)
Leneiiienl 4,509,323 4,641,731 5,397,255 5,706,999
FEAG AR o
TABEAA
Shrferiiere 3,691,812 3,794,415 4,433,694 4,696,748
FFERED

819,457 817,511 847,316 963,561 1,010,251

Leneiiians 4,509,323 4,641,731 5,397,255 5,706,999
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SUMMARY OF PROPERTIES
MEEE

At 31 March 2024 }$202443531H

Particulars of the Group’s investment properties as at 31 March A& B K{2024FE38318 2R EMEFE

2024 are as follows: {1 S
COMPLETED INVESTMENT PROPERTIES EBXxmBzieEm%E
Approximate The Group’s
Location Purpose floor area interest
3th B4 Ri& BoHEmER SEEEGED
sq.ft. %
EBR
1. Shops of Ground Floor of Grand Commercial 5,500 80
Emperor Hotel, Macau S
JRPIE 2 9R %08 5 # T 5 &
2. 8th Floor of Grand Emperor Hotel, Macau Commercial 22,300 80
R PY 2 R 4LOF 5818 [EES
3. 10th Floor of Grand Emperor Hotel, Macau ~ Commercial 22,300 80
JRPTHE 2 4R %H 51048 [EES
4, Portion of Ground Floor and the whole of Commercial 24,200 100
1st Floor of Inn Hotel, Macau [EES
BB HEM T RIEEE
5. 17 Yik Yam Street, Happy Valley, Hong Kong  Shops/Residential 17,200 80
EEMERITEHITR 58 <
6. 46-48 Morrison Hill Road, Wan Chai, Shops/Residential 16,600 80
Hong Kong 58 EE
EBEMFEEELEA46-485F
7. 22 Davis Street, Kennedy Town, Hong Kong  Shops/Residential 20,600 80

EEBREMME T H225%R & EE

Emperor Entertainment Hotel Limited 52 {244 FEEFRAE]
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